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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 18 JUNE 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Myburgh,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morning Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Gigaba,  good morning  

Mr Solomon.   I  am sor ry.  

ADV SOLOMON SC:   Good morning – morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning.   I  am sorry I  kept  you 

wai t ing for  about  ten minutes so we ran la te.   I  am sorry.   

Okay le t  us cont inue.   The oath  you took yesterday Mr  10 

Gigaba wi l l  cont inue apply.  

MR GIGABA:   Thank you (mumbl ing) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morning Mr Gigaba.  

MR GIGABA:   Good morning S i r  –  Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  would l ike to  deal  wi th  the High 

Court  judgment .   Could you p lease go to  Bundle 7(a)  which 

you have there and turn p lease to  page 996.60.    

MR GIGABA:   996.60.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is  correct .  20 

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And I  would l ike to  take you p lease to  

996.62.  

MR GIGABA:   To? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   .62 where a t  paragraph 3  the Judge 
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sets out… 

MR GIGABA:   Is  i t  6 .2 or  .62? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   996.62.  

MR GIGABA:   Oh – oh okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  paragraph 3 the Judge sets out  

chronology of  events which recorded that  

“On or  about  20 Ju ly the four th respondent  

referred to  as Capta in Wasser  and the f i f th 

respondent  Sergeant  Ngubene arr i ved at  the  

Gupta res idence ostensib ly  to  invest igate two 10 

a l leged offences re la ted to  

1 .  Mal ic ious damage to proper ty  in  respect  o f  a  

Mercedes Benz G Wagon which was 

a l legedly scratched on i ts  body wi th  a sharp  

inst rument  which we know – now know to be  

a vegetable s l i cer.   The car  be ing parked at  

the garage of  the appl i cant ’s  house.  

2 .  Cr imen In ju r ia  in  respect  o f  a  Whatsapp 

message which had been sent  f rom the 

appl i cant ’s  ce l lu lar  phone to one Petersen 20 

S iyaya who is  a f r iend or  business par tner  

of  Mr Gigaba which  message Mr S iyaya had 

apparent ly  found to be insul t ing.  

3 .  These offences were sa id to  have been 

a l legedly commit ted on 19 Ju ly.  
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4 .  Two days la te r  on  22 Ju ly the two pol i cemen 

returned to the  Gigaba res idence;  they 

ident i f ied themselves as member of  the 

Hawks;  they to ld  the appl i cant  in  the 

presence of  her  two minor  ch i ldren  that  she 

was under invest igat ion and fac ing ar rest .  

5 .  They fur ther  demanded a l l  the appl i cant ’s  

e lect ronic communicat ion devices and 

gadgets in  connect ion wi th  the 

aforement ioned cr imen in jur ia  compla int  10 

la id  against  –  or  la id  by Mr S iyaya.  

6 .  On 30 Ju ly the Hawks returned and p laced 

the appl icant  under arrest . ”  

So tha t  was the  chrono logy found  by  the  Judge.   So on 20  

Ju l y  the  two po l i cemen went  to  your  house.   Those two  

o f fences tha t  they were  invest iga t ing  a l leged ly  happened 

on 19 Ju ly  and then on 22 Ju ly  they re turned where  they  

demanded the  e lec t ron ic  dev ices and then on 30 Ju ly  they 

re turned to  p lace  Ms Mngoma under  a r res t .  

 Now tha t  i s  s l igh t ly  d i f fe ren t  to  your  ch rono logy.   Do  20 

you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:   Cha i rperson i t  i s  un for tunate  tha t  I  was not  

inv i ted  as  a  par ty  in  th is  case to  s ta te  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry  

and the  Judge re l ied  on  the  vers ion  o f  the  accused w i thout  

inv i t ing  me.   When the  Judge was to  comment  on  me to 
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come and presen t  my own vers ion .   I  found i t  pecu l ia r.   I  

am s t i l l  puzz led  by  i t  because the  –  the  chrono logy o f  

events  as  the  Judge s ta tes  here  is  obv ious l y  pa ten t ly  

un t rue .   

 I t  re l ies  on  the  vers ion  o f  a  –  a  f a ls i f i ca t ion  wh ich  

was presented be fore  the  Judge and not  cha l lenged.   What  

a lso  bo thers  me is  why d id  the  –  the  Hawks –  because I  

was not  pa r ty  to  the  a f f idav i t  –  I  do  no t  know what  –  what  

respond ing  a f f idav i t  they  f i led  –  why d id  they not  cor rec t  

these –  th is  vers ion?  10 

 I  th ink  ear l ie r  when Mr  Myburgh spoke he  

mis taken ly  read 3 .3  –  he  read 3  –  number  3  as  the  four th  

and f i f th  respondents  ar r i ved a t  the  Gupta  res idence – no  i t  

i s  G igaba res idence.   I  th ink  i t  was  jus t  a  –  an  –  a  genu ine  

er ror.  

 Second ly  Mr  S iyaya is  no t  my bus iness pa r tne r.   

The Judge d id  no t  ask  me th is .   Mr  S iyaya was not  asked 

to  s ta te  whethe r  he  was a  bus iness pa r tner  to  me o r  no t .    

 On what  bas i s  the  Judge ar r i ved  a t  th is  I  do  no t  

unders tand because Mr  S iyaya is  my f r iend.   We have been  20 

f r iends fo r  the  longest  o f  t imes.   We do not  do  bus iness 

together.   I  am not  in  bus iness.  Mr  S iyaya I  have  known 

h im –  we are  jus t  persona l  f r iends and Ms Mngoma knows 

th is .  

 Fur thermore  the  –  when the  po l i ce  o f f i cers  a r r i ved  
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they  have a lways been very  care fu l  no t  to  ta lk  to  her  in  

f ron t  o f  the  ch i ld ren .   When they a r r i ved the  f i rs t  t ime they 

asked tha t  the  ch i ld ren  be taken away.   And the  peop le  who  

were  in  the  house took the  ch i ld ren  away and so  the  

ch i ld ren  were  no t  aware  wh ich  is  cont rary  to  the  ins tance  

when the  –  the  cur ren t  p ro tec tors  o f  Ms Mngoma ar r i ved.   

The f i rs t  day they  ar r i ved a t  our  res idence as  I  was dr iv ing  

the  ch i ld ren  out  to  schoo l  they were  ca r ry ing  au tomat ic  

weapons –  r i f les .   They were  car ry ing  au tomat ic  r i f les  jus t  

in  f ron t  o f  the  ch i ld ren .   The ch i ld ren  were  f r igh tened.  10 

 I  had to  repr imand them and ins t ruc t  them to  h ide  

the i r  r i f les  because they were  t raumat iz ing  the  ch i ld ren .   

Mr  Mavuso and Mr  Ndabange whenever  they have come 

home inc lud ing  on  the  day they came to  ar res t  Ms Mnogma 

they f i rs t  asked tha t  the  ch i ld ren  be taken away –  be  –  I  

th ink  when they came to  ar res t  her  the  ch i ld ren  must  have  

been a t  schoo l  o r  someth ing  I  cannot  reca l l .  

 So  the  m inor  ch i ld ren  were  no t  there  when they  

came to  –  to  t a lk  to  her.   Now inso far  as  e lec t ron ic  

communica t ion  the  –  the  –  my reco l lec t ion  is  tha t  they –  20 

they took her  e lec t ron ic  commun ica t ion  on  the  da te  tha t  

they came to  ar res t  he r.   That  i s  my reco l lec t ion .  

 But  i f  –  i f  i t  was ear l ie r  than tha t  obv ious ly  the  

records  a t  the  po l i ce  wou ld  i nd ica te .   I  th ink  when d id  they  

take  the  e lec t ron i c  communica t ion  is  –  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  they  
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w i l l  –  the  po l i ce  wou ld  be  ab le  to  p rov ide  c la r i t y  on  bu t  the  

most  impor tan t  th ing  w i th  regard  to  tak ing  the  e lec t ron ic  

communica t ion  was the  purpose fo r  wh ich  i t  was taken f rom 

her  and –  and what  in fo rmat ion  was ex t rac ted  f rom tha t  

e lec t ron i c  communica t ion .  

 But  as  I  say  I  am unfo r tunate ly  now expected to  

comment  on  a  j udgment  in  a  case in  wh ich  I  was not  

invo l ved.   I  was not  inv i ted  to  p resent  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry.   

I  was not  rep resented by  any l ega l  –  by  an  a t to rney and 

there fo re  I  am pre jud i ced inso far  as  my vers ion  hav ing  no t  10 

been presented  a t  the  case but  the  judgment  made  

comments  on  me tha t  I  f ind  un for tunate ,  inaccura te  and 

p la in  puzz l ing .  

 What  puzz led  me fu r ther  about  th is  was the  

invo l vement .   Whi ls t  the  DPCI  was invest iga t ing  th is  case 

and dea l ing  w i th  i t  somebody f rom Cr im ina l  In te l l igence  

came on a  cont ra ry  ins t ruc t ion  on  th is  mat te r.  

 From the  outse t  i t  was very  c lea r  to  me tha t  here  I  

was dea l ing  w i th  someth ing  b igger  than what  I  thought  th is  

was because i t  puzz led  me why  two arms o f  the  same 20 

po l i ce  serv ice  were  invest iga t ing  th is  i ssue f rom d i f fe ren t  

perspect ives ,  f rom d i f fe ren t  ang les  to  a  po in t  where  a  –  a 

Mr  Moyana who is  I  p resume – who is  the  head o f  Cr im ina l  

In te l l igence or  i s  work ing  in  Cr im ina l  In te l l igence po in t  the  

–  the  Hawks o f f i cers  now Genera l  Ngwenya back then he 
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was Br igad ier  Ngwenya ca l led  h im  and c la imed tha t  I  had 

pa id  a  br i be  to  them to  –  to  a r res t  Ms Mngoma.   On what  

bas is  d id  he  make tha t  a l legat ion?  

 He cou ld  no t  p rove i t  –  cou ld  no t  substant ia te  i t  bu t  

why was he invo lved?  I t  came down to  my –  to  the 

in fo rmat ion  wh ich  I  had tha t  Cr im ina l  In te l l igence pa id  

secur i t y  and ce r ta in  peop le  in  the  NPA were  invo l ved in  –  

in  a  p lo t  o f  sor ts  –  the  po l i t i ca l  p lo t  o f  sor ts  wh ich  i nvo lved  

me and –  and were  –  and when Ms Mngoma ar res ted  i t  –  i t  

in te r fe red  w i th  the i r  asset  tha t  i s  Ms Mngoma – i t  10 

in te r fe red  w i th  the i r  asset  and there fo re  i t  c rea ted  a  

s i tua t ion  where  they had to  do  every th ing  in  the i r  power  to  

v i l i f y  me and exonera te  he r.   And tha t  i s  how th is  who le  

case panned out  up  to  the  manner  in  wh ich  i t  was abrupt ly  

inc luded w i thout  the  issue o f  the  –  the  mat te r  o f  the 

damage to  the  proper ty  hav ing  been dea l t  w i th .    

 Because here  you were  dea l ing  w i th  the  fac t  tha t  

p roper ty  had been damaged.   A confess ion  had been 

obta ined.   A person who had done th is  was ava i lab le  then –  

and then the  mat te r  was le f t  hang ing .   But  i t  b r ings to  m ind 20 

another  i ssue.  

 I f  the  c la im is  tha t  I  am the  one who f i led  charges  

fo r  a r res t  then why was i t  no t  me who w i thdrew the  

charges?  The charges were  w i thd rawn by the  peop le  who 

f i led  them tha t  i s  the  po l i ce ,  no t  me.  
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 Because i f  I  had f i led  the  charges  I  cou ld  no t  have  

w i thdrawn them – the  po l i ce  wou ld  –  cou ld  no t  have 

w i thdrawn them on my beha l f  –  i t  i s  me who shou ld  have 

w i thdrawn the  charges.   I  d id  no t  f i l e  charges the re fore  I  

d id  no t  w i thd raw any charges.   I t  is  the  po l i ce  who f i led  the  

charges.   I t  i s  the  po l i ce  who w i thdrew the  charges and – 

and so  I  do  no t  unders tand how is  i t  tha t  i t  –  i t  –  I  came to  

be  invo lved in  th i s  mat te r  –  o r  in  th is  na ture  w i thou t  be ing  

inv i ted  to  come and present  my s ta te  –  and present  my own 

case.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  Mr  G igaba you unders tand  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  must  jus t  exp la in  someth ing  about  the  – 

how the… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Judge dec ided the  mat te r  w i thout  inv i t ing  

you because you have expressed concern  about  tha t .   

Obv ious l y  I  do  no t  know what  happened but  I  want  to  

exp la in  to  you what  normal ly  happens.  20 

 In  –  in  mat te rs  tha t  come before  cour ts  a  Judge is  

expected and requ i red  to  dec ide  the  case on the  bas i s  o f  

the  ev idence tha t  the  par t ies  to  the  case br ing  be fore  h im  

or  he r.  

 So the  pa r t ies  in  th is  case were  on  the  one s ide  Ms 
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Mngoma and on the  o ther  the  pa r t i cu la r  peop le  who were  

ment ioned as  respondents  and you were  no t  ment ioned as  

a  respondent .  

 So the  expecta t ion  and the  normal  way o f  do ing  

th ings is  tha t  the  Judge shou ld  no t  in  a  c iv i l  case go out  of  

h is  way or  he r  way and say you peop le  have not  inc luded  

so  and so  –  I  want  tha t  person to  be  inc luded even i f  tha t  

person is  no t  a  par ty  to  the  mat te r.  

 But  i f  the  Judge  be l ieves tha t  somebody who has  

not  been jo ined as  a  de fendant  o r  has no t  be  c i ted  as a  10 

defendant  o r  respondent  shou ld  have been c i ted  o r  shou ld  

have been made par t  o f  the  mat te r  because he or  she has  

what  i s  ca l led  an  in te res t  in  the  mat te r  then the  Judge is  

en t i t led  ac tua l l y  ob l iged to  say I  w i l l  no t  dec ide  th is  mat te r  

un t i l  you  have jo ined th is  par ty  o r  th is  person or  you have  

served the  papers  on  th is  person and le t  th is  person  

dec ide  i f  he  or  she does not  want  to  take  par t .  

 So I  am jus t  say ing  i t  i s  normal  what  happened i s  

normal  –  i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  does not  normal ly  

happen.   So I  thought  I  wou ld  jus t  exp la in  tha t  in  te rms o f  20 

the  –  how the  Judge came to  dec ide  the  mat te r  w i thout  

hear ing  your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry.  

 So as  I  say  where  there  is  an  order  tha t  i s  sought  

aga ins t  you or  where  the  Judge fee ls  tha t  th is  person has 

an in te rest  and in te res t  i s  an  in te res t  in  a  lega l  sense in  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 12 of 190 
 

the  mat te r  then the  Judge can say,  we l l  I  w i l l  no t  dec ide  i t  

un t i l  you  have c i t ed  or  jo ined th is  par t i cu la r  person.  

  But  where  he  does not  th ink  tha t  i s  the  case he jus t  

dec ides the  mat te r  on  the  bas is  o f  the  ev idence brought  by  

the  par t ies .  

 You unders tand.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes Cha i rperson I  unders tand.  I  do  st i l l  f i nd  

i t  very  d i f f i cu l t  tha t  then the  Judge wou ld  cont inue to  

comment  about  me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no ,  no  the  … 10 

MR GIGABA:   In  a  manner  tha t  –  tha t  i t  happens here  

w i thout  hear ing  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry  o r  ver i f y i ng  whethe r  

Mr  S iyaya and I  a re  bus iness par tners  and th ings l i ke  th i s .   

But  I  unders tand Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   And hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Mr  G igaba you know 

f rom the  f i rs t  paragraph o f  the  judgment  tha t  o f  cou rse  the  

re l ie f  sought  by  Ms Mngoma was amongst  o thers  a  20 

dec lara t ion  tha t  the  dec i s ion  o f  the  po l i ce  to  app ly  fo r  a  

war ran t  o f  a r res t  was unconst i tu t iona l ,  i r ra t iona l  and  

inva l id  and tha t  the  dec is ion  o f  the  po l i ce  to  execute  the  

war ran t  o f  a r res t  was l i kewise  unconst i tu t iona l ,  i r ra t iona l  

and inva l id .   You have seen tha t ,  cor rec t?  
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MR GIGABA:   I  have seen tha t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r igh t .   And you know tha t  the  

po l i ce  opposed th is  app l i ca t ion  and put  in  an  answer ing  

a f f idav i t  tha t  i s  apparent  f rom the  judgment .   Cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  have seen tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you wou ld  a lso  I  p resume accept  

tha t  the  po l i cemen in  quest ion  they knew what  the  cor rec t  

chrono logy o f  events  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  I  accept  tha t  too  Cha i rperson 

but  i t  s t i l l  does not  change the  fac t .   I  mean the  chrono logy  10 

o f  the  events  o f  when her  gadgets  were  taken is  –  i s  no t  as  

impor tan t  as  what  was taken –  what  was ex t rac ted  f rom 

them and the  reason why they were  taken.  Because as  I  

have ind i ca ted  there  were  o ther  i ssues wh ich  they were  

invest iga t ing .  

 There  were  o ther  i ssues wh ich  they were  

invest iga t ing .   I  th ink  the  po l i ce  a re  best  su i ted  to  answer  

these quest ions than me who are  –  who f rom the  –  f rom 

what  the  Cha i rpe rson has sa id  was not  c i te  –  was not  –  

what  i s  the  word?  –  was not .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   They were  –  you were  no t  c i ted  as  a  

par ty.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   As  a  par t y  here .   So… 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  the  judgment  re f lec t s  i s  tha t  

the  gadgets  were  taken on the  22n d  o f  Ju ly  and a t  3 .5  they 

fu r ther  demanded a l l  the  app l i cant ’s  e lec t ron i c  

communica t ion  dev i ces and judgments  in  connect ion  w i th  

the  abovement ioned c r imen in ju r ia  compla in t .    

 I t  was a  f ind ing  made by  the  Judge  on the  papers .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  can see i t  i s  in  the  judgment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cor rec t .   R igh t .   I f  you  go to  

parag raph 5 .4  o f  the  judgment  a t  page 996.63 i t  records  

under  the  head ing  o f  Ms Mngoma’s  ve rs ion  a t  5 .4 :  10 

“Once they were  in  possess ion  o f  a l l  her  

gadgets  they demanded tha t  she shou ld  te l l  

them a l l  the  sec re t  p in  codes.   When she  

re fused they th rea tened her  tha t  re fus ing  an  

ins t ruc t ion  f rom the  Hawks was a  c r im ina l  

o f fence.   She prov ided them wi th  the  secre t  

codes wh ich  they tes ted  on the  dev i ces 

be fore  tak ing  the  dev ises away. ”  

 You see tha t?  

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  can see tha t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease to  

go  to  parag raph 5 .10 .    

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  page 998.64.  

“On 30 Ju ly  2020  the  app l i cant  in fo rmed Mr  
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G igaba tha t  un less  her  gadge ts  were  

re turned by  the  even ing  lega l  p roceed ings  

wou ld  be  ins t i tu ted  fo r  the i r  re tu rn .   On  

Fr iday 31  Ju l y  2020 Mr  G igaba in fo rmed the  

app l i cant  tha t  the  Hawks wou ld  be  ar r i v ing  

to  re turn  the  gadgets .   When the  Hawks  

ar r i ved ins tead o f  re tu rn ing  the  gadgets  

they in fo rmed the  app l i cant  tha t  they were  

p lac ing  her  under  a r res t . ”  

 What  do  you say to  tha t?  10 

MR GIGABA:   Cha i rperson the  –  when Ms Mngoma spoke 

to  me and requested tha t  we ta lk  to  the  –  to  the  po l i ce  to  

re turn  her  gadge ts  the  bas i s  o f  tha t  was tha t ,  p lease ask  

them to  re turn  my gadgets  so  tha t  we can –  and ask  them 

to  w i thdraw –  and w i thdraw.  She asked me to  w i thdraw the  

case.   She even –  I  sa id  to  her  in  my d iscuss ions w i th  the  

po l i ce  they sa id  to  me tha t  I  cannot  w i thdraw the  case 

because I  am not  the  one who –  who had la id  the  charge.  

 She then put  me  in  communica t ion  w i th  –  w i th  Ms  

Zama Nonth langa  who is  –  who works  a t  the  Hawks –  who 20 

is  her  persona l  f r iend and Ms Nonth langa sa id  to  me tha t  i t  

i s  poss ib le  tha t  you w i thdraw the  charges because you are  

the  one who repor ted  the  damage to  the  proper t ies .  

 I  sa id  I  w i l l  t ry  ta lk  to  the  Hawks and I  do  no t  make  

any promise  but  I  w i l l  ta lk  to  them so tha t  we can es tab l i sh  
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whethe r  tha t  i s  poss ib le .   And –  and I  sa id  to  her  tha t  I  

wou ld  a l so  fu r the r  ta lk  to  them to  –  to  re tu rn  your  gadgets  

because when we were  hav ing  th is  d iscuss ion  aga in  the  

issue o f  an  amicab le  d i vorce  se t t lement  tha t  look  a l l  o f  th is  

i s  so le ly  the  d ivo rce  d iscuss ions and I  sa id ,  look  I  w i l l  ta lk  

to  her  –  I  mean I  wou ld  ta lk  to  the  po l i ce  –  we need to  f ind 

an  amicab le  way to  reso lve  th i s .  

 Ac tua l l y  the  d ivorce  issues I  th ink  had not  even 

s tar ted  fo rmal ly  by  then.   That  I  w i l l  ta lk  to  the  po l i ce  – we 

w i l l  t ry  and f ind  an  amicab le  so lu t ion  to  th is  and she asked 10 

me to  a lso  ta lk  to  the  –  the  owner  o f  the  veh ic le  and I  

spoke to  the  owner  o f  the  veh ic le .   He sa id  to  me he wou ld 

take  my adv i ce  on  whether  he  shou ld  proceed to  a lso  lay  

charges fo r  the  damage to  h is  p roper ty  o r  no t .   I  sa id  to  

h im I  wou ld  come back to  h im.    

 I  then a lso  p romised to  ta lk  to  Mr  S iyaya to  ask  h im 

not  to  p roceed w i th  lay ing  charges fo r  c r imen in ju r ia  and  

Mr  S iyaya –  Mr  S iyaya ’s  response was,  I  w i l l  do  so  on 

cond i t ion  tha t  Ms  Mngoma apo log ises to  me.  

 When I  spoke to  Ms Mngoma she to ld  me in  no  20 

uncer ta in  te rms tha t  she wou ld  no t  apo log ise  to  Mr  S iyaya.   

So tha t  i s  how the  mat te r  then ended.  

 When the  Hawks came on the  31s t  o f  Ju ly  and  

ins is ted  tha t  they  were  now go ing  to  a r res t  her  I  th ink  even  

by  her  own tes t imony befo re  the  commiss ion  Ms Mngoma 
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ind ica te  tha t  even on tha t  da te  I  spoke to  her  a t to rney Mr  

Mkwashu and –  and went  to  the  po l i ce  s ta t i on  and 

ind ica ted  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  w i thdraw the  case and aga in  

the  Hawks –  the  po l i ce  ind ica ted  tha t  no  you  cannot  

w i thdraw the  case because you a re  no t  the  one who la id  

the  charge and I  –  I  fu r ther  was there  th roughout  tha t  

Fr iday ass is t ing  her  w i th  whatever  she needed;  c lo thes and 

food and s tu f f  l i ke  tha t .    

 So  tha t  i s  my ve rs ion  o f  paragraph  5 .10  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  do you accept  now tha t  the 10 

gadgets  were  taken on the  22n d?  

MR GIGABA:   I t  i s  immater ia l  Cha i rperson whether  they 

were  taken on the  22n d .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA:    Or  31 s t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am not  ask ing  you to  comment  on  

whethe r  you th ink  i t  i s  immater ia l  I  am ask ing  you to  d i rec t  

yourse l f  to  the  quest ion  o f  whether  o r  no t  you accept  tha t  

the  gadgets  were  taken on the  22 n d .  

MR GIGABA:   P resuming Cha i rperson tha t  I  am not  in  20 

cour t  tha t  th is  i s  an  inqu i ry  I  th ink  I  shou ld  a lso  be  a t  

l iber ty  to  p rov ide  responses the  way I  –  I  th ink  o f  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  no  Mr  Myburgh is  no t  suggest ing  tha t  

you shou ld  agree  tha t  tha t  i s  the  da te  i f  i t  i s  no t  the  da te .   

I  th ink  what  he  is  do ing  is  bear ing  in  m ind the  d iscuss ion  
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about  the  da tes  yesterday now tha t  he  is  re fe r r i ng  to  what  

the  judgment  i s  say ing  he  is  seek ing  to  check whether  th i s  

makes any d i f fe rence in  te rms o f  your  –  your  vers ion  o f  

whethe r  you –  you s t i l l  s t i ck  to  the  vers ion  you gave in  

regard  to  the  da te   He is  no t  suggest ing  tha t  you shou ld  

change or  no t .  

MR GIGABA:   I t  i s  a  –  Cha i rperson thank you very  much.   

No,  i t  i s  –  I  th ink  f rom what  i s  appear ing  in  th is  document  i t  

cou ld  have been on the  22n d  o f  Ju l y  ra ther  than the  31s t  bu t  

i t  s t i l l  does not  change the  fac t  tha t  the  gadgets  were  no t  10 

taken in  –  or  w i th  a  mal ic ious in ten t ion  to  underm ine the  

work  o f  th is  commiss ion .   Because a t  the  end o f  the  day 

whethe r  they were  taken on the  22 n d  o r  the  23 r d  o r  the  24 t h  

the  quest ion  o f  what  was ex t rac ted  f rom those gadgets  i s  

ava i lab le  on  po l i ce  records  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  we  

shou ld  d i rec t  ourse l ves.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Now le t  us  have a  look a t  

parag raph 5 .11 .  

“A t  the  po l i ce  s ta t ion  Sergeant  Ndubane  

repeated ly  to ld  the  app l i cant  tha t  she wou ld  20 

remain  in  the  po l i ce  ce l l s  un t i l  Monday the  

3 r d  o f  August  2020. ”  

 Then i f  you drop down to  pa ragraph 5 .1 .  

“The fo l low ing day,  Saturday the  1s t  o f  

August  and wh i le  a r rangements  were  
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underway to  b r i ng  a  H igh  Cour t  app l i ca t ion  

to  secure  the  app l i cant ’s  re lease the  

a t to rney and the  prosecutor  reached an  

agreement  wh ich  resu l ted  in  he r  re lease on  

R5 000.00 ba i l  approx imate ly  26  hours  a f te r  

her  a r res t . ”  

 You conf i rm tha t .  

MR GIGABA:   I  –  I  can conf i rm  i t .   I  am the  one who 

prov ided the  R5 000.00 fo r  ba i l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you  conf i rm tha t  she was 10 

re leased a f te r  hav ing  spent  26  hours  in  ja i l .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then a t  5 .16 .  

“On 2  August  and fo l low ing he r  re lease the  

app l i cant  ins t ruc ted  her  a t to rneys to  

demand the  re lease o f  her  gadgets  by  no  

la te r  than 17H00  on 3  August  fa i l ing  wh ich  

to  b r ing  an  urgent  H igh  Cour t  app l i ca t ion .   

The gadgets  were  re turned a t  n ine  o ’c lock  

on  4  August  2020 . ”  20 

MR GIGABA:   I  do  no t  know how –  the  gadgets  were  no t  

re tu rned to  me Cha i rperson so  I  wou ld  no t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r igh t .    

“When the  app l i cant  a t  5 .17  was  prov ided  

w i th  cop ies  o f  the  docket  she d iscovered  
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tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  f rom her  conf isca ted  

gadgets  had been downloaded onto  two 

d iscs  wh ich  had not  been fu rn i shed to  her  

lawyers  and some spec i f i c  in fo rmat ion  had  

been removed or  e rased wh ich  had no  

re la t ionsh ip  to  the  a l legat ions o f  the  two 

cr im ina l  charges. ”  

 You want  to  comment  on  tha t .  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink  the  –  whatever  was downloaded f rom 

her  phone wou ld  be  ava i lab le  on  po l i ce  records .  F rom the  10 

cursory  read ing  o f  what  i s  be ing  sa id  here  i f . . .  i f . . .   You 

know,  I  have got  a  lo t  o f  p ic tu res  on  my phone.   And i f  

somebody has downloaded -  has  removed a  p ic tu re  or  

severa l  p i c tu res  f rom my phone and –  or  in  fac t ,  i f  

somebody had downloaded in to  two d iscs ,  in fo rmat ion  f rom 

your  phone and not  fu rn i shed those d iscs  to  your  lawyers ,  

how wou ld  you be l ieve  tha t  spec i f i c  in fo rmat ion  has been 

removed or  e rased wh ich  had  no re la t ionsh ip  to  the 

a l legat ions o f  the  two cr im ina l  charges?   

 The judge in  th is  mat te r  had an ob l iga t ion  to  ask  20 

the  po l i ce  to  p rov ide  ev idence o f  what  in fo rmat ion  had 

been downloaded and to  ask  Ms Mngoma to  prov ide  

ev idence o f  what  in fo rmat ion  had been removed.   

Ev idence,  no t  a l l egat ions.   Because here ,  you are  dea l ing  

in  a  c r im ina l  case wh ich  must  re l y  on  ev idence ra ther  than 
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hea rsay or  the  v iews o f  a  s ing le  par ty.    

 Now I  am not  aware  o f  th is  i n fo rmat ion  because  

these two d iscs  were  no t  fu rn i shed to  me e i the r,  nor  was I  

in fo rmed o r  nor  was I  aware  o f  any  o ther  i n fo rmat ion  wh ich  

wou ld  have been removed or  e rased wh ich  had no 

re la t ionsh ips  o f  the  a l legat ions o f  the  two cr im ina l  charges.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So,  you cannot  d ispu te  what  

i s  sa id  here?  You do not  know? 

MR GIGABA :    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  10 

MR GIGABA :    I  was not  fu rn i shed  w i th  th is  in fo rmat ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  i f  we cou ld  then go to  paragraph  

77,  p lease?  A t  page 996.97.    

MR GIGABA :    996 po in t  97?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    97 ,  ja .  

MR GIGABA :    R igh t .   Yes,  I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  paragraph 77:   

“ I t  appears  in  th is  mat te r  tha t  the  ar res t ing  

o f f i cers  abused the i r  powers  and  pos i t ion  as  

members  o f  the  Hawks p resumable  to  avenge  20 

a  wrong o r  perce ived wrong as  compla in t  and  

a l leged by  Mr  G igaba and not  fo r  any lawfu l  

purpose and/o r  was accord ing ly. . .  

A war ran t  was ob ta ined fo r  an  u l te r io r  mot ive .  

The a rgument  o f  the  responden ts  tha t  they 
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were  invest iga t ing  a  consp i racy  to  commi t  

murder  aga ins t  Mr  G igaba is  no t  sus ta inab le  in  

the  l igh t  o f  the  fac t  tha t  they have a l luded no 

fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  on  th i s  a l leged  consp i racy  

or  how the  charges aga ins t  the  app l i cant  a re  

connected to  i t .  

There  is  no  ev idence o f  th is  in  the  docket  and  

takes the  mat te r  no  fu r the r.  

I t  i s  c lear  tha t  th is  i s ,  in  fac t ,  a  domest ic  

d ispute  be tween  two prominent  members  o f  10 

soc ie ty.  

However,  the  o f fences are  no t  deserv ing  o f  a  

h igh  p r io r i t y  o f  the  Hawks and invo lvement  o f  

the  Hawks.  

I t se l f  speaks to  the  abus ive  power  by  

Mr  G igaba as  a  fo rmer  Min is te r  in  us ing  the  

s ta te  admin is t ra t ions  fo r  h i s  own persona l  

benef i t  w i th  an  in ten t ion  to  in t im ida te  h is  w i fe  

in  a  domest ic  spa t .  

The scourge and  dominance and pat r ia rchy in  20 

our  soc ie ty  mus t  be  p ie rced and women’s  

r igh ts  to  fa i r  and equa l  t rea tment  must  be  

pro tec ted . . . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    I  d ispute  th is ,  and I  re jec t  i t  w i th  contempt .   
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Cha i rperson,  you  know. . .  [ laughs]   The judge d id  no t  ca l l  

the  Hawks to  p rov ide  ev idence o f  the  invest iga t ion .   The 

issue o f  the  invest iga t ion  aga ins t  me was not  be fore  th i s  

cour t .   How the  judgment  s t ra ined in to  th is  mat te r,  tha t  

puzz les  me,  bu t  then,  I  am not  a  lawyer.   I  am not  a  man o f  

lega l  –  o f  the  lega l  p ro fess ion .    

 So,  I  wou ld  no t  know how these th ings happen.   I t  

i s  qu i te  poss ib le  tha t  they can happen but  f rom a  layman’s  

po in t  o f  v iew,  the  issue o f  the  a l legat ions aga ins t  –  o f  the  

a l legat ions o f  a  consp i racy  to  murder  me,  to  k i l l  me,  in  my 10 

op in ion  was not  be fore  th is  cour t .   Second ly,  the  –  I  

d ispute  the  fac t  tha t  there  was a  consp i racy  and abuse o f  

power  or  tha t  the re  was an abuse o f  power  on  my par t .    

 In  2020,  I  had no t  been a  Min i s te r  fo r  more  than a  

year  and the  fac t  tha t  I  am a  fo rmer  Min is te r  does not  

en t i t le  to  me power  tha t  I  do  no t  have.   You can c la im tha t  

fo rmer  Min is te rs  have got  some power  as  i t  i s  suggested  

here ,  tha t  as  a  fo rmer  Min is te r  you can abuse your  power  

by  us ing  the  s ta te  admin i s t ra t ion  fo r  your  pe rsona l  benef i t .   

That  i s  no t  cor rec t .    20 

 Aga in ,  the  judge  makes damaging s ta tements  in  

re fe rence to  me wi thout  ask ing  me to  come befo re  judge to  

p resent  my case .   I  s t i l l  i ns is t  tha t  I  shou ld  have been 

inv i ted  to  p resent  my own case,  to  be  rep resented so  tha t  I  

can s ta te  my s ide  o f  the  s to ry  on  th is  mat te r.   There  was  
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no  abuse o f  power  here .   I  had approached the  Hawks on 

the  mat te r  o f  a  th rea t  I  had rece ived,  and I  have prov ided 

the  Hawks w i th  tha t  SMS,  the  Whatsapp message .   They  

have i t .    

 They took a  p i c tu re  o f  i t  f rom my phone,  and they  

opened the  case.   So tha t  record  is  w i th  the  Hawks .   Now,  

when the  same person who is  a l leged to  be  invo l ved in  the  

consp i racy  to  k i l l  me,  then does  what  happened  on the  

n igh t  o f  Ju ly  a t  my res idence.   I t  –  to  ca l l  the  Hawks and  

say:   What  do  you suggest  I  do  now th is  person has done 10 

th is?   And they took the  mat te r  up .    

 In  my unders tand ing ,  the  Hawks  had ju r isd ic t ion  

over  the  mat te r,  and they ins is ted  as  such and they a lso  

fe l t  i t  was necessary  to  check a l l  o f  these th ings and do  

the  invest iga t ion  in  the  manner  t ha t  they d id ,  fo r  them to  

sa t is fy  themse lves whether  th is  was not  re la ted  to  tha t .   I f  

th is  was a  domes t ic  d ispute ,  a  domest ic  spat ,  as  the  judge  

in  th is  case says,  then the  mat te r  wou ld  have been hand led  

or  shou ld  have been re fe r red  to  the  re levant  un i ts  w i th in  

the  po l i ce  to  invest iga te  and tha t  i t  how i t  shou ld  have  20 

ar r i ved in  cour t ,  and I  wou ld  have  been the re  to  –  as  the  

one who wou ld  have opened the  case in  tha t  regard .   There  

was no in ten t ion  to  in t im ida te  Ms  Mngoma in  a  domest ic  

spat .    

 Now,  the  war ran t ,  I  d ispute  the  fac t  tha t  i t  was  
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ob ta ined fo r  an  u l te r io r  mot ive  and  had I  been asked to  be  

there ,  I  wou ld  have s ta ted  as  such tha t  i t  had not  been.   

The Hawks,  to  my unders tand ing  and f rom the  pub l i c  

announcement  o f  the  Min is te r  o f  Po l i ce  a f te r  th i s  judgment ,  

had in tended to  appea l  the  judgment  bu t  subsequent ly  

dec ided not  to  go  ahead to  appea l  the  judgment  because in  

the i r  op in ion  i t  was go ing  to  impact  f rom the  pub l i c  

s ta tements  they made.    

 They sa id  i t  was go ing  to  impact  on  the i r  

ju r i sd i c t ion  and the  fu r ther  work  tha t  they have  to  do  i n  10 

f igh t ing  cr ime in  th is  count ry.   But  I  cannot  comment  on  

why dec ided not  to  go  ahead w i th  the  appea l .   A l l  tha t  I  

know and what  I  am say ing  now is  tha t  I  d ispute  the  fac t .   

One,  tha t  the  war ran t  had an u l te r io r  mot ive .    

 Two,  tha t  the  – tha t  I  abused my powers ,  the  

powers  wh ich  I  d id  no t  have.   I  do  no t  have powers .   I  am 

not  a  m in is te r.   I  am a  fo rmer  M in is te r.   And the  t i t le  o f  

fo rmer  M in is te r  i s  no t  a  t i t le  recogn ised in  the  cons t i tu t ion .   

I  am jus t  now s imply  an  ord inary  member  o f  soc ie ty.   And 

had the  po l i ce  sa id  to  me:   No,  no  these two i ssues are  no t  20 

re la ted .   Go repor t  the  case and  so .   I  wou ld  have done  

exact ly  tha t .    

 I  am ent i t led  to  seek an op in ion  f rom anybody in  

th is  soc ie ty,  as  a  member  o f  soc ie ty.   And the  peop le  who 

g ive  me in fo rmat ion  are  the  one  who d i rec ts  what  I  am 
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go ing  to  do  subsequent ly.   Here  the  judge then made a  

s ta tement  wh ich  I  f ind  very  prob lemat ic  tha t  the  ske tch  o f  –  

and dominance o f  pa t r ia rchy in  our  soc ie ty  must  be  p ie rced  

and women’s  r igh ts  to  fa i r  and equa l  t rea tment  must  be  

pro tec ted  but  then so  shou ld  our  r igh t  as  men.   So shou ld  

our  r igh t  as  men.    

 You know,  i f  somebody comes des t roys  proper t y  in  

your  custody and damages your  s tudy,  takes your  books 

and –  to  wh ich  you have invested  so  much and t r ies  to  

dest roy  them and takes your  award  and breaks them and  10 

they ransack your  s tudy.   Must  I  as  a  man s i t  back and  

keep qu ie t  because th is  i s  a  woman?  What  en t i t les  her  in  

do ing  tha t?   I  have eve ry  r igh t  to  repor t  the  mat te r  to  the  

po l i ce .   In  th is  case,  I  repor ted  the  mat te r  w i th  regard  to  

the  damage to  proper ty.    

 I  d id  no t  say  anyth ing  about  the  ransack ing  and  

the  charges tha t  must  be  la id .   I  repor ted  the  damage to  

proper ty  because  the  car  in  my possess ion  d id  no t  be long  

to  me.   I t  be longed to  someone e l se .   There  is  no  abuse o f  

power  here .   I  th ink  th is  s ta tement  was –  as  un fo r tunate  as  20 

i t  was,  unbecoming because i t  goes to  make fa r  reach ing  

ins inuat ions wh ich  are  un fo r tunate  to  me because  I  have  

not  been inv i ted  to  the  case to  p resent  my vers ion  and to  

be  ab le  to  d i spu te  the  fac t  tha t  –  o r  the  a l legat ion  tha t  

there  was a  pa t r ia rcha l  mot ive  and an a t tempt  to  abuse  
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women’s  r igh ts .    

 In  th is  case,  I  am the  one who was abused,  and I  

have not  done anyth ing  o ther  than to  repor t  the  mat te r  to  

the  po l i ce .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  G igaba,  you unders tand tha t  

the  po l i ce  were  ca l led  upon in  th is  case to  j us t i f y  a  

dec is ion  to  a r res t  Ms Mngoma? 

MR GIGABA :    No,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Le t  us  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  can  jus t  bear  w i th  me fo r  a  

moment?  

MR GIGABA :    That  i s  what  I  am d isput ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  Mr  G igaba.   I f  you  jus t  bear  

w i th  me fo r  a  moment?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean,  tha t  i s  what  they were  ca l led  

upon to  do .   Tha t  i s  what  the  case was about ,  and these  

f ind ings f low f rom the  fac t  tha t  they were  unab le  to  do  tha t .  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  p rec ise ly  what  I  am 20 

d isput ing .   And I  th ink  the  Commiss ion  shou ld  bear  in  m ind  

tha t  I  was not  inv i ted  to  p resent  my vers ion  in  th i s  case.   

So,  to  re ly  on  a  vers ion  on  a  judgment  wh ich  a l so  re l ied  on  

a  s ingu lar  ve rs ion  on  the  mat te r,  shou ld  take  in to  

cons idera t ion  tha t  my vers ion  has no t  been heard .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  th ink  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    . . .my vers ion  now . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  tha t  i s  t rue ,  Mr  G igaba.   Whatever  

one makes o f  the  judgment ,  one has got  to  remember  tha t  

you were  no t  par ty  to  the  case and the  judge d id  no t  have 

your  vers ion .   So,  tha t  w i l l  have to  be  borne in  m ind.  

MR GIGABA :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   And tha t  i s  why I  

am say ing .   The quest ion  or  the  s ta tement  pu t  to  me by the  

ev idence leader  cannot ,  there fore ,  go  uncha l lenged  

because the  po l i ce  were  no t  inv i t ed  to  come and per fo rm 10 

an ac t  w i th  an  u l te r io r  mot ive .   They were  inv i ted .   You 

see,  i f  i t  i s  the  op in ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  a  th rea t  to  

my l i fe  i s  less  impor tan t  then,  tha t  wou ld  be  unfor tunate .    

 And I  have every  r igh t  to  repor t  tha t  th rea t  and ask  

the  po l i ce  to  invest iga te ,  and I  repor ted  i t  to  o f f i cers  and  

ins t i tu t ions  tha t  were  prov ided to  me on the  bas is  o f  my 

request  fo r  adv i ce  and gu idance on how to  dea l  w i th  the  

mat te r  tha t  was presented to  me.   And when I  p resented  

th is  and asked  the  po l i ce  to  invest iga te  i t ,  I  had no 

presumpt ions,  I  had no preconce ived ideas as  to  the  20 

verac i t y  o f  the  a l legat ion  or  i t s  t ru th fu lness fo r  tha t  mat te r.    

 I t  was mere ly  say ing :   Invest iga te  th is .   I t  cou ld  

very  we l l  have been the  works  o f  In te l l igence or  –  agenc ies  

tha t  were  t r y ing  to  cause p rob lems in  my househo ld  bu t  

nonethe less  i t  wou ld  have been unfa i r  o f  h im  had I  
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rece ived a  th rea t  and not  ac ted  on i t  because then I  d id  no t  

know what  shou ld  have happened  had the  peop le  who sent  

me the  th rea t  ac ted  on the  th rea t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  I  am not  sure  how much 

more  t ime you w ish  to  spend on th is  judgment?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    About  f i ve  more  m inutes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  am not  sure  tha t  we shou ld  spend 

too  much t ime on  i t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have got  two more  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .paragraphs.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  me jus t  take  you to  because 

i t  rea l l y  jus t  expands upon the  f ind ing  tha t  we have a l ready  

dea l t  w i th ,  bu t  a t  parag raph 78 in  the  second sentence,  i t  

says :  

“On the  respondent ’s  own vers ion ,  desp i te  the  

war ran t  be ing  issued on a  weekday,  30  Ju ly,  

they cho ice  to  wa i t  un t i l  Fr iday a f te rnoon on 

31 Ju ly  to  execute  same.  20 

Aga in ,  the  respondents  have  o f fe red  no 

p laus ib le  exp lana t ion  to  th is  cour t  why,  i f  the 

app l i cant ’s  ac t ions were  so  th rea ten ing  as  they 

a l lege,  there fore  the  on ly  way  to  secure  

a t tendance a t  cour t  was th rough a  war ran t  o f  
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a r res t  bu t  then wa i ted  an  ent i re  day be fore  

ob ta in ing  the  war ran t  to  ac tua l l y  a r res t  her. . . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    I  am not  a  po l i ce  o f f i ce r,  Cha i rperson.   I  

wou ld  no t  know why they wa i ted  un t i l  the  31s t .   What  I  

d ispute  and re fu te ,  and re jec t  i s  then the  conc lus ion  tha t ,  i f  

no th ing  e lse ,  the  cour t  i s  o f  the  v iew tha t  th is  on l y  fu r ther  

demonst ra te  the  abuse o f  power  by  the  fou r th  and f i f th  

respondents  who were  ca l led  by  Mr  G igaba.   

  I  was not  pa r ty  to  th is  case.   I  d id  no t  have  10 

oppor tun i ty  to  p resent  my own vers ion .   There  was no 

abuse o f  power.   What  the  judge in  th is  case cur ious l y  

does,  i s  to  undermine the  th rea t  to  my l i fe  wh ich  had been  

rece ived by  me wi thout  ca l l ing  me or  the  po l i ce  to  ac tua l l y  

a rgue.    

 And the  po l i ce ,  f rom what  I  unders tand,  were  no t  

ready,  were  no t  go ing  to  be  ab le  dur ing  th is  app l i ca t ion  to  

dea l  w i th  a  mat te r  o f  the  th rea t  to  my l i fe  and t ie  i t  to  th is  

hear ing  because th is  was,  one,  the  issue o f  the  th rea t  to  

my l i fe  was s t i l l  under  invest iga t ion  and second ly,  th is  20 

hear ing ,  in  par t i cu la r,  had not  been ca l led  fo r  the  express 

purpose o f  dea l ing  w i th  the  issue o f  the  th rea t  to  my l i fe .    

 I t  wou ld  have been premature  o f  them to  have  

come there  and argue tha t  in  ac tua l  fac t  there  is  because 

when they were  be ing  in te r rup ted  in  fac t ion (?)  th rough the  
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in fo rmat ion ,  they  were  –  they then –  the i r  invest iga t ions 

shou ld  o r  wou ld  obv ious ly  have been in te r rup ted  as  we l l .    

 And so ,  they wou ld  no t  have been ready to  come 

wi th  an  un -cooped s tory  to  cour t  to  a rgue tha t  indeed there  

is  a  th rea t  to  my l i fe .   The repor t  on  whether  there  is  a  

th rea t  –  on  whether  there  was a  th rea t  to  my l i fe  o r  there  

s t i l l  i s ,  i s  a  mat te r  o f  g rea t  concern  to  me because i t  

speaks to  whether  there  a re  peop le  ou t  there  who have  

been h i red  to  k i l l  me or  no t .   And i t  a lso  speaks to  whethe r  

there  may be peop le  ou t  there  who are  spread ing  th is  10 

in fo rmat ion  fo r  the  purposes o f  whatever  reason tha t  I  may 

not  know o f .    

 Bu t  i t  i s  qu i te  no rmal  in  the  po l i t i ca l  env i ronment  

and espec ia l l y  in  a  po l i t i ca l  env i ronment  tha t  is  h igh ly  

tense,  tha t  i s  tens ion  f i l l ed  fo r  peop le  –  fo r  there  to  be  

peop le  who are  spread ing  th is  in fo rmat ion  and caus ing  

pa in ,  d iv i s ion ,  and havoc,  us ing  methods o f  th is  na ture .    

 But  a l l  o f  tha t  no tw i ths tand ing ,  I  cou ld  no t  take  fo r  

g ran ted tha t  I  had ac tua l l y  rece ived a  th rea t  to  my  l i fe  tha t  

I  needed to  ac t  on .    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then perhaps we can jus t  fo r  the 

purposes o f  the  record  look a t  the  re l ie f  and the  

conc lus ion ,  Mr  G igaba,  a t  parag raphs 81 and 82.   I  th ink  

th is  i s  a t  page 996.99.   I  see  I  have punched  a  ho le  

th rough tha t  number.   I  hope i t  i s  tha t  page.   A t  81 ,  the 
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judge conc ludes:  

“Based on the  ev idence as  tendered,  the  

app l i cant  has d ischarged the  onus res t ing  

upon her  to  es tab l i sh  tha t  desp i te  the  

execut ion  o f  war ran t  o f  a r res t  by  the  four th  

and f i f th  respondents  was wrongfu l  and  

un lawfu l  and tha t  they se t  in  mot ion  her  

p rosecut ion . . . ”  

And then a t  82 :  

“ In  a  resu l t ,  the  fo l low ing orde r  i s  made:  10 

(1)  The app l i ca t ion  is  g ran ted on  an 

urgent  bas is .  

(2 )  The dec is ion  o f  the  four th  and f i f th  

respondents  to  app ly  fo r  the  war ran t  o f  a r res t  

o f  the  app l i cant  i s  un lawfu l .  

(3 )  The dec is ion  to  execute  the  war ran t  

o f  a r res t  by  the  four th  and f i f th  respondents  i s  

un lawfu l .  

(4 )  The conf isca t ion  o f  the  app l i cant ’s  

in fo rmat ion  and  communica t ion  techno logy 20 

equ ipment  i s  un lawfu l .  

(5 )  The respondents  are  ordered  to  

res tore  a l l  in fo rmat ion  un lawfu l l y  removed f rom 

the  app l i cant ’s  ITC equ ipment .  

(6 )  The th i rd ,  four th  and f i f th  
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respondents  are  d i rec ted  to  re turn  the  

in fo rmat ion  wh ich  was downloaded f rom 

e lec t ron i c  gadge ts  o f  the  app l i cant  by  the  

respondents  inc lud ing  the  in fo rmat ion  

conta ined in  d isc  1  to  d isc  6  re fer red  to  

fo r thwi th .  

(7 )  The cost  o f  th is  app l i ca t ion  a re  to  be  

borne by  the  th i rd ,  four th  and f i f th  respondent  

on  an  a t to rney and own c l ien t  sca le . . . ”  

Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  10 

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  thank you.   The warran t  o f  

a r res t ,  to  my unders tand ing ,  was  issued by  a  judge,  a  

co l league o f  jus t i ce ,  Sodwana(? ) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  see in  the  judgment  she sa id  the  

mag is t ra te ,  bu t  your  unders tand ing  is  co r rec t .  

MR GIGABA :    Oh,  I  thought  i t  was a  judge.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  i t  says  in  the  judgment ,  paragraph 

79,  the  mag is t ra te .  

MR GIGABA :    H ’m.   But  I  wou ld  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  never the less ,  a  jud ic ia l  o f f i cer.  20 

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :    I  wou ld  s t i l l  –  ja ,  tha t  i s  what  I  p robab ly  

meant  to  say a  jud ic ia l  o f f i c ia l  o f f i cer.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  
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MR GIGABA :    And in  my unders tand ing ,  there fore ,  I  do  no t  

know what  impact  o r  what  a re  t he  imp l i ca t ions o f  tha t .   

Second ly,  Cha i rperson,  the  –  paragraphs 5  and 6  shou ld  

then put  pa id  to  the  a l legat ion  tha t  there  was in fo rmat ion  

tha t  was ex t rac ted  and i f  there  was i t  shou ld  have been  

res tored as  the  re l ie f  suggests  and there fore  we shou ld  by  

now have the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  was conta ined in  d iscs  1  to  6 

and tha t  shou ld  te l l  us  what  i s  i t  tha t  had been ex t rac ted  

by  the  po l i ce  and  they shou ld  be  ab le  to  exp la in  why they 

wou ld  have ex t rac ted  tha t  in fo rmat ion  i f  any  o f  i t  had  10 

noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  case in  po in t .    

 Bu t  I  s t i l l  do  no t  unders tand wha t  th is  has to  do  

w i th  me because I  was not  invo lved in  th is  invest iga t ion .   I  

gave no ins t ruc t ions o f  what  must  be  ex t rac ted  because I  

d id  no t  know what  was be ing  ex t rac ted  and how i t  was 

go ing  to  ass i s t  the  invest iga t ion  on  the  consp i racy  to  k i l l  

me.    

 And I  a l so  s t i l l  be l ieve  tha t  I  shou ld  have been  

inv i ted  here ,  even the  comments  t ha t  were  made about  me 

and how those comments  la id  the  ground fo r  the  quest ions 20 

tha t  I  was to  face  because to  me th is  judgment  was  in  i t se l f  

a  cu r ious judgment  wh ich  se t  the  tone fo r  what  was to  be  

sa id  here  in  the  f i rs t  and supp lementary  a f f idav i t s  tha t  

have a rgued tha t  Ma lus i  has done A ,  B ,  C,  D but  

in fo rmat ion  is  no t  ava i lab le  because i t  was ex t rac ted  f rom 
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my phones.    

 But  what  in fo rmat ion  is  sa id  to  have been  

ex t rac ted ,  i t  i s  photographs.   Photographs tha t  a re  sa id  to  

have been ex t rac ted .   Photographs wh ich  are  ava i l ab le  on  

the  Twi t te r  account ,  on  the  Ins tagram account  o f  the  –  o f  

th is  w i tness.   Inso far  as  a l l  the  o ther  th ings tha t  she has  

sa id ,  the  ATM,  the  cash,  the  g i f t .    

 I  have sa t  here  –  and she has not  a rgued tha t  a l l  

o f  tha t  in fo rmat ion  or  suppor t  fo r  t ha t  in fo rmat ion  was a lso  

conta ined in  her  –  in  the  p ic tu res  tha t  were  ex t rac ted  f rom 10 

her  phone,  bu t  I  have d isputed a l l  o f  tha t  e labora te ly  and  

presented a  d i f fe ren t  vers ion  wh ich  demonst ra tes  tha t  the  

w i tness ac tua l l y  l ied  ex tens ive ly  i n  coming to  p resent  tha t  

case and tha t  her  be ing  here  has been done w i th  the  so le  

purpose o f  ma l ice  because o f  the  inab i l i t y  to  ex t rac t  f rom 

me the  –  what  she seeks on  the  mat te r  o f  our  d ivorce .    

 I  s t i l l  i ns is t  tha t  what  b rought  her  was mal ice  and  

b i t te rness  because i f  these i ssues tha t  a re  be ing  

canvassed here  are  anyth ing  to  go  by,  whatever  

in fo rmat ion  she c la ims was ex t rac ted  f rom her  phone was 20 

to  do  w i th  p ic tu res .   That  i s  what  she has sa id .   And 

there fo re ,  those  p ic tu res ,  she can go to  her  Ins tag ram 

account  and f ind  those p ic tu res .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Can I  then tu rn  to  a  

d i f fe ren t  top i c ,  Mr  G igaba?  And tha t  i s  the  ev idence o f  
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Wi tness 3 .    

MR GIGABA :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You have put  in  an  a f f idav i t ,  

respond ing  to  tha t .   So,  le t  me ask you.   Perhaps  we can  

open two f i les  a t  the  same t ime.   One a f f idav i t  o f  yours  

appears  in  the  f i le  tha t  you have open a t  page 536.    

CHAIRPERSON :    a re  we keep ing  the  cur ren t  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we are .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  536,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then we shou ld  have  another  

bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  second  bund le ,  i f  we  cou ld  –  

I  know Mr  G igaba has been prov ided w i th  i t  –  BB14(d) .   

That  i s  the  exh ib i t  tha t  conta ins  the  a f f idav i t s  o f  Wi tnesses  

1 ,  2  and 3 .   Do you have the  o the r  bund le?  

MR GIGABA :    No,  I  do  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Someone wi l l  he lp  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  somebody w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    I t  was here  yeste rday,  bu t  today i t  i s  no t  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i t  i s  beh ind  you,  I  th ink .   I t  m ight  be  

beh ind  you.  

MR GIGABA :    Oh.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   And cou ld  I  
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ask  you in  tha t  bund le ,  p lease,  Mr  G igaba,  to  tu rn  to  page  

–  these are  the  numbers  on  the  r igh t -hand s ide  –  page  

122?  

MR GIGABA :    Sor ry.   You are  now on th is  –  on  BB14?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB14.   B . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    R igh t  –  you say the  numbers  are  where?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    On the  r igh t -hand s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  the  on ly  numbers ,  hey,  the  red  

ones?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    You know,  some bund les  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    122?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    122,  r igh t  towards the  end,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  you proceed,  Mr  Myburgh.   What  

do  you say,  Mr  G igaba,  to  somebody who says,  to  the 

ex ten t  tha t  you say tha t  Ms Mngoma has come before  the  

Commiss ion  and sa id  a l l  these th ings tha t  you have sa id  

are  un t rue?  She has been d ishonest  and a  fab r ica ted  20 

s to r ies  because she wanted to  ex t rac t  a  se t t lement  f rom 

you,  a  d ivo rce  se t t lement  and she  d id  no t  succeed  and so  

she is  b i t te r.    

 What  do  you say  to  some who says bu t  i f  she  is  

the  wea l thy  woman tha t  you have  sa id  she is  o r  made her  
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to  be ,  why wou ld  she be so  b i t te r  about  fa i l ing  to  ex t rac t  

such a  se t t lement  f rom somebody,  and I  jus t  use  your  

words,  you sa id  you l i ve  a  modes t  l i fe?   What  do  you say 

to  somebody who  says tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  say,  look  a t  the  

character  o f  the  person.   Look a t  the  character  o f  the  

person.   She loves money.   She loves money and  wou ld  

take  money f rom anyone and demands i t .   And tha t  i s  why  

in  her  own submiss ion  she made,  among o thers ,  the  c la im 

tha t  I  was incor rec t  to  say tha t  she –  tha t  the  Nedbank  10 

deb i t  card  I  had g iven her  had R3 000 and she says what  

can anyone do w i th  R3 000?  And  I  responded by  say ing 

bu t  peop le  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe to  cor rec t  you,  I  th ink  she sa id  

she wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  do  anyth ing  w i th  R3 000.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   I t  goes to  te l l  you  the  character  o f  the 

person,  Cha i rpe rson.   In  ac tua l  f ac t  what  the  Cha i rperson 

is  say ing ,  and I  apprec ia te  the  cor rec t ion ,  goes to  p rove  20 

what  I  am say ing ,  tha t  she loves money and th inks  the  

more  money she can ex t rac t  the  be t te r  she can be.   When I  

met  her ,  she,  as  I  sa id ,  she po r t rayed th is  ex t ravagant  

l i fes ty le ,  person who had a  l o t  o f  cars ,  who apparent ly  a lso  

had an Aston Mar t in ,  unc les  tha t  were  r i ch ,  fa ther  tha t  was  
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r i ch  l i v ing  in  New York ,  she was  accustomed to  go ing  to  

New York .   She had s tud ied  a t  Oxford  Co l lege.   Th is  i s  the  

person who was used to  money and cannot  comprehend the  

idea o f  no t  hav ing  the  money.    

And,  as  I  sa id  yesterday,  she kept  ask ing  me about  

my pens ion  payouts  as  a  m in is te r ,  what  have you done w i th  

those?  Why can you not  use  them?  And I  kept  say ing  bu t  

I  invested  the  money fo r  the  fu tu re  and used some on lega l  

fees.   So she was demand ing tha t  th is  money be made 

ava i lab le  fo r  spend ing .  10 

 So tha t  anger ,  tha t  b i t te rness about  no t  be ing  ab le  

to  ex t rac t  more  se t t lement ,  inc lud ing  he r  in i t ia l  

unwi l l ingness when we s igned the  an te  nupt ia l  con t rac t  to  

ac tua l l y  consent  to  i t  p roves tha t  th is  i s  the  pe rson who  

came here ,  you know,  th is  i s  the  person who says when he  

was a  m in i s te r ,  he  used to  do  th is ,  he  used to  do  tha t  fo r  

me,  he  used to  g ive  me th i s  money,  g i ve  me tha t  money,  

buy me these bags and do tha t  and now tha t  he  is  no  

longer  a  m in is te r  and probab ly  no  longer  has the  ab i l i t y  to  

he lp  me a f fo rd  th is  t ype o f  l i f es ty le ,  I  shou ld  there fo re  20 

demand o f  th is  l i fes ty le  o r  o f  a  payment  tha t  w i l l  ass i s t  me  

to  cont inue l i v i ng  th is  l i fes ty le  go ing  fo rward  w i th  o r  

w i thout  h im.   That  she has money,  I  have got  no  doubt  

about  i t ,  she  does have money,  p len ty  o f  i t  and I  th ink  

when she was here  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  she d id  say  
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tha t  no ,  I  do  th is ,  I  do  tha t ,  a l l  the  fu rn i tu re  i s  m ine in  the  

house,  th is  man cannot  a f fo rd  anyth ing  anymore ,  bu t  th is  i s  

the  pe rson who loves money and wants  more  o f  i t  and i s  

angry  there fore  tha t  I  am say ing  tha t  I  cannot  a f fo rd  to  

spend a l l  my fu ture  sav ings today.   I  cannot  because I  do 

no t  know what  the  fu tu re  ho lds  fo r  me,  you know?   

As you know,  Cha i rperson,  I  work  fo r  the  A f r i can 

Nat iona l  Congress,  I  th ink  the  ANC’s  f inanc ia l  s i tua t i on  has 

been w ide ly  spoken about ,  I  am not  the  type o f  pe rson who  

shou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  spend a l l  the i r  l i f e  sav ings in  one  10 

day because I  do  no t  know what  the  fu tu re  ho lds  fo r  me,  I  

shou ld  s t i l l  be  ab le  to  invest  in  i t  and prepare  fo r  tha t  

fu tu re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  jus t  have one quest ion  tha t  I  

wanted to  ask  you in  tha t  regard ,  i f  I  may.   I  have noted  

tha t  your  ev idence tha t  Ms Mngoma was independent ly  

wea l thy  and tha t  she,  fo r  example ,  pa id  fo r  your  wedd ing  

because she was a  woman o f  means.   That  i s  no t  

someth ing  tha t  you dea l  w i th  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  I  d id  no t  p rov ide  de ta i l  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I  

s imp ly  d isputed her  fac ts  o r  he r  a l legat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You d isputed the  a l legat ion  tha t  you 

rece ived the  money f rom the  Guptas?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  my a f f idav i t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  

shou ld  be  read together  w i th  my tes t imony he re ,  I  p resume.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  i t  wou ld  be  but  I  leave Mr  Myburgh  

to  dec ide  whethe r  he  wants  to  ask  any fo l low-up quest ion  

or  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  i t  jus t  becomes an impor tan t  

theme a lmost  and  leg  o f  your  ev idence,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  beg your  pardon?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  i t  no t  an  impor tan t  theme or  leg  or  

your  ev idence tha t  Ms Mngoma is  i ndependent ly  wea l thy?  10 

MR GIGABA :   That  i s  what  I  have a lways unders tood,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  the  po in t  i s  tha t  i s  no t  dea l t  w i th  

a t  a l l  in  your  a f f idav i t .  

MR GIGABA :   But  my a f f idav i t  shou ld  be  read together  w i th  

my tes t imony he re .   In  the  a f f idav i t  I  cou ld  no t  go  on  to  

e labora te  ex tens i ve l y  a  number  o f  th ings,  I  jus t ,  as  I  say ,  

s imp ly  d isputed  the  a l legat ion  she was mak ing  about  

payments  fo r  the  wedd ing .   I  th ink  when I  s i t  here ,  I  have 

a lso  e labora ted  on a  number  o f  th ings wh ich  I  had le f t  

a lmost  hang ing  in  my a f f idav i t ,  no t  on ly  w i th  regard  to  th is  20 

one,  bu t  w i th  regard  to  many o thers .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And jus t  be fore  we move on,  can I  

jus t  make su re  tha t  I  unders tand .   Was i t  your  ev idence 

tha t  Ms Mngoma inher i ted  money f rom a  deceased a  

f iancé?  
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MR GIGABA :   Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  unders tood,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And when was tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  do  no t  know,  I  d id  no t  ask  her  about  her  

f inances,  d id  no t  d iscuss he r  f inances w i th  her  bu t  the  

f iancé passed away I  th ink  in  2011  or  2010,  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  i f  we then can dea l  w i th  

w i tness 3 .   Mr  G igaba,  i t  m igh t  be  eas ies t  fo r  you to  have 

to  have the  two f i les  open together .  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  I  do .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You have  tha t .   I  want  to  go  to  10 

w i tness 3 ’s  a f f idav i t  and then jus t  ask  you to  comment  as  

we go a long.   I f  we can p i ck  up  p lease a t  page  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  maybe th i s  wou ld  be  a  

conven ien t  t ime to  jus t  ask  whether  Mr  G igaba ’s  counse l  

has cross-examined w i tness 3 .   I  have fo rgo t ten .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  he  has cross-examined  w i tness 

3 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    He has.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   There  a re  jus t  so  

many w i tnesses who have come before  me.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Abso lu te ly .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  I  was to ld  recent ly  tha t  i t  i s  more  

than 300 w i tnesses s ince  August  2018.   Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   Cou ld  we  s tar t  a t  

parag raph 6 ,  page 123?  Wi tness 3  says:  
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“Dur ing  2005 I  was ass igned together  w i th  a  

co l league as  a  CPO to  pro tec t  the  then Deputy  

Min is te r  o f  Home Af fa i rs . ”  

And then a t  7 :  

“Dur ing  the  pe r iod  o f  p rov id ing  CPO serv i ces  fo r  

G igaba I  accompan ied h im on a  number  o f  

occas ions on  v i s i t s  to  Sahara  Computer  bus iness 

address in  Midrand.   A t  the  t ime I  was not  aware  

tha t  Sahara  Computers  was owned by  the  Gupta  

fami ly  o r  in  fac t  who the  Guptas  a re . ”  10 

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   Cha i rperson,  I  have conceded tha t  I  d id  

know the  Guptas ,  now tha t  we  are  go ing  back  to  that  

quest ion  aga in ,  tha t  I  d id  know the  Guptas  long  before  

2005 and tha t  I  wou ld  have on a  few occas ions go  in to  

Sahara  Computers  jus t  to  see Mr  A jay .   I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  

very  few occas ions because I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  – i t  wou ld  

be  two or  th ree  occas ions.   I  remember  the  o the r  t ime I  

was jus t  pass ing  th rough Midrand and I  was ta lk ing  to  h im 

and he sa id  look,  we are  hav ing  lunch.   I  sa id  oh ,  good,  le t  20 

me come have lunch w i th  you.   Ja ,  so  th is  I  have conceded  

to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Al r igh t  and –  so  what  was the  

purpose o f  these meet ings w i th  A jay  Gupta?  

MR GIGABA :   They were  no t  meet ings,  S i r .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l . . .  

MR GIGABA :   I t  was jus t  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Lunches.  

MR GIGABA :   V is i t s ,  ja .   Noth ing  more  than jus t  a  –  as  I  

have sa id  be fore ,  soc ia l  meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Soc ia l  v is i t s .  

MR GIGABA :   Ja ,  no  meet ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So wi tness 3  says tha t  he  

accompanied you on  a  number  o f  occas ions,  as  I  

unders tand your  ev idence,  you wou ld  say we l l ,  i t  was a  few 10 

t imes,  coup le  o f  t imes,  two o r  th ree  t imes.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.   I t  wou ld  be  two or  th ree  t imes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  he  says in  parag raph 7  

dur ing  the  pe r iod  o f  p rov id ing  CPO serv i ces  fo r  Mr  G igaba,  

tha t  per iod  spanned how many years?   He res igned in  –  

was 2008?  I  am t ry ing  to  see wha t  the  –  what  per iod  he  is  

ta lk ing  about ,  so  when we ta lk  about  a  number  o f  

occas ions o r  th ree  occas ions in  what  per iod .  

MR GIGABA :   I t  is  a  pe r iod  o f  th ree  years ,  Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  a  per iod  o f  th ree  years .   Okay,  

a l r igh t ,  so  tha t  is  the  per iod  tha t  you are  ta lk ing  about  

when you say he  accompanied you  on a  few occas ions.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  be tween 2005 and 2008.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you then s topped go ing  to  v is i t  

Mr  A jay  Gupta  a t  Sahara  Compute rs  a f te r  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   You know,  i t  was not  a  consc ious v is i t  to  

Sahara  so  tha t  a t  one s tage you s top  bu t  a f te r  tha t ,  yes ,  I  

d id  no t  go  to  Sahara  Computers ,  I  th ink  –  because,  as  I  

say ,  i t  was not  fo r  purposes o f  hav ing  meet ings there ,  i t  

was jus t  soc ia l  v is i t s  dur ing  lunch  breaks when I  a lso  had 

t ime or  someth ing  l i ke  tha t ,  bu t . . .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  wou ld  you descr ibe  Mr  A jay  

Gupta ,  g iven the  ev idence tha t  you have jus t  g iven,  as  a  

f r iend o f  yours?  

MR GIGABA :   He was.   He was.   Not  –  I  mean –  he  was,  

Cha i rperson,  a  f r iend,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  paragraph 8 :  

“ I  res igned f rom the  SAPS and as  CPO for  G igaba  

dur ing  2008 to  jo in  a  pr iva te  group o f  compan ies . ”  

Le t  us  p i ck  up  a t  9 :  

“A round Apr i l  2013 I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom an o f f i c ia l  20 

f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises who 

inqu i red  i f  I  wou ld  be  in te res ted  to  meet  w i th  the  

m in is te r  regard ing  V IP  pro tec t ion  serv i ces  requ i red  

by  the  m in is te r .   A t  the  t ime Gigaba was the  

Min is te r  o f  DPE. ”  
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Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  do  no t  know wh ich  o f f i c ia l  was tha t  and i t  

does not  say  e i ther  and there  wou ld  be  no purpose  in  h im 

meet ing  w i th  me  i f  there  was any need to  p rov ide  V IP 

pro tec t ion  serv ices  to  me because V IP pro tec t ion  serv i ces  

are  no t  d iscussed w i th  the  m in is te r ,  you get  p rov ided w i th  

them.   I  th ink  what  he  is  ta lk ing  about  was a  ca l l  because  

aga in  a t  the  t ime I  had rece ived  secur i t y  th rea ts  and the  

po l i ce  were  in  the  process o f  bo th  invest iga t ing  and  

look ing  fo r  add i t iona l  secur i t y  to  p rov ide  me.   They 10 

ind ica ted  a t  the  t ime tha t  they d id  no t  have personne l  and 

so  what  the  Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f  in  my o f f i ce  d id  was to  

meanwhi le  look  a t  whether  we can  get  ass is tance f rom one  

o f  the  SOEs and one w i th  secur i t y  personne l  seemed to  be  

Transnet  and tha t  i s  what  –  tha t  i s  the  in i t ia t i ve  he  then  

took to  ta l k  to  Transnet  to  p rov ide  us  w i th  temporary  

secur i t y  serv ices  un t i l  such a  t ime tha t  the  po l i ce  cou ld  

g ive  us  add i t iona l  po l i ce  backup.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He goes on to  say a t  10 :  

“ I  subsequent ly  a t tended a  meet ing  w i th  G igaba and 20 

a  manager  i n  h i s  o f f i ce  in  P re tor ia .   Dur ing  the  

meet ing  the  manager  d iscussed Gigaba ’s  secur i t y  

p ro f i le  and the  reasons fo r  add i t iona l  p ro tec t ion  

serv i ces  requ i red  by  the  m in is te r .   He ind ica ted  tha t  

I  wou ld  be  requ i red  to  p rov ide  c lose  p ro tec t ion  
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veh ic le  backup dut ies  to  the  m in i s te r  together  w i th  

V IP  SAPS o f f i cers  a l ready ass igned to  p ro tec t  the  

m in is te r .   I  ind ica ted  to  the  m in is te r  and the  

manager  tha t  I  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  work  fo r  

the  m in is te r. ”  

I  th ink  you have probab ly  a l ready covered th is  g round.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes and I  have responded in  my a f f idav i t  to  

say  tha t  such a  meet ing  d id  no t  take  p lace in  my presence  

because I  wou ld  have no need to  d iscuss my secur i t y  de ta i l  

w i th  anyone.   The prac t ice  in  government  has a lways been  10 

tha t  the  secur i t y  de ta i l  o f  the  pr inc ipa l  i s  no t  d i scussed  

w i th  h im.   The on ly  t ime they come to  you is  i f  they  are  

in fo rming tha t  so  and so  has now been ass igned to  work  

w i th  you o r  they are  be ing  w i thdrawn and rep laced by  

somebody e l se .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And,  Mr  G igaba,  jus t  fo r  the  purpose 

o f  the  record ,  tha t  –  when you re fer  to  your  a f f idav i t ,  you 

make tha t  s ta tement  as  I  have i t  in  paragraph 14,  i s  tha t  

r igh t ,  o f  page 540? 

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  we can car ry  on  a t  paragraph  

11,  says:  

“Somet ime in  May 2013 I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom the  

o f f i c ia l  f rom Transnet  who inv i ted  me to  a t tend an  

in te rv iew wi th  Genera l  Rodney Poka,  the  genera l  
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manager   fo r  secur i t y  a t  Transnet .   I  a t tended the  

in te rv iew and was o f fe red  the  pos i t ion  o f  CPO fo r  

execut ive  d i rec to rs  a t  Transnet .   Two days la te r  I  

rece ived an o f fe r  o f  employment .   I  accepted the  

appo in tment  w i th  e f fec t  f rom 1  June 2013. ”  

Paragraph 12:  

“Dur ing  the  f i rs t  month  o f  my appo in tment  a t  

Transnet  a  co l league and I  a t tended secur i t y  

t ra in ing  course  a t  Transnet  t ra in ing  campus. ”  

Paragraph 13:  10 

“ In  Ju l y  2013,  shor t l y  a f te r  comp le t ing  the  course  

my co l league and I  were  in fo rmed by  Poka tha t  we  

were  seconded to  the  DPE in  o rde r  to  per fo rm CPO 

for  G igaba,  a  veh ic le  backup  fo r  suppor t  fo r   

G igaba ’s  SAPS VIP  o f f i cer . ”  

Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    The deta i l s  o f  th is  I  am not  aware  o f .   What  

I  can conf i rm is  tha t  he  was ass igned to  back me up.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  14  he  says:  

“Dur ing  December  2013 two add i t iona l  SAPS 20 

o f f i c ia ls  were  ass igned to  ass i s t  w i th  the  V IP 

pro tec t ion  o f  G igaba.  As a  consequence ou r  

serv i ces  were  no  longer  requ i red  and our  

secondment  to  DPE came to  an  end a t  the  end o f  

December  2013. ”  
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So  as  I  have i t  and I  you have sa id  th is  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  

w i tness 3  prov ided you w i th  these se rv i ces  f rom Ju ly  to  

December  2013,  s ix  months  or  so ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then under  the  head ing  CPO 

Serv i ces  to  Min is te r  G igaba a t  pa ragraph 15:  

“ In  o rde r  to  p rov ide  the  c lose  pro tec t ion  and veh ic le  

backup suppor t  fo r  G igaba,  my co l league and I  were  

each i ssued w i th  a  Chevro le t  Aveo ren ta l  veh ic le  

f rom Transnet . ”  10 

Do you have any  comment  on  th i s?   I t  i s  no t  o f  par t i cu la r  

impor tance.  

MR GIGABA :   No ,  I  do  no t  have any comment  on  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  pa ragraph 16  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR GIGABA :   I  suppose these were  too ls  o f  t rade ra ther  

than cars ,  veh ic les  i ssued to  them for  the i r  p r iva te  use.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   At  16 :  

“As par t  o f  our  veh ic le  backup du t ies  my co l league  

and I  wou ld  be  fo l low ing the  m in is te r ’s  o f f i c ia l  BMW 20 

veh ic le  a t  c lose  range,  a  schedu led  dest ina t ion ,  in  

one o f  our  Chevro le t  veh ic les .   The min is te r ’ s  two  

SAPS VIP  o f f i cers  wou ld  be  t rave l l ing  w i th  h im in  

the  o f f i c ia l  veh ic le . ”  

Your  comment  on  tha t?  
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MR GIGABA :   That  i s  t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 17:  

“Usua l ly  on  a  Fr iday a f te rnoon G igaba ’s  pe rsona l  

ass is tan t  wou ld  prov ide  e i ther  my co l league or  

myse l f  w i th  a  pr in tou t  o f  the  m in is te r ’s  d ia ry  fo r  the  

fo l low ing week.   The d ia ry  wou ld  in fo rm us o f  the  

m in is te r ’ s  meet ings and movements  fo r  the  next  

week.   I f  meet ings or  venues changes the  PA wou ld  

prov ide  us  w i th  an  updated d ia ry  p r in tou t  o r  she 

wou ld  in fo rm us ve rba l l y  o f  new meet ing  10 

dest ina t ions. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   That  wou ld  be  t rue ,  I  suppose,  because th is  

was an ar rangement  be tween the  PA and the  pro tec t ion  

serv i ces  so  I  wou ld  no t  know whether  i t  i s  t rue  or  no t  bu t  I  

p resume i t  i s  t rue  because they wou ld  need to  know about  

my movements  and my schedu les .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a t  paragraph 18:  

“ I t  somet imes happened tha t  the  m in is te r  wou ld  

in fo rm us on  shor t  no t ice  tha t  he  w i l l  be  go ing  to  20 

unschedu led  des t ina t ions and/or  o f f i c ia l  meet ings.   

Some ins tances tha t  I  can reca l l  I  w i l l  d iscuss la te r  

in  th is  s ta tement . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  i t  o f ten  happens.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 19:  

“As pa r t  o f  the  CPO and veh ic le  backup dut ies  my 

co l league and I  usua l l y  d id  reconna issance a t  the  

venues where  meet ings to  be  he ld  pr io r  to  the  

m in is te r ’ s  a r r i va l  in  o rder  to  ensure  tha t  h is  sa fe t y  

was not  compromised.   In  ins tances where  the  

m in is te r  a t tended unschedu led  meet ings pr io r  

reconna issance wou ld  no t  have been poss ib le . ”  

Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   That  i s  a lso  probab ly  t rue .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then under  the  head ing  

G igaba ’s  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence,  paragraph 20:  

I  can reca l l  tha t  dur ing  the  pe r iod  Ju ly  to  December  

2013 I  escor ted  the  m in is te r  as  par t  o f  h is  convoy 

on unschedu led  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence in  

Saxonwold  Dr ive ,  Johannesburg ,  in  approx imate l y  

s ix  o r  seven ins tances.   Dur ing  the  v is i t s  I  d rove the  

backup veh ic le  and fo l lowed  Gigaba ’s  o f f i c ia l  

veh ic le  i n to  the  res idence.   On one occas ion ,  

however ,  I  d rove the  m in is te r  persona l l y  to  the 20 

Gupta  res idence w i thout  h is  convoy. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  th ink  tha t  I  a lso  have re fu ted  on the  bas i s  

tha t  dur ing  tha t  per iod  I  was very  busy w i th  the  e lec t ions  

programme,  so  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  v is i ted  the  Gupta  
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res idence a t  the  t ime,  i t  was on ly  once or  tw ice  and i t  was  

not  the  seven o r  e igh t  t imes tha t  he  is  re fe r r ing  to  and no 

occas ion  d id  he  accompany me a lone to  the  res idence.   

You know,  i t  i s  qu i te  pecu l ia r  how he descr ibes th i s  

occas ion  o f  h im accompany ing  me a lone,  tha t  I  go t  in to  my  

res idence to  re f resh,  I  asked h im  to  wa i t  ou ts ide .   What  

re f resh ing  was th is  supposed to  be?  I  mean,  what  d id  

re f resh ing  mean?   And then he was asked to  wa i t  fo r  me 

a lone and to  d r ive  me back to  Johannesburg  f rom Pre tor ia .   

Why was th is  separa te  f rom the  o ther  occas ions,  f rom the  10 

o ther  a l leged seven or  e igh t  occas ions be fore?  So tha t  too 

is  no t  t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  and  then he sa id  a t  20 .1  and  

20.2  tha t :  

“None o f  these  v is i t s  were  recorded in  the  

m in is te r ’ s  d ia ry .  

And then sub 2 :  

“By way o f  ins t ruc t ion  o f  the  m in is te r  I  d id  no t  

record  t r ips  to  the  Gupta  res idence in  the  log  book  

o f  my a l loca ted  veh ic le  as  those were  unof f i c ia l  20 

t r ips . ”  

I  th ink  I  need to  po in t  ou t  tha t  the re  was cross-examinat ion  

around th is  and  tha t  u l t imate ly  in  re -examinat ion  what  

w i tness 3  sa id  was tha t :  

“Some o f  the  t r ips…”  
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We a re  ta lk ing  about  the  logbooks.  

“…were reco rded  ear l ie r  un t i l  the  m in is te r  in fo rms  

me tha t  we shou ld  no t  record  them and the  

logbooks were  kept  a t  our  head o f f i ce . ”  

I s  what  he  sa id  in  re -examinat ion .   And then w i th  the  d ia ry  

he  sa id  tha t  the  v is i t s  to  Saxonwo ld  were  no t  on  the  d ia ry .   

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   Dur ing  the  examinat ion  –  the  cross-

examinat ion  –  okay,  le t  me s tar t  w i th  say ing  th i s  –  w i tness  

3  cont rad i c ts  h imse l f  qu i te  ex tens i ve l y  bo th  in  th is  a f f idav i t  10 

as  we l l  as  dur ing  the  cross-examinat ion .   In  the  a f f idav i t  he 

says none  o f  the  t r ips  were  recorded in  the i r  logbook 

because they were  unof f i c ia l  t r ips  and then he changes 

and says they were  no t  recorded in  the  logbook because I  

ins t ruc ted  them not  to .   Now wh ich  one is  i t  tha t  i s  the 

case in  th is  ins tance?   

Dur ing  the  c ross-examinat ion  the  quest ion  was 

asked o f  h im  i f  I  had  any r i gh t  to  ask  them not  to  record  

th ings i n  the i r  l ogbooks.   The i r  logbooks s tayed w i th  them,  

they d id  no t  s tay  w i th  me.   I  had no r igh t  to  comment  on  20 

po l i ce  bus iness and even on the  bus iness o f  the  peop le  

who are  CPOs because a t  the  t ime he was no longer  a  

member  o f  the  po l i ce  se rv i ce .   So  

 So w i tness 3  in  h is  eagerness to  come and present  

a  fa lsehood cont rad ic t s  h imse l f  and eventua l l y  adm i ts  tha t  
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there  was no ins t ruc t ion  they rece ived f rom me tha t  there  

were  no  logbooks tha t  they kept  and the  fac t  tha t  he  d id  

no t  keep the  logbooks because  he says they kept  the 

logbooks a t  the i r  head o f f i ce  bu t  they were  no t  asked –  I  

mean,  bu t  they had been asked by  me not  to  record  the  

t r ips  to  the  Guptas ,  to  the  Gupta  res idence on ly .   Now he 

then admi ts  tha t  there  was no ins t ruc t ion  tha t  had been  

g iven by  me not  to  record  the  logbook because in  ac tua l  

fac t  i t  was not  my bus iness,  i t  was the  bus iness o f  the  

pro tec t ion  serv i ces  to  keep the  logbooks and to  record  10 

th ings wh ich  they  needed to  record .    

 As  he  says in  20 .2 ,  they though t  they shou ld  no t  

record  what  were  unof f i c ia l  t r ips  and tha t  i s  what  was 

happen ing .   I f  I  was hav ing  an  unschedu led  engagement  

wh ich  was outs ide  the  o f f i c ia l  l i ne  o f  bus iness ,  they 

obv ious ly  wou ld  no t  record  those –  o r  le t  me  not  say  

obv ious ly  because I  do  no t  know –  they probab ly  wou ld  no t  

record  those and  fo r  reasons bet te r  known to  them,  i t  had 

noth ing  to  do  w i th  any ins t ruc t ion  f rom me.   I  re i te ra te  tha t  

I  had no power  to  dec ide  what  p ro tec t ion  serv i ces  record  or  20 

do  not  reco rd ,  what  they do  in  the  l ine  o f  o f f i c ia l  bus iness 

or  no t  because u l t imate ly ,  as  we  were  a lways ins t ruc ted ,  

they do  not  repor t  to  us ,  they on ly  p rov ide  a  pro tec t ion  

serv i ce  to  us .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  Mr  G igaba,  in  the  s ix  month  
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per iod ,  Ju l y  to  December  2013,  you say you went  to  the 

Guptas  once or  tw ice?  

MR GIGABA :   Once or  tw ice .   I  was busy w i th  e lec t ions 

and so  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   So  I  unders tand i t  tha t  what  

you mean by  tha t  i s  you wou ld  usua l l y  in  a  s i x  month  

per iod  go  more  o f ten  than tha t  bu t  you on ly  went  once o r  

tw ice  because you were  busy w i th  e lec t ions.  

MR GIGABA :   That  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing ,  Cha i rperson,  I  

s tand by  the  s ta tement  I  sa id  on  the  f i rs t  day  o f  my 10 

appearance befo re  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  what  were  you do ing  

a t  the  Guptas  on  th is  one or  two occas ions dur ing  th is  s ix  

month  per iod?  

MR GIGABA :   As  I  have ind ica ted  before  and even  today,  

these were  jus t  soc ia l  v i s i t s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Al r igh t  and when you say soc ia l  v is i t s  

wou ld  tha t  have occur red  dur ing  the  week o r  the  weekend 

or…? 

MR GIGABA :   I  do  no t  exact ly  reca l l .   I f  we are  ta lk ing  20 

about  th roughout  the  per iod ,  some occas ions wou ld  have 

been on weekends.   I  remember  one,  the  D iwa l i  ce lebra t ion  

tha t  was on a  Saturday even ing  but  there  wou ld  be  

occas ions when  in  the  a f te rnoon on my way f rom 

Johannesburg  I  wou ld  s top  over  jus t  fo r  a  chat  and then 
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p roceed back home or  to  another  dest ina t ion  I  was  headed  

to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a t  paragraph 21:  

“On such occas ions I  wou ld  be  wa i t ing  in  my veh ic le  

in  the  park ing  area ins ide  the  premises wh i le  

G igaba a t tended meet ings ins ide  the  house. ”  

Comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   Wi tness 3  wou ld  no t  know what  I  am do ing ,  

so  to  c la im I  was a t tend ing  meet ing  is  a  p resumpt ion  on  h is  

par t  because he  wou ld  no t  know what  I  am do ing  and I  10 

wou ld  no t  say  to  them tha t  guys,  I  need to  a t tend a  

meet ing  or  I  have  been a t tend ing  a  meet ing .   He wou ld  jus t  

be  presuming tha t  th is  i s  what  has  been happen ing  but  he  

wou ld  no t  know what  the  na tu re  o f  the  v is i ta t ion  was .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  22 :  

“Whi ls t  wa i t ing  in  my veh ic le  fo r  G igaba to  re turn  

f rom meet ings ins ide  the  Gupta  res idence I  no ted  

on d i f fe ren t  occas ions peop le  ar r i v ing  or  leav ing  the  

premises tha t  I  recogn ised.   Ind iv idua ls  in  th i s  

regard  inc lude B r ian  Mole fe ,  Matshe la  Koko,  Ben  20 

Ngubane and L inda Mabaso. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   You know,  aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  I  wonder  

about  the  t ru th fu lness o f  th is .   Mr  Matshe la  Koko in  2013  

was not  a  CEO a t  Eskom,  he  was not ,  so  th is  i s  a  l ie .   Dr  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 57 of 190 
 

Ben Ngubane,  I  th ink  a t  the  t ime in  2013,  was an 

Ambassador  ab road.   You cannot  be  bo th  abroad  and  in  

Johannesburg .   I t  i s  a  l ie .   Mr  L inda Mabaso was  not  the  

Cha i rperson o f  Transnet  a t  the  t ime nor  was he on the  

Board  o f  Transne t .  

 Wi tness 3  wou ld  no t  have known these peop le ,  

L inda Mbaso,  Dr  Ben Ngubane,  Matshe la  Koko,  they wou ld  

no t  have known them,  so  th is  i s  a  l ie .   As  fo r  Mr  Br ian  

Mole fe  I  do  no t  know,  I  do  no t  know i f  he  ever  saw them or  

no t  bu t  the  res t  o f  the  s to ry,  the  major i t y  o f  the  s to ry  i s  jus t  10 

a  l ie .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps,  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you to  

comment  on  th is ,  you w i l l  reca l l  Mr  Cha i rpe rson as  I  

remember  the  same issue arose  cer ta in ly  in  re la t ion  to  

Koko and Mbaso where  Mr  S ingh was g i v ing  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  remember,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you then ho ld  ca l led  upon us  to  

make contac t  w i th  Wi tness 3  th rough h i s  a t to rneys to  pu t  in  

an  a f f idav i t  to  address th is .   He subsequent ly  d id  p roduce  

an a f f idav i t  you w i l l  reca l l  where  he  sa id  he  accep ted tha t  20 

Koko and Mbaso d id  no t  ho ld  the  pos i t ions  a t  the  t ime but  

in  e f fec t ,  he  pu t  names to  the  faces la te r  on .   So I  jus t  

want  to  pu t  tha t  to  you Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA:    He accepted,  what  you te l l ing  me? 

CHAIRPERSON:    What  MR Myburgh i s  say ing  i s  tha t  Mr  
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Ano j  S ingh and  I  th ink  Mr  Koko or  jus t  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh…[ in tervene ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh made essent ia l l y  t he  same 

po in t  tha t  Mr  G igaba is  mak ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  made i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  then there  was an invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  ar is ing  ou t  o f  Mr  S ingh,  ra is ing  

the  same issues  tha t  you are  ra is ing  about  Wi tness 3  

say ing  he  had seen cer ta in  peop le ,  I  d i rec ted  tha t  the  lega l  

team shou ld  ob ta in  an  a f f idav i t  f rom Wi tness 3  to  address  10 

the  issues tha t  Mr  Ano j  S ingh ra ised,  wh ich  a re  s im i la r  to  

the  issues you a re  ra is ing  to  say,  bu t  how wou ld  he  have 

known these peop le  because a t  tha t  t ime,  they were  no t  

ho ld ing  cer ta in  pos i t ions  or  were  no t  so  pub l i c .   

So Mr  Myburgh  is  say ing  tha t  an  a f f idav i t  was  

obta ined f rom Wi tness 3  to  dea l  w i th  those i ssues and one  

o f  the  th ings he  sa id  was tha t  he  conceded tha t  a t  tha t  

t ime,  say,  fo r  example ,  Ms L inda  Mbaso I  th ink  was not  

Cha i rperson o f  Transnet  a t  the  t ime,  Mr  Koko I  th ink  was  

not  CEO of  Eskom at  the  t ime but  he  sa id  he  -  when he 20 

la te r  go t  to  know the i r  names –  he  connected the i r  names 

w i th  the  faces he  had seen before .   

So in  fa i rness,  Mr  Myburgh is  jus t  say ing  to  you,  

here  is  how Mr  –  or  Wi tness 3  has responded to  concerns 

or  so ,  such as  the  ones you are  ra is ing ,  you might  w ish  to  
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say  someth ing  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  i s  improbab le  Cha i rperson,  even i t  was in  

2013 and he tes t i f ied  in  2020 to  have seen peop le 's  faces 

once o r  tw ice ,  they were  no t  even  in  the  pub l i c  domain  a t  

the  t ime,  fo r  you  to  remember  photograph ica l l y  faces you  

have seen amongst  many faces tha t  you see and sudden ly  

when they appear  on  the  pub l i c  domain ,  you then say I  

recogn ise  th is  face ,  i t  i s  improbab le .    

But  cer ta in ly  he  wou ld  say so ,  tha t  I  recogn ise  the  

faces in  o rder  to  g ive  credence to  the  s ta tement ,  to  the 10 

fa lsehood he had made in  h i s  a f f idav i t .   I t  bas ica l l y  was  

s tand ing  by  h i s  a f f idav i t  by  now t ry ing  to  come up w i th  a  

new tw is t  tha t  I  remembered the  face .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  sor ry,  Cha i rperson pe rhaps jus t  

fo r  the  sake o f  the  record .  You ment ioned Mr  Koko,  o f  

course  tha t  wou ld  have been in  the  Eskom s t ream but  to  

the  best  o f  my knowledge th i s  -  Mr  Koko ’s  imp l ica t ion  by  

Wi tness 3  was put  to  Mr  Koko and Mr  Koko h imse l f  then 

ra ised the  same po in t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  do  no t  want  to  be  m isquoted,  I  

th ink  S ingh and Koko both  ra i sed  the  same i ssue but  the  

a f f idav i t  tha t  I  am speak ing  o f  came –  i t  a rose f rom the  

ev idence o f  Mr  S ingh.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  a t  paragraph 23 Mr  G igaba:  

“On one such occas ion  I  saw fo rmer  Pres ident  

Jacob Zuma’s  convoy leav ing  the  Gupta  res idence. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    On the  one or  two occas ions I  had been 

there  I  never  saw Pres ident  Zuma’s  convoy leav ing  the  

Gupta  res idence.   In  ac tua l  fac t ,  I  have never  seen the  

Pres ident ,  P res ident  Zuma’s  convoy ever  a t  o r  a r r i v ing  o r  

leav ing  the  Gupta  res idence and i f  Mr  –  Wi tness 3  saw i t ,  i t  10 

was dur ing  h i s  own pr iva te  v i s i t  no t  dur ing  the  t ime when I  

was the re  and i f  h is  re fe r r ing  to  the  ins tances when he  

went  there  w i th  me,  no t  t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a t  pa ragraph 24:  

“Dur ing  v is i t s  to  the  Gupta  res idence,  I  cou ld  sense  

tha t  G igaba was nervous as  on  ar r i va l  a t  the  venue,  

he  wou ld  ge t  ou t  o f  the  o f f i c ia l  veh ic le  ve ry  qu ick ly  

and a lmost  run  towards the  door  o f  the  res idence. ”  

MR GIGABA:    Th is  i s  a  l ie ;  i t  i s  a  l ie .   I  th ink  th is  quest ion  

was put  to  h im what  I  have been nervous about ,  so  I  wou ld  20 

get  ou t  o f  the  car  and s tar t  runn ing  towards the  door.   

What  shou ld  I  do  when I  was com ing out  o f  the  res idence 

wou ld  I  a lso  be  runn ing  or  wa lk ing ,  wou ld  I  s t i l l  be  nervous 

or  as  he  c la ims I  wou ld  be  happy tha t  now I  had money.   

Th is  i s  -  i t  i s  r id icu lous Cha i rpe rson to  pu t  i t  in  
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b lun t  te rms,  because th is  i s  the  same person –  now what  

wou ld  I  be  nervous about  in  2013 when he knew tha t  these 

are  peop le  tha t  I  had known pr io r  to  201,  what  wou ld  I  now 

sudden ly  be  nervous about .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then i f  we go  to  

parag raph 25 under  the  head ing ,  cashed ca r r ied  by  

G igaba,  Wi tness 3  says:  

“Dur ing  the  same per iod  tha t  I  worked fo r  G igaba I  

no t iced tha t  he  used to  car ry  la rge  amounts  o f  cash 

w i th  h im and then I  w ish  to  h igh l igh t  the  fo l low ing  10 

ins tances. ”  

But  Cha i rperson,  I  see i t  i s  quar te r  past  11 ,  I  do  no t  know 

i f  you want  to  take  a  break because th is  i s  obv ious l y  the  

mater ia l  par t  o f  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  see  tha t  the  par t  tha t  i s  le f t  i s  

jus t  a  few paragraphs.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  want  to  f in ish ,  then we take the  

break,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  he says a t  25 :  

“ I  w ish  to  h igh l igh t  the  fo l low ing  ins tances in  th is  

regard . ”  

26 :  
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“One day I  was present  when Gigaba opened the  

boot  o f  the  o f f i c i a l  veh ic le  to  take  out  money to  buy 

lunch fo r  us  [ the  SAPS o f f i c ia ls  and CPO’s ] .   Ins ide  

the  boot  was a  t rave l  bag wh ich  he  opened and I  

cou ld  c lear ly  see tha t  the  bag was s tacked w i th  

bund les  o f  R200  notes  t ied  w i th  rubber  bands.   I  

was shocked to  see tha t  G igaba was t rave l l ing  w i th  

tha t  much cash in  the  boot  o f  th is  veh ic le . ”  

Perhaps we shou ld  take  these each one a t  a  t ime.   What  i s  

your  comment  in  re la t ion  to  paragraph 26? 10 

MR GIGABA:   Th is  aga in  Cha i rperson is  rea l l y  

nonsens ica l .  You know,  to  s ta r t  wi th  I  have never  car r ied  

these la rge  sums o f  money in  the  boot  o f  my car.  I  th ink  I  

s ta ted  th is  p rev ious l y  and I  want  to  re i te ra te  i t  and i f  you  

have so  much money in  the  boot  o f  your  ca r,  you wou ld  no t  

open tha t  back i n  f ron t  o f  peop le ,  even i f  they  are  your  

c lose  pro tec tors ,  because you wou ld  want  to  concea l  th is  

and,  you know,  you wou ld  want  to  keep i t ,  you  know pre t ty  

much sa fe  so  tha t  nobody knows tha t  you are  car ry ing  

these la rge  amounts  o f  money.   20 

 Second ly,  Cha i rperson you know,  why wou ld  I  have 

to  take  money ou t  o f  the  boot  o f  the  car  to  buy lunch,  how 

much is  lunch?  How much is  lunch?  I t  i s  t rue  tha t  I  used  

to  ask  when I  t rave l led  w i th  my pro tec tors ,  I  s t i l l  do  so  

even now,  when I  go  to  have lunch whethe r  a lone or  in  a  
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g roup,  o r  among  a  group o f  f r iends,  I  wou ld  say to  them,  

p lease order  and  te l l  the  wa i te r  o r  the  wa i t ron ,  to  inc lude  

your  b i l l  i n  my b i l l ,  I  w i l l  pay.   

And in  ins tances is  where  on  a  few occas ions when 

I  wou ld  no t  be  ea t ing ,  I  wou ld  say ea t  here  i s  the  ca rd ,  

here  is  the  p in  number,  take  fo r  your  lunch when you a re  

done.  And t rue  to  na tu re ,  they do  not  o rder  –  I  mean we  

wou ld  be  go ing  to  res taurants ,  you know,  no t  your  very  

expens ive  res tau rants  and they wou ld  no t  o rder  the  most  

expens ive  mea ls ,  they wou ld  orde r  a  mea l  enough even i f  i t  10 

were  four  peop le ,  i t  wou ld  be  500 or  s l igh t l y  above tha t .   I t  

does not  need you to  go  to  the  boot  o f  the  car  to  fe tch  

money.  

You and as  say I  wou ld  g i ve  them my card  and i f  –  

and  on  cer ta in  occas ions I  wou ld  j us t  take  out  maybe R500  

or  R600 and say guys,  have someth ing  to  ea t  and then we  

w i l l  con t inue w i th  whatever  we are  do ing .  But  in  most  

ins tances,  I  wou ld  say to  them order  someth ing  to  ea t ,  te l l  

the  wa i t ron  tha t  your  b i l l  must  be  inc luded in  my b i l l  and  

we w i l l  pay  fo r  i t  here .  20 

So,  th is  th ing  tha t  i s  be ing  sa id  on  paragraph 26 is  

a  b ig  l ie  and when Mr  Wi tness 3  was asked about  th is  he  

d id  no t  know whether  th is  was a  t rave l  bag because in  -  

when he gave tes t imony,  he  sa id  i t  was a  spor ts  bag .   Then 

when he was cross-examined,  he  sa id  i t  was both  a  t rave l  
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bag,  a  spor ts  bag,  wh ich  c lear l y  ind i ca tes  tha t  here  is  

somebody who is  here  to  l ie  and there fore  in  the i r  ly ing  

they fo rge t  what  they have sa id  and what  s to ry  they have 

g iven befo re .  

As I  ind ica ted  a  t rave l  bag,  what  i s  a  t rave l  bag?   

How b ig  i s  i t?   And i f  i t  i s  a  spor t s  bag -  the  las t  t ime I  had 

a  spor ts  bag I  was p lay ing  fo r  a  team ca l led  Swal lows a t  

S ibong i le  Townsh ip  in  Dundee where  I  was a  teenager,  I  

th ink  i t  was a  b lue  puma spor t s  bag wh ich  my fa ther  had 

bought  me.   That  was the  las t  t ime I  had a  spor ts  bag.   So 10 

paragraph 26 is  a lso  a  l ie  Cha i rperson,  I  have  never  

car r ied  these ma in ly  R200 notes  t ied  w i th  rubber  bands 

tha t  I  t rave l led  w i th  a t  the  boot  o f  the  car  and i f  I  had to  

open th is  money,  I  cer ta in ly  wou ld  no t  open i t  in  f ron t  o f  

Wi tness 3  and cer ta in l y  I  wou ld  no t  have to  go  open th i s  

t rave l  bag w i th  th is  much money jus t  to  buy lunch,  lunch is  

rea l l y  no t  expens ive .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then a t  paragraph 27:  

“On more  than one occas ion  I  was p resent  when  

Gigaba bought  expens ive  ta i lo red  su i ts  f rom the  20 

Fab ian i  c lo th ing  s to re  in  Sandton C i ty.   G igaba pa id  

in  cash fo r  the  su i ts  wh ich  he  p roduced f rom the  

bag tha t  he  use to  ca r ry  w i th  h im. ”  

Comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Th is  i s  a  b la tan t  l ie ,  nonsens ica l  to ,  
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Cha i rperson as  I  ind ica ted  in  my  prev ious appearance,  I  

used to  buy su i ts  a t  Fab ian i  in  the  90 ’s ,  la te  90 ’s ,  the  f i rs t  

t ime I  bought  a  su i te  a t  Fab ian i  i t  was a  navy b lue  su i t  in  

1999 in  p repara t ion  fo r  the  swear ing  in  as  an  MP and  

dur ing  tha t  pe r iod ,  I  used to  buy lo t s  o f  su i t s  a t  Fab ian i .  

I  th ink  un t i l  the  la te  2000 when I  now bought  s tu f f  

f rom ta i lo rs ,  when I  dec ided to  buy su i ts  f rom ta i lo rs  and 

the  f r iends wou ld  ta i lo r  make su i ts  fo r  me and they wou ld  

br ing  me su i ts ,  somet imes i f  they  have been t rave l l ing .   So 

th is  pa ragraph 27 is  a  to ta l  l i e .   Now th is  bag,  the  t rave l  10 

bag tha t  s tayed a t  the  boot  o f  my car  -  i n  the  boot  o f  my  

ca r,  I  now took i t  ou t ,  went  to  Fab ian i  w i th  Mr  Wi tness 3  

th ree  and took ou t  s tashes o f  cash  aga in  in  f ron t  o f  peop le  

and pa id  fo r  su i t s .  

I t  i s  un imag inab le  tha t  anybody in  the i r  r igh t  m ind 

wou ld  do  tha t ,  i t  i s  a  comple te  l ie  and now i f  he  says I  

bought  ta i lo red  su i ts ,  how many su i ts  were  they?  So how 

much d id  they cost?   How much d id  I  pay?  How much was 

in  my bag tha t  I  wou ld  be  ab le  to  buy ta i lo red  su i ts  were  

they two,  were  they th ree ,  were  they four,  f i ve?  20 

But  as  I  say  Cha i rpe rson du r ing  th is  per iod  in  2013,  

I  d id  no t  buy su i ts ,  I  -  i t  was a t  a  t ime when I  was on a  

we igh t  loss  prog ram.   I  was no longer  buy ing  su i ts ,  I  was 

ta i lo r ing  the  su i ts  wh ich  I  had and  Fab ian i  d id  no t  have in  

house ta i lo rs .   So I  d id  no t  go  to  them to  ask  them to  a l te r  
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my su i ts  back then.   I  used to  go  to  o ther  ta i lo rs  and ask 

them to  a l te r  my su i ts .   So I  d id  no t  buy ta i lo r,  th is  i s  not  

t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  G igaba,  I  jus t  want  to  ge t  c la r i t y  

on  ove ra l l  the  pos i t ion  in  re la t ion  to  your  su i t s .  As  I  

unders tand your  ev idence,  and you must  cor rec t  me i f  I  am 

wrong,  your  ev idence tha t  you have g iven us  thus fa r  i s  

tha t  you w i l l  occas iona l l y  –  le t  us  ca l l  them sponsored  

su i ts .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  th ink  you have sa id  tha t  as  fo r  

the  res t  you bought  them f rom your  f r iends a t  a  s to re  in  

Sandton C i ty.   What  i s  tha t  wha t ,  my unders tand ing  HTK 

or?  

MR GIGABA:    Not  on ly  HTK Cha i rpe rson,  there  wou ld  be  

two,  th ree  o ther  shops where  I  used to  buy su i ts .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you sa id ,  aga in  i f  my 

memory  se rves me cor rec t ly,  tha t  as  you put  i t  you  -  

because the  owners  o f  HTK were  your  f r iends,  you  abused 

them…[ in te rvene]  20 

MR GIGABA:    Not ,  the  owners  ac tua l l y  I  made a  m is take.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR GIGABA:    The guy who manages.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  we l l  the  manager  was your  

f r iend,  you abused h im,  I  unders tood you to  be  say ing  tha t  
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you  wou ld  e f fec t i ve l y  buy those su i ts  on  lay  buy,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR GIGABA:    Not  lay  buy,  I  wou ld  buy th i s  su i t s  -  bu t  you  

can ca l l  i t  lay  buy  techn ica l l y  because I  wou ld  pay fo r  them 

over  a  per iod  jus t  tha t  I  wou ld  no t  take  the  su i t  a f te r  I  have  

f in ished pay ing  fo r  i t .   I  wou ld  take  i t  -  because look here  I  

had a  h igh  pro f i le ,  they  knew I  wou ld  no t  run  away.   So 

they wou ld  a l low me to  take  th is  w i th  and you know a t  HTK  

I  p robab ly  bought  th ree  su i ts ,  i t  was one navy b lue  su i t  and 

two tuxedos tha t  I  wou ld  buy.   The  res t  o f  the  th ings tha t  I  10 

buy there  wou ld  be  summer  shor ts ,  i t  wou ld  be  sh i r t s ,  i t  

wou ld  be  -  because they have  got  some good  qua l i t y  

casua l  and smar t  casua l  wear.   But  th is  no t ion  o f  these 

many su i ts  tha t  I  was buy ing  tha t  ended up amount ing  to  

200 i t  i s  jus t  no t  t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  as  I  unders tand -  okay,  so  i t  

seems tha t  what  you were  ge t t ing  a t  i s  perhaps ins ta lments  

i s  a  be t te r  descr ip t ion  than lay  buy.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do I  have your  ev idence cor rec t  tha t  20 

you s ta ted  tha t  when you pu rchase su i ts ,  they  were  

re la t i ve ly  inexpens ive .   I  th ink  you had ment ioned an  

amount  R7000,  does my memory  serve  me cor rec t ly?  

MR GIGABA:    Yes,  rough ly  there ,  rough ly  a round  R7000 

and they wou ld  be  d iscounted then  to  lesse r  p r ice .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Have a  look a t  your  a f f idav i t  a t  

Bund le  7A page 542.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say a t  parag raph 21 in  th is  th i rd  

sentence:  

“Most  o f  my su i ts  were  made fo r  me by a  number  o f  

des igner /s to res  who asked me to  wear  the i r  su i t s . ”  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    As  I  unders tood the  ev idence tha t  

you gave befo re  was tha t  occas iona l l y  you wou ld  be  g iven  10 

or  wou ld  wear  sponsored su i t ,  I  unders tand th is  pa rag raph  

to  say tha t  most  o f  you r  su i t s  were  sponsored.  

MR GIGABA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Which  one was i t?   

MR GIGABA:    Which  one was wha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  p rev ious l y  -  and I  have  t r ied  to  

re t race my s teps,  p rev ious ly  I  unders tood your  ev idence to  

be  tha t  occas iona l l y  you wou ld  wear  a  sponsored su i t .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  parag raph seems to  re f lec t  tha t  20 

you say ing  here  most  o f  your  su i t s ,  were  sponsored su i ts ,  

tha t  i s  a l l  I  am ask ing  you to  comment  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink ,  Mr  Myburgh reads occas iona l l y  

to  be  few and most  o f  yours ,  shou ld  be  more ,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken.   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  there  may be incons is tenc ies ,  so  he  

jus t  wants  to  know,  wh ich  one is  the  co r rec t  descr ip t ion  o f  

the  pos i t ion .   

MR GIGABA:    You know Cha i rperson,  i t  wou ld  probab ly  be  

50 /50,  ja  i t  wou ld  probab ly  be  50 /50 I  th ink  the  issue I  

unders tand the  confus ion  crea ted by  most  o r  occas iona l l y,  

bu t  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  su i t s  I  wou ld  wear  wou ld  be  sponsored  

jus t  fo r  me to  adver t i se  them,  fo r  exposure  as  I  say.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    O f  course  Ms Mngoma herse l f  gave 10 

ev idence about  you buy ing  su i ts  a t  Sandton C i ty.  

MR GIGABA:    A t  Fab ian i  to ,  wh ich  was a l so  no t  t rue  

Cha i rperson because as  I  have exp la ined before ,  and I  

exp la ined today,  much o f  what  I  wou ld  have bought  a t  

Fab ian i  be tween  the  per iods 2013 and whatever  a t  the 

t ime,  I  mean have not  bought  any th ing  w i th  them recent ly,  

wou ld  have been pe r fumes,  pocket  squares,  I  have got  

beaut i fu l  pocket  squares and they have got  g rea t  pe r fume.   

They have great  jeans,  I  am not  t ry ing  to  adver t i se  

them,  bu t  they a re  qu i te  a  good b rand.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You have jus t  adver t i sed them so maybe 

they owe you someth ing .   

MR GIGABA:    You know Cha i rperson,  I  a lso  once I  th ink  i n  

1990,  in  the  in  the  ear l y  2000 ’s  I  a lso  mode l led  fo r  them.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  
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MR GIGABA:    Yes,  I  a lso  mode l led  fo r  them,  

so…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  par t  o f  adver t i s ing .   

MR GIGABA:    You wou ld  f ind  my  p ic tu re  a t  the i r  shop in  

Cape Town and a lso  ones he re  in  Johannesburg  bu t  the  

no t ion  tha t  I  bought  a  lo t  o f  su i t s  f rom them dur ing  th is  

t ime is  no t  t rue .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  G igaba pe rhaps I  cou ld  jus t  

ask  you,  I  th ink  Ms Mngoma’s  ev idence f rom what  I  reca l l ,  

was tha t  she es t imated tha t  you had 200 su i ts  and  then I  10 

th ink  she might  have ment ioned a  100,  bu t  how many su i ts  

do  you own?  

MR GIGABA:    I  do  no t  know Cha i rpe rson,  you know,  i f  you  

are  a  Min i s te r  and you wear  su i t s  a lmost  –  you wear  su i t s  

a lmost  da i l y  except  p robab ly  on  weekends,  you have  

re la t i ve  su i t s .   Some o f  them you  s top  wear ing  as  you buy  

new su i ts ,  you g ive  them away.   I  do  no t  know how many 

su i ts  bu t  they ce r ta in ly  cou ld  never  -  as  I  say  i f  you  th ink  

about  100 su i ts ,  tha t  i s  a  depar tmenta l  s to re .   

That  i s  a  depar tmenta l  s to re  and…[ in tervene]  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    50?  

MR GIGABA:    No,  Cha i r,  no  Cha i r  there  wou ld  no t  be  50 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe between 20 and 30?  

MR GIGABA:    Bu t  I  wou ld  have  to  count  them,  I  wou ld  

have to  count  them for  me to  know how many they a re .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you say less  than 50?  

MR GIGABA:    Oh,  cer ta in l y  fa r  less  than 50.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    Far  less  than 50.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  maybe are  you ab le  to  say no t  less  

than 10,  I  wou ld  imag ine .   

MR GIGABA:    No not  less  than 10.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  maybe not  less  than 20,  maybe?  

MR GIGABA:    Maybe 20 or  so ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you are  no t  sure  bu t  you are  10 

es t imat ing .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  paragraph 28 Wi tness 3  

says:  

“On a  number  o f  occas ions approx imate ly  th ree  

t imes Gigaba met  w i th  Mole fe  a t  the  Bukhara  

Restau rant  in  Sandton C i ty  where  he  pa id  fo r  mea ls  

and dr inks  in  cash. ”  

You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rpe rson,  p reposte rous Mr  Mole fe  20 

earned fa r  much  more  than I  d id  as  a  Min is te r  and he  

cer ta in ly  wou ld  no t  have le t  me pay fo r  a  mea l  in  cash,  

cer ta in ly  no t .   I  know Br ian ,  no  he  wou ld  no t .   When we -  

and we -  I  f i rs t  re fu te  the  fac t  tha t  I  met  Br ian ,  oh  Mr  

Mole fe  a t  Bukhara  Restaurant  th ree  t imes in  seven  months .   
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I t  i s  a  lo t ,  I  mean,  tha t  i s  two peop le  who were  ex t remely  

busy.   

Three meet ings a t  Bukhara  hav ing  d inner  and where  

we pa id  in  cash,  what  Wi tness 3  i s  t ry ing  to  do  he re  is  to  

c rea te  th is  na r ra t i ve  o f  me meet ing  peop le ,  pay ing  in  cash  

and fo r  lunches and so  on  wh ich  was not  t rue ,  because on 

the  occas ion  I  jus t  do  no t  reca l l  whether  I  ever  d id  meet  Mr  

Mole fe  a t  Bukhara  Restaurant  bu t  on  the  occas ion  tha t  I  

wou ld  have had a  d inner  w i th  h im  he cer ta in ly  wou ld  have 

pa id  us ing  h is  card ,  no t  expect  me to  pay fo r  the  mea ls ,  10 

no .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  i f  th is  i s  a  conven ien t  

t ime to  take  the  b reak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  take  our  tea  break,  we w i l l  

resume a t  ten  to  twe lve ,  we ad journ .   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Before we proceed Mr Myburgh I  been 

to ld  that  a  mat te r  that  should have come up at  ten d id not  

come up at  ten probably because we star ted ear l ier  re la t ing  20 

to  legal  representat i ves of  some NPA prosecutor.   They 

were supposed to come here together  wi th  somebody f rom 

the legal  team – the work s t ream deal ing wi th  Law 

Enforcement  Agency to  ta lk  to  me about  how much t ime 

should be a l located fo r  the reading  of  summaries re la t ing to  
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cer ta in  people.  

 Who are here?  Is  there somebody f rom the lega l  

team who is  here  for  that?  Oh – oh i f  you can speak f rom 

where are that  would be more convenient  because i t  should 

not  take long.   Yes.  

UNKOWN COUNSEL:   Vi lakazi  is  here – I  just  saw her  

outs ide but  they are correct ing  some issues and the 

documents that  they prepared for  you Chai r.   So I  do not  

th ink they ready qui te  yet .   So perhaps I  ( inaudib le) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  … 10 

UNKOWN COUNSEL:   We wi l l  wai t  unt i l  i t  is  convenient  

maybe before luncht ime i f  that  wou ld be okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay le t  us – le t  us say then we are going  

to  cont inue.   You ta lk  to  them.  

UNKOWN COUNSEL:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  –  i f  and when you are ready you can 

e i ther  wai t  fo r  one o ’c lock when – then I  can deal  w i th  that  

mat te r  or  you can ment ion to  Mr Myburgh and we can have 

a f ive minutes d iscussion about  tha t  and then we cont inue.  

UNKOWN COUNSEL:   Thank you very much Chai rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .  

UNKOWN COUNSEL:   ( Inaudib le ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Let  us cont inue Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.   Mr Gigaba I  

th ink as i t  was pointed out  dur ing  the cross-examinat ion of  
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Wi tness 3 – Wi tness 3 does not  say in  h is  aff idavi t  that  the  

money that  you were a l legedly  car ry ing came f rom the 

Gupta ’s .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  just  want  to  read to  you a 

passage f rom his  ev idence and ask you to  comment  on i t .   

Th is was in  response to a quest ion  by Advocate Solomon –  

he sa id:  

“ I  th ink I  was of  the v iew that  the money that  

I  had seen carr ied by the Min is ter  –  the 10 

former Min is te r  came f rom the Gupta fami ly.   

I t  is  because in  my v iew every t ime that  we 

go there maybe af ter  a  day or  two I  would  

see the money f rom the boot  of  h is  car  in  a  

bag fu l l  o f  money hence I  connected the  

dots. ”   

 And then the Cha i rperson in  fact  asked a quest ion in  

that  regard.   He sa id:  

“Let  me ask you a  quest ion or  le t  me put  th is  

quest ion – are  you able to  concede that  20 

what  you are say ing namely that  you could  

connect  the dots  to  say the money came 

f rom the Saxonwold res idence and i t  would  

be correct  to  say that  i t  was s imply a  

suspic ion on your  par t?”  
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 And he sa id:  

“ I t  may be Chai r. ”  

 You want  to  comment  on th is  ev idence by Wi tness 3 

of  connect ing the dots.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes Chai rperson the –  the connect ion of  the  

dots i s  actual ly  unfor tunate  g iven the absence of  the 

ev idence that  would suggest .   Because in  – in  – that  would 

suggest  such – such because in  h is  own – in  h is  cross-

examinat ion and when he presented h is  ev idence he – he 

was asked about  th is  money that  was in  the boot  and as he 10 

says as you have correct ly  po inted  out  Mr Myburgh that  he 

says,  i t  would be two days af te r.  

 Now why two days af te r?  Why not  a  day af ter?  Now 

i f  he says that  I  would go the  Gupta seven or  e ight  t imes i t  

means that  seven or  e ight  t imes two days af ter  he would 

see th is  bag fu l l  o f  money in  my car.   That  sounds 

improbable because he was asked quest ions:  

“Did you see Mr  Gigaba coming in  o r  out  

wi th  a bag of  –  bag fu l l  o f  money? - - -   No.  

Did you see h im go to  the vaul t  –  you know 20 

where the vaul ts  are – I  th ink he spoke 

about  them?  - - -   No he never  – I  never  took 

h im there.   He never  went  there. ”  

 But  seven or  e ight  t imes he would have seen a bag 

fu l l  o f  money in  my car.   Who put  that  bag there?  Where 
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does i t  come f rom? 

 Chai rperson here  is  a  case of  somebody who is  

creat ing a  story and – and is  unable to  make the story  

sensib le but  is  busy connect ing dots.    

 My – my v iew is  that  which I  have expressed even in  

my aff idavi t  –  in  my response to h im is  that  –  excuse me –  

Wi tness 3 i s  l y ing;  not  on ly l y ing but  commit t ing  an 

unfa i rness and in just i ce to  me in  making c la ims that  are 

patent ly  unt rue and that  is  my v iew because he never  saw 

me carry ing any bag then suddenly he would see me seven 10 

or  e ight  t imes as he a l leges wi th  –  he would see a bag fu l l  

o f  money in  my car.   That  in  my op in ion is  just  unfor tunate –  

i t  is  a  l ie .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gigaba perhaps I  could  ask you 

th is  as a more genera l  p roposi t ion.   The commiss ion has 

received evidence a lbei t  contested in  some respects of  

persons receiv ing  cash f rom the Gupta ’s  at  Saxonwold or  

be ing offe red cash.   In  a l l  your  deal ings wi th  the Gupta ’s  

and your  v is i ts  to  Saxonwold d id you ever  gain any 

knowledge of  them giv ing them other  people cash or  20 

offer ing other  people cash? 

MR GIGABA:   No Chai r  I  was not  –  I  never  gained any 

knowledge of  such because I  myse l f  d id  not  take cash f rom 

them so I  would not  have known that  anybody was receiv ing 

cash f rom them.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh I  am t ry ing to  have a look 

here – i t  would be in terest ing to  know whether  there are 

persons in  respect  o f  whom Witness 3 sa id he saw them 

coming out  o f  the house wi th  bags that  we la ter  found to 

have a lo t  o f  cash.   So in  other  –  because in  regard to  Mr 

Gigaba he does not  – he does not  say that .   He just  ta lks 

about  having seen a bag wi th  cash in  the boot  but  to  the  

extent  that  he gave evidence and in  h is  aff idavi t  he deals 

wi th  Mr Anoj  S ingh for  example I  do  not  know who e lse i t  

would be in te rest ing whether  in  regard to  some he says,  I  10 

saw th is  one coming out  wi th  – wi th  a bag and i t  had cash 

but  in  regard to  Mr Gigaba he does not  say that .  

 I  do not  know whether  your  recol lect ion – I  was 

t ry ing to  quick ly  have a look.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes cer ta in ly  what  – I  th ink  

Chai rperson i f  I  could take you in  re la t ion to  Mr S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  paragraph 39 th is  is  a t  page 128.  

He says:  

“Af ter  each meet ing S ingh would usual ly  20 

appear f rom the res idence wi th  a spor ts  bag 

which appeared to  be fu l l .   I  suspected that  

the bag conta ined money. ”  

 He sa id:  

“S ingh would knock on the boot  of  the  
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vehic le  I  would open i t  f rom the ins ide,  he  

then put  the bag in  the boot . ”  

 And he then went  on to  say:  

“That  my suspic ion that  the bags that  S ingh 

co l lected f rom the Gupta  res idence 

conta ined money was conf i rmed when on 

one occasion he opened the bag which he  

had ear l ie r  co l lected  f rom the Gupta  

res idence ins ide the boot  of  the vehic le  and 

he gave me some money to buy lunch.   10 

When he opened the bag I  could c lear ly  see 

that  the bag was stacked wi th  R100 and 

R200 notes. ”  

 And then I  suppose of  some s ign i f icance 

Chai rperson 41:  

“A few instances af ter  v is i ts  to  the Gupta  

res idence S ingh would inst ruct  me to dr ive 

to  Knox Vaul t  a t  the corner  of  Riv ie ra and 

River  St reets,  across the road f rom Ki l larney 

Mal l .   S ingh would then take the fu l l  bag 20 

f rom the boot  of  the vehic le ,  go  in to the 

Knox Vaul t  bu i ld ing where I  would wai t  for  

h im in  the vehic le  in  the park ing area.   A f ter  

a  few minutes he  would return to  the vehic le  

and I  could see that  the bag that  he carr ied  
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was now empty.   I  suspected S ingh 

deposi ted the contents in  a safe. ”  

 I  th ink that  might  be the h igh watermark of  Wi tness 

3 ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You wi l l  know that  he a lso gave 

evidence in  re la t ion to  Mr P i ta .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  in  re la t ion to  Mr P i ta  h is  ev idence 

was that  Mr P i ta  d id  not  come out  o f  the Gupta res idence 10 

wi th  bags h is  ev idence was though that  he d id take h im to  

the Knox Vaul t  where he… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Empt ied the contents of  bags or  

deposi ted th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So there – there – i t  i s  not  un i form in  

respect  o f  the three people.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  Wi tness 3 deals wi th  which in  20 

i tse l f  may be of  s ign i f i cance as you ment ioned.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gigaba I  do  not  know i f  you have 

got  any comment  that  you want  to  make in  re la t ion to  what  I  

have sa id.  
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MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  guess maybe just  to  – to  make sure 

you know what  we are ta lk ing about .   So – so you have a  

s i tuat ion where in  respect  o f  Mr Anoj  S ingh the same 

wi tness says he would th ink go w i th  a cer ta in  bag of  and 

come out  wi th  a cer ta in  – wi th  tha t  bag or  come out  wi th  a  

bag and then la ter  on he – he  would establ ish  or  he 

establ ished that  that  money – in  regard to  h im he says they 

went  to  Knox Vaul t  where he stopped – took the  bag in to the 

house and Mr – Mr Anoj  S ingh has g iven some evidence 10 

about  h is  v is i t s  to  the Vaul t  Knox but  he has denied having 

taken bags f rom the Gupta ’s  or  money and so on.  

 But  what  I  was point ing out  is  tha t  in  regard to  the  

one person Wi tness 3 says:  

“ I  saw h im coming out  o f  the Gupta  

res idence wi th  a  bag that  la te r  on I  found 

had money. ”  

 But  in  regard to  you he does not  say  he saw you 

coming out  wi th  a  bag.   He just  says he saw money in  a bag 

and he had cer ta in  suspic ions or  connected dots.   But  he 20 

does not  –  he does not  g ive the d i rect  ev idence that  he saw 

you.   

 Do you want  to  say anyth ing about  whether  anyth ing  

should be made o f  th is  cont rast?  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson i t  would  make sense to me i f  he 
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says Mr – he was dr iv ing Mr S ingh and I  a t  the same t ime 

because then he would say he went  there – he had a bag – 

he came out  wi th  a bag – he went  to  the Knox Vaul t  and 

then when I  drove Mr Gigaba then he then had a bag in  the  

boot  – then I  was connect ing the do ts.  

 But  he – he worked wi th  us at  d i f ferent  t imes.   In  my 

case and I  am not  –  I  am not  comment ing on Mr S ingh I  

th ink Mr S ingh has spoken for  h imsel f .   In  my case he says 

he never  saw me coming in  or  out  wi th  a bag but  he  says in  

h is  test imony that  in  my case I  went  to  the  boot  of  my car  –  10 

opened my boot  – took out  money to  g ive i t  to  h im to – for  

lunch and then he repeated the same for  Mr S ingh.   Things 

l ike  a wel l -orchest rated l ie .   Th ings l i ke a wel l -orchest rated  

l ie  and – and uses th is  l ie  to  t ry  and connect  the dots.    

 As I  have sa id Chai rperson I  have never  had a boot  

– a bag fu l l  o f  money in  my car  –  in  the boot  of  my car.   I f  I  

would have I  would not  have opened i t  in  f ront  o f  h im.   I  

cer ta in ly  have never  g iven h im cash f rom the boot  of  my car  

to  go buy lunch because in  the instances when I  bought  

lunch for  the protectors I  worked w i th  I  would have asked of  20 

the i r  b i l l  to  be inc luded in  mine so that  we would be served 

i f  not  by one person then by two people who would sp l i t  the 

t ip  among them af terwards.  

 So the not ion of  me having –  going to  the  boot  of  my 

car  to  take money out  o f  i t  as I  say lunch is  no t  rea l ly  
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expensive and I  could afford the lunch both for  mysel f  and 

as I  used to do fo r  my protectors.  

 So th is  – Mr – Wi tness 3  is  t ry ing to  put  in  the –  in  

my vehic le  a bag of  money – a  bag fu l l  o f  money that  

actual ly  d id  not  ex is t .   Why he would do that  – that  is  a  

quest ion which I  th ink he and h is  employers would – would  

be able to  answer  bet te r.   But  in  t ru th I  never  had a bag fu l l  

o f  money that  was s i t t ing in  the  boot  of  my car  which I  

would expose to Wi tness 3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course I  am – I  may – I  may have 10 

asked th is  quest ion to  you before or  i t  might  have been Mr  

S ingh or  somebody e lse Ms Gigaba I  cannot  remember.   The 

quest ion being of  course i f  or  do you not  th ink tha t  i f  he 

real ly  wanted to  impl icate you in  terms of  receiv ing cash 

f rom the Gupta ’s  he had the opportuni ty  of  no t  us ing  

suspic ions – not  us ing a sto ry tha t  is  based on suspic ions 

and connect ing  the  dots  but  because he wanted to  put  in to  

t rouble saying I  saw h im – he went  in  wi th  th is  bag;  came 

out  wi th  th is  bag – or  that  is  what  would happen.   I  took h im 

there many t imes and each t ime th is  i s  what  happened or  at  20 

least  on some of  the occasions th is  is  what  happened.   He 

would go in  wi th  th is  bag – he came out  and I  saw the cash.   

So i t  is  very d i rect  as opposed to a s i tuat ion where you 

want  to  put  somebody in to t rouble and you are fabr icat ing  a  

sto ry about  h im you say you are – you put  up a sto ry  that  on 
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your  own vers ion is  based on suspic ion because you do not  

have d i rect  ev idence that  he got  th is  money f rom the  

Gupta ’s .   You say I  am suspect ing that  he got  i t  f rom – f rom 

there but  I  do no t  have d i rect  ev idence because I  d id  not  

see h im.   I  just  saw the bag wi th  money and I  suspected 

that  he got  i t  f rom the Gupta ’s .  

 Do you not  – what  do you say about  that  namely i f  

h is  mot ive was real l y  to  fa lse ly  impl icate you in  receiv ing 

money f rom the Gupta ’s  why he would not  have fa lse ly  sa id 

he had seen you coming out  wi th  th is  bag rather  than say I  10 

saw th is  money in  the bag – I  suspected that  he got  i t  f rom 

the Gupta ’s .  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink Chai rperson h is  s tatement  achieves 

exact ly  the same goal .   I t  achieves exact ly  the same goal  in  

perhaps a more mal ic ious manner.   Perhaps i t  wou ld have 

been much bet te r  had he sa id I  saw h im get  in  and come out  

wi th  a bag fu l l  o f  money.    

 In  my case he – he makes i t  very,  very d i f f i cu l t  for  

me to expose the l ie  in  – in  h is  – in  h is  aff idavi t  –  in  h is  

test imony in  the sense that  he creates th is  – he creates th is  20 

scenar io  where he does not  d i rect ly  impl icate  me in  

receiv ing the money but  i f  you read h is  test imony in  to ta l  –  

in  to ta l i ty  i t  leads inevi tab ly  to  a s i tuat ion where once he 

p laces th is  money in  the boot  of  my car  the only other  

conclus ion you can arr i ve at  in  connect ing the dots as he  
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does is  that  yes  Mr Gigaba got  th is  money i f  not  d i rect l y  

then somebody brought  the money to h im af ter  h is  v is i t  to 

the Gupta ’s  that  he p laced in  the boot  of  h is  car.  

 But  he does so  in  – in  qui te  a  pathet ic  manner  

because he says,  I  v is i ted the Gupta ’s  seven t imes – seven 

to e ight  t imes and he would see the boot  – the money at  –  

in  the boot  of  my car  two days thereaf ter  which means i f  I  

v is i ted on the 20 t h  i t  means on every 22n d he would see the 

boot  of  the  –  the money in  the boot  of  the car.   How did  the 

money get  there? And he connects the dots.    10 

 He – I  th ink i t  is  qu i te  mal ic ious in  the manner that  

he has done th is .   I  consider  i t  to  be impl icat ing me 

nonetheless because even though he does not  say he saw 

me receiv ing the money he actual l y  prov ides evidence about  

two other  people in  which he creates stor ies – three 

d i f ferent  s to r ies but  a l l  o f  which  have about  the  same 

conclus ion that  they got  the money – they got  money f rom 

the Gupta ’s  – two of  the people he  c la ims that  they went  to  

the Knox Vaul t .   He does not  say the same about  me.   But  i s  

–  i t  is  an at tempt  on  h is  par t  to  make h is  s to ry  credib le but  20 

i t  is  –  i t  is  –  i t  is  not  credib le at  a l l  g iven the massive gaps 

in  – in  h is  test imony many of  which were exposed dur ing h is 

cross-examinat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   I  would l i ke  to  tu rn to  
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someth ing e lse p lease.   Could I  ask you to  go to  Bundle 8.    

MR GIGABA:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Th is f i le  wi th  Wi tness 3 ’s  aff idavi t  can go 

away? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   For  the t ime being yes Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And could I  ask you p lease to  go – i f  

you have tabs – do you have a tab 4? 

MR GIGABA:   Tag? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.   That  should take you to  page 897.  10 

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh must  I  s t i l l  keep the other  f i le  

that  has got  Mr G igaba’s aff idavi t  open or  can I  put  i t  away 

for  now? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You can put  i t  away for  now 

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So at  897 you see that  th is  is  the 3.3 

Not ice that  you issued in  respect  o f  one of  Mr Mah langu’s 

aff idavi t s .   You w i l l  f ind re levant  ext racts f rom that  a ff idavi t  20 

commencing at  page 903 and then you wi l l  see at  page 925 

the appl icat ion that  you brought  to  have your  s tatement  of  

response submi t ted and your  s tatements of  response we 

f ind at  page 928.   So I  want  to  take you th rough Mr 

Mahlangu’s aff idavi t  and – and your  response i f  I  may? 
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 I f  I  could star t  a t  page 904 and Mr Mahlangu there  

deals wi th  as he says:  

“My in te ract ions wi th  the Gupta fami ly. ”  

 He says at  57:  

“Before I  took  up employment  as the  

Min is ter ’s  specia l  advisor  I  had never  heard  

of  or  met  any member of  the Gupta  fami ly. ”  

 A t  58 he says:  

“Short l y  a f ter  I  commenced employment  wi th  

Min is te r  Gigaba in  December 2010 the  10 

Min is te r  br ie fed me on the Gupta fami ly.   He 

descr ibed them as one of  a  number of  

business people  who were a l igned or  

favourably d isposed to the ANC.”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on that?  

MR GIGABA:   I t  was the case at  the t ime I  th ink even some 

off ic ia ls  of  the ANC have said so.   That  – that  was the case 

at  the t ime I  had seen them even though I  had not  

in teracted wi th  them in th is  regard but  i t  is  what  I  

understood.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .   And – so – just  so I  

understand your  ev idence.   You say your  in teract ions wi th  

the Gupta ’s  d id  not  s tem f rom the fact  that  they were 

a l igned or  favourably d isposed to the  ANC? 

MR GIGABA:   In  terms of  –  yes because they –  they were  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 87 of 190 
 

among the people  I  understood to be – who donated money 

to the ANC or  sponsored some events of  the ANC even 

though my in terac t ions wi th  them did not  s tem f rom that  and 

d id not  inc lude that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then at  paragraph 59.  

“The Min is ter  tasked me as one of  my dut ies  

as h is  specia l  advisor  to  manage the Gupta  

fami ly  on h is  behal f  because they were  

considered wi th in  ANC ci rc les important  

s takeholders.    I  was requi red to  in te ract  10 

wi th  the Gupta ’s  and help them i f  they  

requi red assis tance wi th in  the Min is ter ’s  

area of  responsib i l i ty.   Dur ing th is  br ie f ing 

the Min is ter  advised me to expect  a  

te lephone cal l  f rom a Mr Gupta and a few –  

and af ter  a  few days Mr Ranesh Gupta  

phoned me and requested a meet ing.   I  du ly  

obl iged and met  wi th  h im at  the  Gupta fami ly  

res idence in  Saxonwold in  that  same 

month. ”  20 

 You want  to  comment  on that .  

MR GIGABA:   You know Chai rperson as I  have ind icated I  

d id  not  want  to  confuse ro les in  th is  regard between my 

knowing of  the – of  Mr A jay personal ly  and what  could  

happen should he come because you know when you 
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become Min is te r  and th is  has happened on many occasions 

you – you have these people who are donat ing to  the ANC 

and I  am qui te  happy that  Par l iament  has resolved th is  

issue by promulgat ing a law that  deals wi th  the funding of  

po l i t i ca l  par t ies because i t  rea l l y  is  go ing to  take a lo t  o f  

s t ra in  out  o f  many Min is ters  and other  people in  

responsib i l i t y  inc lud ing  DG’s who a lways have to  come 

under pressure  to  meet  people,  he lp them out ,  do th is ,  he lp  

out  wi th  th is  in  order  – because I  am going to  fund the ANC.  

I  had on a couple  occasions been requested to  meet  people 10 

e i ther  who wanted to  provide th is  serv ice or  the other  –  

others who had cases pending in  cour t  between them and 

the Departments inc lud ing Home Affa i rs  that  needed to be  

resolved so that  once they get  payment  they can – they wi l l  

fund the  ANC.    

You f ind i t  very d i f f icu l t  to  deal  wi th  such issues because 

the – there  are  procedures in  the Department  –  you know 

there are procedures in  the ent i t ies – there are laws and 

you cannot  just  s imply go to  a CEO of  a  company or  go to  a 

DG of  a  department  and say,  oh no th is  case that  involves 20 

th is  person p lease wi thdraw i t  and pay them to that  they can 

be able to  sponsor the ANC.   I  wanted to  c rea te  th is  

d is tance and jus t  say :   Look,  guys .   I  know you persona l ly.   

I  do  no t  want  to  ta lk  bus iness w i th  you.   I f  you  want  to  ta lk  

anyth ing ,  ta lk  to  my lega l  adv isor  and the  lega l  adv isor  on  
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knowing the  law and p rec ise ly  because he wou ld  have th is  

deeper  unders tand ing  o f  law in  lega l  p rocedures,  wou ld  be  

ab le  to  respond.   And i t  i s  much bet te r  i f  i t  i s  go ing  to  be 

h im who says:   No,  th is  canno t  be  done.   Because i t  

removes me f rom the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  hav ing  to  s i t  and 

d iscuss these issues w i th  peop le  tha t  I  d id  no t  want  to  

d iscuss them wi th .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  i f  we go back  to  what  

he  says a t  59 .  

“ I  was requ i red  to  in te rac t  w i th  the  Guptas  and  10 

he lp  them i f  they  requ i re  ass is tance. . . ”  

Do I  unders tand you to  be  accept ing  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]?  

MR GIGABA :    I t  was on ly  in  the  ins tance tha t  such 

ass is tance was w i th in  the  lega l  p r i nc ip le  l im i ts .   I t  was not  

requ i red ,  and i t  wou ld  no t  have been outs ide  the  l im i ts  o f  

what  was lega l l y  permiss ib le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then,  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t :  

“ . . .dur ing  the  br ie f ing ,  the  Min is te r  adv ised me 

to  expect  a  ca l l  f rom Mr  Gupta . . . ”?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes,  I  m igh t  have had.   And the  ins t ruc t ion  20 

to  my adv iso rs  and to  anybody who work  w i th  me was  

a lways tha t :   Meet  w i th  them,  hear  them out  bu t  exp la in  to  

them tha t  th is  th ing  can e i ther  be  done or  w i l l  no t  be  done.   

I t  must  a lways be w i th in  the  l im i t  w i th  what  we are  ab le  to  

do ,  lega l l y  speak ing ,  so  tha t  we  are  no t  accused o f  no t  
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be ing  access ib le  because on occas ion  they wou ld  repor t  us  

to  our  po l i t i ca l  sen iors  and you –  w i th in  the  pa r ty,  and you 

wou ld  be ,  you know,  ca l led  upon.   No,  man,  meet  so  and  

so .   Do th is ,  do  tha t .   But  c rea te  the  access bu t  a lways  

ensure  tha t  such  access does no t  ex ten t  to  mat te rs  tha t  

a re  ou ts ide  the  lega l  f ramework  tha t  ex is ts .   Le t  us  no t  do  

anyth ing  i l l ega l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I  p resume . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l . . .   I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  in te res t ing  tha t  you ment ion  tha t  

somet imes they  wou ld  repor t  you,  wh ich  I  take  to  be 

Min is te rs ,  maybe ,  and DG’s  tha t  you are  ta l k ing  about ,  to  

your  po l i t i ca l  sen iors  because the  ev idence tha t  was g iven  

by  Mr  Maseko in  th is  Commiss ion ,  r igh t  a t  the  beg inn ing  

about  h is  exper iences w i th  meet ing  w i th  Mr  A jay  Gupta  in  

2010 was prec ise l y  tha t  Mr  A jay  Gupta  sa id  to  h im,  

amongst  o ther  th ings,  in  e f fec t ,  and I  am put t ing  i t  in  my 

own words,  tha t  t hey,  tha t  i s  they,  the  Gupta  fami ly,  as  Mr  

Maseko unders tood th is ,  cou ld  ca l l  any  Min i s te r  to  come to  20 

them i f  they  needed them and i f  a  m in is te r  d id  no t  

coopera te ,  they wou ld  repor t  them to  Pres ident  Zuma.    

 I  th ink  tha t  was the  –  what  I  unders tood Mr  

Themba Maseko ’s  ev idence to  be .   So,  I  th ink  what  you are  

say ing  seems to  be  cons is ten t  w i t h  tha t .   You migh t  no t  be  
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say ing  exact ly  the  same th ing ,  bu t  i t  seems to  be 

cons is ten t  w i th  tha t .   You might  o r  m ight  no t  w ish  to  say  

anyth ing  about  th is  observa t ion  I  am mak ing .  

MR GIGABA :    The issue,  Cha i rperson,  i s  tha t  i t  – you  

know,  you wou ld  ge t  a  ca l l  o r  meet  someone a t  an  event  o r  

ra l l y  o r  wherever  o r  ge t  a  ca l l  f rom someone repor t i ng  your  

DG.   No,  Min i s te r,  the  DG has done th is ,  tha t  and the  

o the r.   They are  re fus ing  to  mee t  us  what  about .   In  one 

ins tance,  Min is te r  D lamin i  Zuma had to  dea l  w i th  a 

company tha t  had gone to  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  to  compla in  10 

tha t  she was not  g iv ing  them a  hear ing .    

 And the  Min i s te r  sa id :   But  th is  cannot  be  my  

respons ib i l i t y  to  meet  a  company to  d iscuss w i th  them the i r  

in te res t  in  the  depar tment .   Th is  wou ld  –  they wou ld  repor t  

DG’s  to  Min i s te rs .   They wou ld  repor t  Min i s te rs  to  the  

var ious o f f i c ia l  so  the  ANC.   On severa l  occas ions I  was 

asked to  meet  a  company tha t  a  lega l  d i spute  w i th  Home 

Affa i rs  by  one o f  the  o f f i c ia ls .    

 Even a t  t ime you  meet  d i f fe ren t  o f f i c ia ls ,  and they  

ra ise  the  same th ing ,  and you rea l i se  –  you keep say ing  to  20 

them but :   No,  no  bu t  those peop le  have gone to  so  and so  

and they went  to  so  and so  to  ra ise  the  same th ing .   

Comrade,  th is  cannot  be  done.   The mat te r  i s  in  cour t ,  and  

I  cannot  ins t ruc t  the  depar tment  to  ge t  the  mat te r  ou t  o f  

cour t .    
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 I t  i s  no t  w i th in  my power,  and I  th ink  I  shou ld  s tay  

away f rom i t  so  tha t  i t  ge ts  reso lved there  and once i t  i s  

reso lved,  the  cour t  had bet te r  competence to  dec ide  how 

the  issue is  go ing  to  be  reso lved.   So,  i t  was –  i t  has  

a lways been a  confus ing  scenar io  wh ich  made some o f  us  

dec ide  tha t :   Look,  le t  me create  d is tance fo r  myse l f  so  

tha t  in  case I  am asked I  wou ld  say:   Oh,  no .   I  have asked  

a  lega l  adv i so r  to  go  and meet  w i th  these peop le  and l i s ten  

to  them.    

 So tha t  i t  does not  become an issue tha t  you need  10 

to  do  i t  d i rec t l y.   And in  some ins tances,  I  wou ld  say to  

peop le :   Why do you not  go  and meet  the  DG or  why do you  

not  go  and meet  the  CEO of  th is  company and ta lk  to  them 

and hear  whether  th is  th ing  tha t  you are  propos ing  or  

pu t t ing  to  me can  be done because  I  do  no t  know.   I  am not  

invo l ved in  the  t ransact ions w i th in  the  organ isa t ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  jus t  then want  to  c la r i t y.   I  

mean,  I  unders tand f rom what  you  have sa id  i s ,  and  cor rec t  

me i f  I  am wrong,  tha t  because o f  the  pe rsona l  re la t ionsh ip  20 

tha t  you had w i th  the  Guptas ,  you fe l t  more  comfor tab le  

no t  dea l ing  w i th  them yourse l f  bu t  ra ther  requ i r ing  Mr  

Mah langu to  per fo rm tha t  ro le .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GIGABA :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Not?  
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MR GIGABA :    I  wanted to  c rea te  d is tance so  tha t  I  do  no t  

have to  dea l  w i th  i ssues tha t  invo l ved my por t fo l io  w i th  

peop le  tha t  I  knew persona l ly.   And Mr  Mah langu wou ld  be  

ab le  to  say to  them i t  cannot  be  done.   And,  you know,  i f  

they  needed a  meet ing ,  he  wou ld  ass i s t  them wi th  tha t  

meet ing ,  bu t  w i th  the  unders tand ing  tha t  whatever  i s  

d iscussed there  has to  fa l l  w i th in  the  l im i t  o f  the  law.   I t  

cannot  be  someth ing  tha t  fa l l s  ou ts ide  the  l im i t  o f  the  law.   

He unders tood i t .   I  unders tood i t .   And even though I  d id  

no t  d iscuss i t  w i th  the  peop le  invo lved,  bu t  inso far  as  they 10 

and I  were  concerned,  the re  was  no bus iness d iscuss ion .   

I t  was jus t  soc ia l  i ssues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  we l l ,  I  th ink  we may have been  

say ing  the  same th ing ,  Mr  G igaba,  bu t  le t  me leave i t  a t  

tha t .   When Mr  Mah langu then met  w i th  th is  peop le ,  he  

wou ld  meet  them in  h is  capac i ty  as  your  spec ia l  adv iso r.   I  

mean,  he  was your  representa t i ve .  

MR GIGABA :    Not  as  my representa t i ve  bu t  –  how do I  pu t  

th is?   I t  shou ld  no t  be  –  i t  wou ld  –  he  wou ld  unders tand  

tha t  he  is  meet ing  w i th  them,  no t  necessar i l y  as  d i rec t l y  20 

rep resent ing  me,  bu t  i t  i s  the  impress ion  you crea te  in  a lso  

t ry ing  to  sh ie ld  your  po l i t i ca l  p r inc ipa l  f rom hav ing  to  

engage w i th  those peop le .   He unders tood tha t  h is  

respons ib i l i t y  was to  sh ie ld  me f rom hav ing  to  engage w i th  

them.    
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    But  he  was your  spec ia l  adv i so r,  as  I  

unders tand?  

MR GIGABA :    Indeed,  he  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So,  when you sa id  to  h im 

tha t  he  cou ld  expect  a  ca l l  f rom Mr  Gupta ,  I  assume then  

you wou ld  have phoned Mr  Gupta  and sa id  you can phone 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .Mr  Mah langu.   Or  how d id  tha t  

te lephone ca l l  come about?  10 

MR GIGABA :    They had ra i sed w i th  me a  des i re  to  have a  

d iscuss ion  and I  sa id  I  cannot .   I  want  to  separa te  the  

issues.   You can ta lk  to  my lega l  adv isor.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And then do you accept  tha t  

a  few days la te r,  Ra jesh Gupta  phoned Mr Mah langu and  

requested a  meet ing  and tha t  he  then du ly  ob l i ged? 

MR GIGABA :    I  th ink  he  d id .   He  may have in fo rmed me,  

yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  what  I  wanted  to  ask  

you.   P resumable  then in  the  pe r fo rmance o f  th is  ro le ,  he  20 

wou ld  repor t  back  to  you on h i s  var ious meet ings?  

MR GIGABA :    Not  a l l  the  t ime,  Cha i rperson .   He  

unders tood.   H is  respons ib i l i t y  was to  sh ie ld  me.   Yes.   So,  

there  wou ld  have  been ins tances where  he  repor ted  to  me,  

no t  necessar i l y  w i th  regard  to  the  Gupta  fami ly  because I  
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d id  in fo rm h im tha t  w i th  regard  to  th is  fami ly,  even  though 

they are  regarded as  a  spec ia l  –  as  an  impor tan t  –  no t  

spec ia l  –  as  an  impor tan t  s takeho lder  in  the  ANC.    

 And there  were  many o the rs .   There  are  many 

o thers  even now.   They were  the re  then.   They s t i l l  a re  

there  now.   But  even though they were  regarded as  

impor tan t  s takeho lde rs  in  the  sense tha t  they ass is ted  the  

ANC,  i t  was impor tan t  fo r  you to  sh ie ld  me f rom hav ing  to  

engage w i thout  c rea t ing  a  sense o f  inaccess ib i l i t y.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  what  o the r  impor tan t  10 

s takeho lders  d id  you requ i re  Mr  Mah langu to  manage?  

MR GIGABA :    Wel l ,  there  were  –  I  th ink  he  says in  h is  

own a f f idav i t ,  i f  you  look a t  pa rag raph 60,  there  were  

o thers  tha t  he  had to  dea l  w i th  and those he ass is ted  in  

reso lv ing  some o f  the  d isputes  wh ich  they had.   And there  

were  o thers  he  wou ld  meet ,  jus t  to  l i s ten  to .   Peop le  in  the  

bus iness secto r,  peop le  in  the  lega l  p ro fess ion ,  peop le  – I  

have met  a  lo t  o f  peop le  in  the  lega l  p ro fess ion .   I  met  

BMA and Nade l  a t  some po in t  th rough h is  i n te rac t ions w i th  

them.   So,  i t  was d i f fe ren t  s takeho lders ,  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Then a t  paragraph 60,  

Mr  Mah langu cont inues.    

“Th is  i s  no t  uncommon. . . ”  

I  th ink  you have touched on th is  a l ready.    

“ I t  i s  impor tan t  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  the  Gupta  
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fami ly  were  no t  the  on ly  impor tan t  

s takeho lders  o f  the  Min is te r  tha t  I  was 

requ i red  to  in te rac t  w i th  and who I  v is i ted  a t  

the i r  homes.  

I  reca l l  hav ing  meet ings w i th  eminent  b lack  

bus iness leaders  a t  the i r  homes in  my capac i ty  

as  the  Min i s te r ’s  Spec ia l  Adv iso r.  

Typ ica l l y,  b lack  bus inesspeop le  compla in t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  jus t  –  apo logy to  d is rup t  you.   10 

I  m ight  –  I  seem to  have c rea ted confus ion  fo r  myse l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR GIGABA :    I  have ex t rac ted  cer ta in  pages wh ich  I  

needed to  have in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  you  wou ld  l i ke  t o  have  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR GIGABA :    So ,  i f  you  jus t  bear  w i th  a  l i t t le  b i t?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Not  a t  a l l .  

MR GIGABA :    Ja .   No,  I  th ink  we can cont inue.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay,  le t  me s tar t  a t  tha t  parag raph 

aga in .   Have you got  i t  in  f ron t  o f  you now? 
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MR GIGABA :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page 904.   Th is  –  says Mr  Mah langu:  

“ . . . i s  no t  uncommon.   I t  i s  impor tan t  to  po in t  

ou t  tha t  the  Gupta  fami ly  were  no t  the  on ly  

impor tan t  s takeho lde rs  o f  the  Min is te r  tha t  I  

was requ i red  to  in te rac t  w i th  and who I  v is i ted  

a t  the i r  homes.  

I  reca l l  hav ing  meet ings w i th  eminent  b lack  

bus iness leaders  a t  the i r  homes in  my capac i ty  

as  the  Min i s te r ’s  Spec ia l  Adv iso r.  10 

Typ ica l l y,  b lack  bus inesspeop le  compla in t  

about  the  s low pace o f  t ransformat ion  and had 

spec i f i c  p roposa ls  o r  g r ievances wh ich  I  was 

tasked w i th  re ly ing  to  the  Min i s te r. . . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    Yes,  as  I  have. . .   Yes,  Cha i r.   As  I  have 

ind ica ted .   There  have been – the re  were  many ins tances  

and we –  you know,  he  wou ld  go  meet  w i th  them on 

occas ion  to  b r ie f  me,  the  b lack  l awyers  w i th  regards to  

ob ta in ing  work ing  the  SOE’s .   B lack  accountan ts  w i th  20 

regard  to  ob ta in ing  work  in  the  SOE’s ,  and some ins tances,  

ind iv idua l  bus inesspeop le .    

 That  wou ld  e i ther  be  ra is ing  po l i cy  o r  po l i t i ca l  

i ssues wh ich  re la ted  to  po l i cy  o r  wou ld  be  request ing  

ass is tance,  in  wh ich  case,  Mr  Mah langu wou ld  say:   I  cou ld  
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he lp  fac i l i ta t ing  a  meet ing  fo r  you w i th  re levant  peop le  and  

i t  i s  up  to  you to  ra ise  your  i ssues and d iscuss w i th  those  

re levant  peop le .    

 However,  the  mat te r  ge ts  reso lved between the  two  

o f  you.   I t  i s  no  longer  any o f  my d i rec t  in te res t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  we go ove r  the  page,  to  page 

906.   A t  paragraph 64,  Mr  Mah langu says:  

“A t  a l l  t imes I  kept  the  Min is te r  in fo rmed o f  my 

in te rac t ions w i th  d i f fe ren t  in te r locu tors  

inc lud ing  Ra jesh  Gupta ,  the  on ly  member  o f  10 

the  Gupta  fami ly  tha t  I  have dea l t  w i th . . . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    As  I  say  in  my response tha t  he  kept  me 

abreast  o f  many  o f  h is  in te rac t ions to  ensure  tha t  I  was  

updated i n  case I  met  those peop le ,  bu t  i t  wou ld  no t  be  a l l  

the  t ime.   I t  wou ld  no t  be  a l l  the  t ime.   I  th ink  – I  do  no t  

read much to  what  he  says when he says a t  a l l  t imes.   He  

d id  t ry  to  keep me abreast  o f  many o f  h is  in te rac t ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  perhaps we cou ld  jus t  have a  

look a t  what  your  response was to  parag raph 64.  20 

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  page 913  a t  parag raph 8 .2 .  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You s ta ted :  

“Mr  Mah langu gave me updates  on  the  
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in te rac t ions he  had w i th  the  d i f fe ren t  pe rson in  

th is  contex t  and  the  purpose was to  ensure  

tha t  I  wou ld  be  updated on what  may have 

been d iscussed. . . ”  

I s  tha t  accura te?  

MR GIGABA :    That  i s  accura te ,  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I f  we then go back,  p lease,  

to  page 906 and  to  p ick  a t  paragraph 65.   Mr  Mah langu 

says:  

“ In  the  f i rs t  mee t ing  w i th  Ra jesh  Gupta ,  on ly  10 

he  and I  were  in  a t tendance.  

Mr  Gupta  in t roduced h imse l f  to  me and we 

exchanged p leasant r ies .  

He exp la ined tha t  he  w ished to  meet  w i th  me  

as the  Min is te r ’s  Adv isor  because he 

suppor ted  broad based b lack  economic  

empowerment  and w ish  to  cont r i bu te  to  the  

government ’s  e f fo r ts  to  empower  b lack  peop le .  

That  sums up the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  met  w i th  

Ra jesh Gupta . . . ”  20 

I  p resume you do  not  have –  wou ld  you have any comment  

on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    No,  I  wou ld  no t ,  Cha i rperson.   Safe to  say  

tha t  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  peop le  c la im to  be  suppor ts  o f  th is  b lack  

economic  empowerment .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GIGABA :    You jus t  l i s ten  to  tha t .   You do not  

necessar i l y  take  i t  to  be . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  jus t  want  to  go  back to  the  quest ion  

tha t  Mr  Myburgh  asked you abou t  whether  in  mee t ing  the  

Guptas  or  any o f  the  o ther  peop le ,  tha t  Mr Mah langu  had to  

meet  as  your  adv isor,  he  was represent ing  you.   I  th ink  

your  answer  was  tha t  he  wou ld  no t  be  meet ing  them as 

your  rep resenta t i ve  as  such,  bu t  he  was your  spec ia l  

adv isor.    10 

 I  am not  sure  whether  the re  is  anyth ing  impor tan t  

in  the  d is t inc t ion  tha t  you seem to  want  to  make,  because 

on the  face  o f  i t ,  I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  i f  you  asked 

h im,  as  you say you d id ,  to  manage these peop le  fo r  you  

so  tha t ,  fo r  example ,  they do  not  d iscuss w i th  you cer ta in  

th ings tha t  you maybe do not  want  to  d iscuss w i th  them,  

bu t  he  can meet  w i th  them.    

 I  wou ld  have thought  tha t  in  a  way he i s  there  fo r  

you.   He is  there  because you do not  want  to  be  there .   

You are  send ing  them to  dea l  w i th  them.   But  I  jus t  want  to  20 

t ry  and unders tand whethe r  there  is  some impor tan t  in  the  

d is t inc t ion  you were  seek ing  to  make.  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  i t  –  I  cou ld  be  fa i l ing  to  

a r t i cu la te  i t  p roper ly  because,  yes ,  I  had asked h im to 

manage those s takeho lde rs  so  tha t  he  keeps them away  
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f rom me and he manages them away f rom me.   I  do  no t  

have to  ta lk  those issues w i th  h im because I  d id  no t  want  

to  be  d is t rac ted  f rom my o f f i c ia l  respons ib i l i t y  and o f  

execut ing  the  po l i cy  and ensur ing  tha t  our  SOE’s  are  run  

proper ly.    

 So ,  in  a  way,  yes ,  he  was meet ing  them as  

mandated and he had tha t  respons ib i l i t y  to  ensure  a t  a l l  

t imes tha t  the  engages w i th  then,  he  takes them away f rom 

me,  bu t  he  unders tood tha t  a t  every  moment  the 

engagement  wou ld  have to  be  p ro fess iona l  and e th i ca l l y.    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And,  o f  course ,  he  says a t  paragraph 64,  

wh ich  we have looked a t  and you conf i rm,  tha t  he  wou ld  

repor t  back on  h i s  in te rac t ions.   He says a t  a l l  t imes.   You 

say,  we l l ,  maybe  not  a t  a l l  t imes but  genera l l y  speak ing  

most  o f  the  t ime or  on  a  number  o f  th is  he  wou ld  repor t  

back.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    As  I  unders tand the  pos i t ion  f rom h is  

s ide .   The on ly  bas i s  on  wh ich  he  was meet ing  w i th  them or  

in te rac t ing  w i th  them was because o f  h is  pos i t ion  as  your  20 

lega l  adv i sor  o r  spec ia l  adv iso r.  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  ge t  the  impress ion  f rom h is  a f f idav i t  

tha t  had i t  no t  been fo r  tha t  he  wou ld  no t  have been  

in te rac t ing  w i th  them.   He in te rac ted  w i th  them by v i r tue  o f  
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i t  be ing  par t  o f  h is  du t ies  to  do  tha t .   And I  wou ld  imag ine  

tha t  those peop le  wou ld  a lso  no t  have been in te res ted  in  

meet ing  w i th  h im or  in te rac t ing  w i th  h im i f  he  was not  your  

spec ia l  adv iso r.   The on ly  th ing  tha t  a t t rac ted  them to  h im 

was tha t  –  was because o f  the  pos i t ion  he  occup ied .   I s  

tha t  a  fa i r  unders tand ing  o f  the  pos i t ion?  

MR GIGABA :    I t  i s ,  Cha i rpe rson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GIGABA :    And I  chose h im as  the  lega l  adv i sor  to  dea l  

w i th  tha t  work .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR GIGABA :    Because o f  h is  lega l  background.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR GIGABA :    And d id  no t  want  any o f  my o ther  o f f i c ia ls  to  

f ind  themse lves in  meet ing  peop le  who d id  no t  have the  

necessary  lega l  exper t i se .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR GIGABA :    To  be  ab le  to  address peop le  in  a  way tha t  

d id  no t  compromise  them o r  the  depar tment  o r  government  

as  a  who le  or  even the  SOE’s  themse lves.   So,  somebody 20 

l i ke  tha t  cou ld  be  ab le  to  manage tha t  and to  dea l  w i th  i t  

and  there fore  pro tec t  the  en t i re  team,  no t  on ly  t he  Min is te r  

bu t  the  en t i re  team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   And a t  parag raph 66:  
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“ I  met  w i th  Ra jesh Gupta  aga in  in  

January  2011 and had a  number  o f  occas ion  

subsequent  to  tha t .  

Dur ing  these o ther  subsequent  engagements ,  

he  wou ld  be  jo ined by  Tshepo Magashu le  and  

Duduzane Zuma.    

I  came to  l earn  tha t  they were  bus iness  

par tners .  

Safe  fo r  what  I  have read in  the  med ia  about  

the i r  bus iness  re la t ionsh ips ,  I  have no  10 

knowledge o f  the  na ture  and the  ex ten t  o f  the i r  

bus iness re la t ions . . . ”  

D id  you know about  th is?  

MR GIGABA :    No.   I  knew tha t ,  I  th ink ,  f rom media  

engagements ,  I  knew tha t  Mr  Tshepo Magashu le  and  

Mr  Duduzane Zuma were  the i r  bus iness par tners  bu t  the i r  

par t i c i pa t ion  in  the i r  engagements  I  was not  aware  o f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Was. . .   I s  there  a  par t i cu la r  reason why,  

a t  leas t  accord ing  to  Mr  Mah langu ,  the  on ly  member  o f  the 

Gupta  fami ly  he  in te rac ted  or  had meet ings w i th  was 20 

Mr  Ra jesh Gupta  whereas the  person tha t  you were  

in te rac t ing  w i th ,  and based on what  you sa id  ea r l ie r  on ,  

you were  f r iends w i th  was A jay  Gupta  and not  Ra jesh 

Gupta?  I s  there  any pa r t i cu la r  s ign i f i cance in  the  fac t  tha t  

he  was not  in te rac t ing  w i th  A jay  Gupta ,  he  was on ly  
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in te rac t ing  w i th  Ra jesh Gupta  or  i s  there  none? 

MR GIGABA :    No,  I  do  no t  know what  –  I  do  no t  know any 

spec i f i c  reason,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :    I t  cou ld  a l so  be  tha t  Mr  A jay  h imse l f  d id  no t  

want  to  confuse ro les  o f  h is  f r iendsh ip  w i th  me and  the i r  –  

whatever  the i r  bus iness in te res ts  were  as  a  fami ly.   And he 

unders tood f rom my po in t  tha t  I  was jus t  a  soc ia l  f r iend.   

Noth ing  more  than tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.   A t  67 :  

“Over  t ime,  I  learn t  tha t  Ra jesh Gupta  

predominant ly  conducted h is  bus iness a t  h is  

fami ly  res idence in  Saxonwold .  

That  i s  the  reason most  o f  my meet ings w i th  

h im took p lace a t  the  fami ly ’s  res idence. . . ”  

He goes on to  say a t  68 :  

“My engagements  w i th  Ra jesh Gupta  were  in  

the  per iod  be tween January  2011  and March 

2013.  20 

Throughout  my in te rac t ions w i th  Ra jesh Gupta ,  

I  ma in ta ined a  pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

h im.  

I  engaged w i th  Ra jesh Gupta  in  my capac i ty  as  

the  Min is te r ’s  Spec ia l  Adv i so r  on ly. . . ”  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 105 of 190 
 

You have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    I t  was my unders tand ing ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  

he  main ta ined a  pro fess iona l  re la t ionsh ip ,  Mr  Mah langu,  

and on occas ion  tha t  he  wou ld  br ie f  me,  he  wou ld  made  

tha t  po in t  qu i te  c lea r,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then i f  we go over  the  page  to  page 

908 and le t  us  p ick  up  a t  parag raph 73:  

“ In  March 2013,  I  consc ious ly  sca led  back on  

my meet ings w i th  Ra jesh Gupta .  

I  d is tanced myse l f  and eventua l l y  se ized 10 

in te rac t ing  w i th  h im a l l  togethe r.  

To  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion ,  the  las t  t ime I  

met  w i th  Ra jesh  Gupta  was in  about  m id-

2013. . . ”  

And then,  tha t  must  be  read toge ther  w i th  parag raph 74,  

where  he  says th i s :  

“ I  took  th is  ac t ion  because in  March 2013,  the 

Min is te r  was conf ron ted by  a  med ia  query  

re la t ing  to  a  meet ing  in  October  2012 tha t  I  

had ar ranged between Mr  Mxo l is i  Dukwana and 20 

Ra jesh Gupta  a t  the  Gupta  res idence.  

The Min is te r  spokesperson in  answer  to  th is  

med ia  query  to ld  the  re levant  jou rna l i s t  tha t  I  

have gone to  the  meet ing  i n  my pr iva te  

capac i ty  when,  in  fac t ,  I  have gone to  the 
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meet ing  on  o f f i c ia l  bus iness in  my capac i ty  as  

the  Min is te r ’s  Spec ia l  Adv i so r.  

I  fe l t  hur t  and bet rayed by  th is  un t ru th .  

I  took  a  dec i s ion  to  exped i te  my p lans to  leave 

my employment  wh ich  I  began cons ide r ing  in  

the  la t te r  par t  o f  2012. . . ”  

What  i s  your  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    Th is  inc ident  d id  take  p lace.   And ac tua l l y,  

a l l  o f  us  a t  the  t ime had,  you know,  we were  becoming a  b i t  

d isqu ie t  about  a  number  o f  th ings inc lud ing  these,  you  10 

know,  requests  fo r  meet ings tha t  Mr  Mah langu was be ing  

asked to  exped i te  –  I  mean,  to  fac i l i ta te .    

 And as  I  have sa id .   You know,  there  were  many  

media  repor ts  tha t  were  ta lk ing  to  the  fami ly ’s  bus iness  

dea l ings and a  who le  range o f  th ings,  name-dropp ing  and 

so  on .   So,  we were  a l l  becoming qu i te  res t less  w i th  regard  

to  th is  re la t ionsh ip .   The inc ident  o f  March 2013 d id  take  

p lace and mis te r,  you know,  Mr  Mah langu ind ica ted  to  me 

tha t  he  was qu i te  hu r t  because,  you know,  they had qu i te  

robust  engagements  be tween h im.  20 

 And the  o ther  o f f i c ia ls  in  my o f f i ce  who were  

say ing  tha t :   You know,  we th ink  tha t ,  you know,  th is  was in  

your  p r i va te  capac i ty.   That  you need to  s tand back.   And 

they a l so  d i scussed the  mat te r  w i th  me.   So,  I  unders tood  

i t .   Why he was angry,  and i t  was a lso  my v iew tha t :   Look,  
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we need to  beg in  sca l ing  down,  even me a t  a  persona l  

leve l .   I  unders tood tha t  I  needed to  beg in  to  reduce my  

in te rac t ions even  though they were  soc ia l  w i th  the  fami ly.    

 And he ind ica ted  tha t  he  wanted to  leave  

employment  and  my v iew was tha t  you do not  leave  

employment  on  the  bas i s  o f  th is  inc ident .   I t  happens in  

o f f i ce  tha t  peop le  f igh t  on  occas ion ,  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  th is  

i s  the  reason fo r  you to  leave wh ich  was then why he  

s tayed on unt i l  the  end o f  my te rm o f  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises .    10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  take  i t  f rom both  what  you have jus t  

sa id  now,  bu t  a lso  f rom what  you  have sa id  ea r l ie r  about  

h im meet ing  the  Guptas  in  h is  capac i ty  as  your  lega l  

adv iser ,  spec ia l  adv iser ,  tha t  you r  unders tand ing  was tha t  

he  had a r ranged tha t  meet ing  in  t ha t  capac i ty  no t  as  in  a  

pr iva te  capac i ty .  

MR GIGABA :   I t  was in  tha t  capac i ty ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GIGABA :   As  I  had sa id  in  o rde r  to  sh ie ld  me away.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   In  my d iscuss ion  subsequent ly  w i th  h im i t  

was tha t  look ,  you -  you know,  you need to  cont inue  

because peop le  w i l l  con t inue t ry ing  to  meet  w i th  me to  ta lk  

about  the i r  own issues,  cont inue engag ing  w i th  them but  I  
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suppor t  your  dec is ion  to  sca le  down on the  o ther  s ide  

because i t  i s  becoming a  p rob lem for  a l l  o f  us ,  the  ANC 

i t se l f  i s  ge t t ing  embarrassed by  th is  t ype o f  re la t ionsh ip .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  jus t  go  th rough th i s  on  a  

sentence by  sentence bas is  to  make sure  tha t  I  unders tand  

what  you have sa id?   A t  74  he  says:  

“ In  March 2013 the  m in is te r  was  conf ron ted by  a  

med ia  query  re la t ing  to  a  meet ing  in  October  2012  

tha t  I  had ar ranged. ”  10 

Now were  you conf ron ted w i th  the  med ia  query?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  there  was a  med ia  query.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he goes on to  say tha t :  

“ I  have a r ranged  between Mr  Kona and Mr  Ra jesh  

Gupta  a t  the  Gup ta  res idence. ”  

So had Mr  Mhlangu ar ranged th is  meet ing?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  you  know about  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  knew about  i t  a f te r  i t  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now why was he ar rang ing  a 20 

meet ing  be tween Mr  Kona,  who as  I  unders tand a t  tha t  t ime 

was the  Cha i rman o f  SAA or  Cha i rperson o f  SAA and the  

ac t ing  CEO and Ra jesh Gupta .   Why wou ld  he  be a r rang ing  

such a  meet ing?  

MR GIGABA :   I  do  no t  know wha t  was on the  agenda but  
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as  I  have sa id  ea r l ie r ,  he  was –  I  had asked h im to  manage 

cer ta in  s takeho lders  t ha t  were  regarded as  impor tan t  in  the  

ANC and ensure  tha t ,  you know,  we do not  c rea te  a  sense  

o f  inaccess ib i l i t y  bu t ,  a t  the  same t ime,  we do wha tever  –  

he  does whatever  he  needs to  do  or  we do whatever  we  

need to  do  w i th in  the  remi t  o f  the  law.    

 Now Mr  Mhlangu  ar ranged many o ther  meet ings,  I  

guess as  he  has sa id  in  the  prev ious chapters ,  I  th ink  r igh t  

a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  h is  a f f idav i t ,  tha t  he  ar ranged a  number  

o f  meet ings and whatever  w i th  d i f fe ren t  peop le  where ,  you  10 

know,  peop le  wou ld  have requested w i th  h im e i ther  to  

d iscuss issues o f  a  po l i cy  na ture  wh ich  they wou ld  w ish  to  

ra ise  w i th  me or  where  they needed to  d iscuss w i th  some 

o f  our  CEO’s  mat te rs  o f  in te res t  to  them.   So he 

unders tood i t  tha t  those engagements  wou ld  have to  be 

pro fess iona l  and he wou ld  br ie f  the  peop le  invo lved  tha t  in  

th is  engagement  p lease know tha t  you are  no t  supposed to  

agree or  take  any  dec is ion  tha t  i s  ou ts ide  the  f ramework  o f  

what  you are  requ i red  to  do  lega l l y  and [ ind i s t inc t  –  

d ropp ing  vo ice ]  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then jus t  s t i ck ing  w i th  the  f i rs t  

sentence,  Mr  G igaba,  what  was the  na ture  o f  the  med ia  

query  tha t  was ra ised?  

MR GIGABA :   I  th ink  i t  was about  the  meet ing  and  why i t  

was organ ised,  I  th ink  in  exact ly  the  manner  tha t  he  ra ises  
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i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then the  second sentence says:  

“The min i s te r ’s  spokesperson in  answer  to  th is  

med ia  query  to ld  the  re levant  jou rna l i s t  tha t  I  had  

gone to  the  meet ing  in  my p r iva te  capac i ty . ”  

D id  the  med ia  spokesperson say tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  th ink  so  and tha t  was the  reason  o f  h is  

g r ievance,  o f  Mr  Mah langu ’s  g r ievance.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he says:  

“When in  fac t  I  had gone to  the  meet ing  on  o f f i c ia l  10 

bus iness in  my capac i ty  as  the  m in is te r ’ s  spec ia l  

adv iser . ”  

I  unders tand you accept  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I t  i s  the  issue we  d iscussed ear l ie r  and I  

sa id  perhaps I  lack  a  way to  a r t i cu la te  i t .   I t  was not  an  

o f f i c ia l  bus iness meet ing .   I t  was  not  an  o f f i c ia l  bus iness 

meet ing  except  to  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Mah langu h imse l f  was a t  

tha t  t ime o f f i c ia l ly  my lega l  adv ise r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  what  you are  say ing  th is ,  tha t  i t  was a  

meet ing  wh ich  he  was a t tend ing  in  h is  capac i ty  as  your  20 

spec ia l  adv i se r .   What  the  s ta tus  o f  the  meet ing  is ,  you 

might  no t  be  sure  whether  i t  was o f f i c ia l  o r  no t  bu t  you are  

say ing  he  was there  because o f  h is  pos i t ion  as  your  

spec ia l  adv ise r?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  Cha i r ,  in  l ine  w i th  my request  to  h im.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   To  ensure  tha t  he  sh ie lds  me and the  res t  o f  

my team.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   From hav ing  to  be  requested to  do  th is  

because,  qu i te  honest ly ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i t  wou ld  have  

been in  my best  in te res t  o r  i t  wou ld  have been w i th in  my 

t ime l im i ts  to  be  fac i l i ta t ing  meet ings and such meet ings,  i f  

I  jus t  s t re tch  a  b i t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  beyond th is  po in t .   Such 

meet ings wou ld  have been -  you know,  i f  i t  was o f f i c ia l l y ,  i t  10 

wou ld  have taken p lace I  p resume a t  SAA and second ly ,  

such meet ings wou ld ,  when they happen,  no t  on ly  be  w i th  

regard  to  these spec i f i c  SOEs,  i t  wou ld  have been –  I  

mean,  w i th  respect  to  SAA but  there  wou ld  have been 

o thers  tha t  e i ther  requ i red  SOEs or  tha t  wou ld  have  

requ i red  me d i rec t l y  because,  as  I  say ,  in  some o f  the  

ins tances when he came to  me to say Mr  Min is te r ,  I  have  

met  w i th  b lack  lawyers  in  the  lega l  p ro fess ion ,  they  wou ld  

l i ke  a  meet ing  w i th  you,  we wou ld  fac i l i ta te  tha t  meet ing .   

In  tha t  case i t  shou ld  be  d i rec t  d iscuss ions and i t  was easy  20 

to  do  tha t  because you are  meet ing  an  organ isa t ion  and 

there  wou ld  have been ins tances,  even when I  was Min is te r  

o f  F inance when  I  met  w i th  ind iv idua l  bus iness peop le .   I  

remember  the  CEO of  G lencore  and a  number  o f  o thers .   

So we wou ld  a lways t ry .   You know,  i f  i ssues requ i red  a  
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po l i cy  d iscuss ion  then they wou ld  br ing  those issues to  me 

a f te r  he  has had those meet ings bu t  i f  they  d id  no t  requ i re  

tha t ,  he  wou ld  jus t  keep them away  f rom me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you ins t ruc t  your  med ia  

spokesperson to  respond to  th is  med ia  query  by  s ta t ing 

tha t  Mr  Mah langu had a t tended the  meet ing  in  h is  p r iva te  

capac i ty?  

MR GIGABA :   No .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Were  those  your  ins t ruc t ions? 

MR GIGABA :   No,  i t  was no my ins t ruc t ion ,  he  was 10 

respond ing  because the  spokesperson,  un less  i t  i s  rea l l y  a  

b ig  po l i cy  i ssue,  they do  not  have to  consu l t  w i th  me 

because I  wou ld  busy,  you are  conf ron ted w i th  a  number  o f  

quer ies  as  a  spokesperson,  you need to  th ink  on  your  fee t ,  

take  dec i s ions and the  t imes I  meet  the  spokesperson on  

TV a l ready comment ing  on  issues before  I  even know about  

them.   I  th ink  past  tense in  th is  case wou ld  be  impor tan t .   

You wou ld  meet  the  spokesperson  a l ready comment  in  TV 

before  you even  knew tha t  there  was an issue  be ing  

ra ised,  un less  i t  was major  po l i cy  i ssues where  the  20 

spokesperson wou ld  have to  wa i t  fo r  you to  say Min is te r ,  

there  is  th is  po l i cy  i ssue,  how do  we respond?  Shou ld  I  

pu t  the  DG to  respond to  the  mat te r  o r  wou ld  you  l i ke  to  

respond d i rec t l y?   And i f  they  thought  tha t  I  needed to  

respond d i rec t l y  as  the  m in i s te r  they wou ld  then ind ica te  
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as  such.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  I  see tha t  i t  i s  one 

o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  take  the  lunch b reak,  we 

w i l l  resume a t  two.   We ad journ .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  beg your  pardon,  I  

see tha t  the  o ther  lega l  rep resenta t i ves  are  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  fo rgo t  abou t  them.   Okay,  le t  me 

qu ick l y  hear .   Who wants  to  ta lk  f i rs t?   I f  you  can ta lk  f rom 

where  you are ,  i f  your  m ic  i s  work ing ,  tha t  wou ld  be  10 

conven ien t .   Whi le  they a re  do ing  tha t ,  I  jus t  remind you 

tha t  the  purpose o f  the  ar rangement  tha t  the  lega l  

rep resenta t i ves  shou ld  come here  today was to  see how 

much they th ink  they –  how much t ime they th ink  t hey w i l l  

need in  regard  to  each person so  tha t  hopefu l l y  we cou ld  

reach ag reement .   We do not  have  to  reach ag reement  now 

but  i f  I  know how much t ime you wou ld  l i ke  to  be  a l l oca ted ,  

as  you read summar ies  fo r  your  c l ien ts ,  then I  can  le t  you 

know in  due course  th rough  the  secre tary  o r  the  

Commiss ion ’s  lega l  team whether  the  t imes you are  ask ing  20 

fo r  a re  in  o r  no t .  

ADV VILAKAZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r ,  jus t  to  pu t  myse l f  on  

record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV VILAKAZI :    I t  i s  L  E V i lakaz i  and I  am wi th  my 
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co l league Advoca te  K  Ramenele (? ) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r .   We have prepared a  

dra f t  d i rec t i ve  t o  ass i s t  the  Cha i rperson in  mak ing  a  

dec is ion  on  the  a l loca t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    A  copy is  w i th  the  reg i s t ra r ,  I  beg leave  

to  hand i t  up .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    Cha i r ,  as  the  Sen ior  Counse l  Ma j ibede(?)  10 

ind ica ted  in  the  s i t t ing  o f  Wednesday,  the  16  June,  the  

pre fe rence is  tha t  in  o rde r  to  g ive  a  fu l l  p ic tu re  o f  the 

issues around a l l  the  imp l ica ted  o f f i c ia ls  o f  the  NPA,  the  

pre fe rence is  to  c lus te r  the  presenta t ion  accord ing  to  

top ics  and not  necessar i l y  accord ing  to  ind iv idua l  

imp l ica ted  pe rsons.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    So  tha t  i s  how they have been c lus te red  

and we have a t tempted to  make an es t imat ion  as  to  how 

much wou ld  be  requ i red  fo r  each  theme or  top ic  and the  20 

es t imat ion  is  a  rough one based on our  sense o f  how much 

t ime wou ld  be  requ i red  and i t  has no t  fac tored in  i f  

ob jec t ions a re  to  be  ra ised o r  perhaps there  are  quest ions 

tha t  a re  ra ised fo r  c la r i t y .   So the  es t imate  is  based  pure ly  

on  ou r  sense o f  how much t ime we  wou ld  need to  make the  
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p resenta t ion .   So  the  -  you know,  jus t  in  the  same way as  

Cha i rperson tha t  w i th  the  work  o f  the  Commiss ion  you have  

work  s t reams… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    The ar rangements  tha t  we have made is  

a lmost  ak in  to  your  work  s t reams.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    So  the  key issues wou ld  be  the  rend i t ion  

mat te r.   Obv ious l y  we w i l l  have a  genera l  ove rv iew wh ich  

we es t imate  wou ld  be  one and an  ha l f  hour  and then the  10 

rend i t ion  mat te r  and then there  are  sub th ings w i th in  

rend i t ion .   I  can  qu ick ly  take  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  do  no t  take  you th rough.  

ADV VILAKAZI :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because I  can see here .  

ADV VILAKAZI :    Yes,  so  i t  i s  the  rend i t ion  wh ich  we 

es t imate  w i l l  take  two hours  and  the  imp l ica ted  persons 

wou ld  be  Adv Mas ing ,  Ba loy i ,  Dr  Pre tor ius  and Maema and  

then the  Cato  Manor  wh ich  we es t imate  wou ld  take  about  

th ree  and an ha l f  hours ,  imp l ica ted  persons  be ing  20 

Advocates  Mas ing ,  Maema,  Maten jwa,  Chauke,  Mogat le  

and Dr  Pre to r ius .   The [ ind is t inc t ]  mat te rs  and these ones  

re la te  on ly  to  the  charges tha t  per ta in  to  KZN.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   Le t  me in te r rup t  you.   Has the  

lega l  team o f  the  Commiss ion  prepared anyth ing  tha t  
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ind ica tes  the i r  own es t imate  o f  how much t ime is  

reasonab le?   Yes,  go  to  the  pod ium because they are  

san i t i zed .  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    Cha i r,  w i thout  

go ing  th rough i t  in  much deta i l  because we obv ious ly  jus t  

had i t  here ,  I  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  do  no t  want  you to  do  i t ,  I  was 

ask ing  whether  you do have a  s im i la r  document  re f lec t ing  

your  s i tua t ion .  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    We do not  have a  

s im i la r  document .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:   We are  look ing  a t  

th is  document .   I  th ink  the  t ime l imi t  does look reasonab le .   

I  wou ld  on l y  want  to  say tha t  cer ta in l y  no t  a t  the  same 

occas ion  but  i t  migh t  be  tha t  the  lega l  team might  want  to  

respond these summar ies ,  tha t  cou ld  a lso  jus t  be  i n  wr i t ing  

and tha t  cou ld  be  d iscussed w i th  Adv Tu l ley  and yourse l f ,  20 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    But  I  th ink  tha t  I  

do  agree tha t  dea l ing  w i th  cer ta in  top ics  i s  p robab ly  a  good 

idea because i t  wou ld  draw every th ing  togethe r  and the  
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a f f idav i t s ,  Cha i r,  a re  hundreds o f  pages long,  so  I  th ink  

tha t  the  es t imate  o f  t ime is  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  on  the  face  o f  i t  -  I  can  ind ica te  

on  the  fac t  o f  i t  I  th ink  the  es t imates  seems to  be  much  

more  than what  I  expected but  I  say  tha t  on ly  hav ing  had a  

super f i c i a l  look .   I  th ink  what  we shou ld  do  is  th is .   Le t  me 

–  the  lega l  team o f  the  Commiss ion  must  p repare  

someth ing  tha t  ind ica tes  –  I  w i l l  have a  look.   I t  may we l l  

be  tha t  I  can make a  f ina l  dec is ion  when I  have got  the  

summar ies ,  i t  may be,  bu t  o f  course ,  I  th ink  as  I  have sa id  10 

the  o ther  day,  maybe i t  i s  be t te r  to  p repare  summar ies  

knowing how much t ime you have got .   So maybe in  a  way 

tha t  –  bu t  a t  the  same t ime maybe  I  need to  have an idea 

what  po in ts  a re  made in  the  summar ies  because when I  

read the  summary and I  see i t  i s  20  pages but  I  see tha t  

there  are  on ly  two po in ts  rea l l y  tha t  a re  be ing  made.   I  can  

say we l l ,  you  do  not  need th ree  hours  fo r  th is  bu t  when I  

do  no t  have tha t  summary,  I  m igh t  no t  know the  po in ts  you 

seek to  make.   But  I  th ink  maybe what  we shou ld  do  – what  

i s  the  day tha t  we ta lked about  when I  wou ld  g ive  th is  20 

oppor tun i ty?  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    We spoke about  

the  two days tha t  were  a l loca ted  fo r  the  cross-examinat ion  

tha t  was se t  down fo r  the  cross-examinat ion  o f  Dr  

Pre tor ius .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was… 

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    I t  was the  25  June 

and the  28 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  20 . . .?  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    25 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    25  and 28.  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    25  June  and 28  

June.   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  do  no t  see i t  be ing  

necessar i l y  rea l l y  o r  war ran ted to  use two days when we  10 

are  ta lk ing  about  summar ies ,  so  I  th ink  we shou ld  work  –  

or  tha t  shou ld  be  the  s ta r t ing  po in t  tha t  –  I  th ink  I  wou ld  

have d i f f i cu l t y  see ing  i t  as  war ran ted tha t  we shou ld  use 

two days.    But  le t  me have a  look a t  th is .   25  is  what  day 

o f  the  week next  week?  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    Fr i day,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  Fr iday?  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:    I t  i s  next  week  

Fr iday,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   I  th ink  i f  the 20 

Commiss ion ’s  lega l  team can t ry  and le t  me have the i r  

document  tha t  g ives  the i r  es t imate  on  Monday then maybe  

by  e i ther  Tuesday or  maybe Wednesday we shou ld  then  

have anothe r  appearance when I  can hopefu l l y  maybe g ive  

an  ind ica t ion ,  a  more  rea l i s t i c  ind ica t ion  o f  what  I  th ink .   I s  
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tha t  f ine  w i th  you? 

ADV VILAKAZI :    Yes.  

LEGAL COUNSEL FOR COMMISSION:   That  sounds  

reasonab le ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  le t  us  do  i t  tha t  way.   We want  to  

g ive  the  oppor tun i ty  bu t  we –  the  idea is ,  i t  i s  summar ies ,  

i t  i s  no t  the  who le  s to ry,  so  –  bu t  le t  us  do  i t  tha t  way.  

1 .  On Monday the  Commiss ion ’s  lega l  team must  g ive  

me the i r  document .  

2 .  On Wednesday  –  maybe le t  us  s imp ly  say  10 

Wednesday,  ten  o ’c lock  in  the  morn ing  do  come aga in  

and then we can take  i t  f rom there .   I s  tha t  a l r igh t?  

ADV VILAKAZI :    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VILAKAZI :    We a re  indebted  to  you,  Cha i r,  and to  Ms 

van Rensburg .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  le t  us  leave i t  a t  tha t  then,  th is  

mat te r.   Le t  me ad journ  then,  I  th ink  le t  us  say –  le t  us  

resume a t  ten  past  two ra ther  than two because  I  have  

eaten in to  even the  w i tness ’ t ime and everybody ’s  t ime.   20 

We wi l l  ad journ  and we w i l l  resume a t  ten  past  two.   We 

ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.    
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   Good  

a f te rnoon Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA:    Good a f te rnoon.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Be fore  lunch we were  a t  pa rag raph 

74,  o f  Mr  Mah langu ’s  a f f idav i t .  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  page 908 o f  Bund le  8 ,  dea l ing  

w i th  the  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Khona.    

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  jus t  wanted to  share  w i th  you what  10 

Mr  Khona ’s  ev idence was about  th is  meet ing .    He tes t i f ied  

be fore  th is  Commiss ion ,  Cha i rpe rson you w i l l  reca l l  in  

February  o f  2020,  some t ime ago.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Who was tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Khona.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Khona.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  a t  the  t ime o f  th is  meet ing  in  

October  o f  2012 Mr  Khona was the  Cha i rperson o f  SAA and 20 

I  th ink  a lso  the  ac t ing  CEO and what  he  sa id  i s  tha t  Mr  

Mah langu ar ranged th is  meet ing  and he went  o f f  and he 

met  –  he  went  to  the  Saxonwold  compound.   He sa id  tha t  

when he ar r i ved  there  he  was asked to  tu rn  in  h is  ce l l  

phone and p resent  a t  the  meet ing  was h imse l f  Mr  
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Mah langu,  Mr  S ipho Mahlangu and Duduzan i  Zuma,  and  

Tony Gupta  and he sa id ,  we l l ,  he  was congra tu la ted  on  h is  

appo in tment  and he was we lcomed to  the  fami ly.   

And somewhere  a long the  l ine ,  Mr  Tony Gupta  sa id  

to  h im tha t  we know tha t  you have  not  been pa id ,  you have 

not  been pa id  bo th  as  ac t ing  CEO and Cha i rpe rson,  and  

th is  i s  what  Mr  Khona then says,  th is  i s  a t  page 93  o f  the  

t ranscr ip t  on  day 206.   He says to  Mr  Khona;  

“We know you have not  been pa id  here  is  R100,000  

but  we are  jus t  we lcoming you to  the  fami ly.   We 10 

look a f te r  each o the r. ”  

And he goes on to  say:  

“Yes so  Cha i r,  I  look  a t  Tony and say okay,  bu t  I  do  

no t  need -  you do  not  need to  pay me money.   What  

a re  you pay ing  me th is  money fo r?   I  do  no t  need  

the  money,  I  am okay.   Then  he looks a t  me  

cyn ica l l y  and says,  what  k ind  o f  guy wou ld  -  a re  you  

re fus ing  th is  money?  And he says to  me,  no ,  here  

is  500,000. ”  

And he went  on  to  say tha t  Mr  Tony Gupta  took the  20 

R100,000 out  o f  the  drawer  in  cash and he assumed tha t  i f  

he  had agreed to  take  the  500,  he  wou ld  have jus t  reached 

in to  another  d rawer  and taken out  tha t  much cash.   

And then he conc luded h is  ev idence by  s ta t ing  tha t  

the  meet ing  then  tu rned to  the  bus iness o f  the  day  and he  
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was asked about  a  consu l t ing  cont rac t  and in  the  run  up  to  

th is  cont rac t  Lu f thansa Consu l t ing  had been chosen over  

McK insey to  p rov ide  a  tu rnaround  s t ra tegy.   And when Mr  

Khona to ld  Tony  Gupta  tha t  he  had appo in ted  or  tha t  

Lu f thansa Consu l t ing  wou ld  be  appo in ted ,  the  mee t ing  a l l  

o f  a  sudden came to  an  end.   

But  be fore  he  le f t ,  a  te lephone ca l l  was p laced to  

the  DG o f  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l i c  en terp r ises  and  i t  was 

s ta ted  to  th is  person over  the  phone tha t  he  shou ld  come 

there  qu ick l y  and exp la in  what  was go ing  on.   Mr  Khona 10 

then le f t  the  mee t ing  and he was subsequent ly  phoned by  

the  DG,  who asked h im,  why d id  you g ive  th is  con t rac t  to  

Lu f thansa? So tha t  i s  what  Mr  Khona -  what  h is  ev idence  

was,  do  you have  any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA:    Jus t  f in ish ing  notes sor ry,  Cha i rperson yes  

thank you.   Cha i rpe rson,  one o f  the  th ings wh ich  I  have  

exp la ined ear l ie r  i s  how not  on ly  these but  o the r  bus iness 

peop le  tended to  embel l i sh  the i r  c redent ia ls  by  c la im ing or  

by  name dropp ing .    

Now,  I  d id  no t  know what  -  I  do  no t  know what  they  20 

meant  by  we lcome to  the  fami ly  and I  am very  happy tha t  

Mr  Khona re fused to  take  the  money,  wh ich  was p laced to  

h im.   The -  i t  i s  p rec i se l y  th is  t ype o f  conduct ,  among  

o thers ,  tha t  led  to  the  dec is ion  on  my pa r t ,  to  jus t  beg in  

coo l ing  o f f  re la t ions  un t i l  I  cu t  them out  a l togethe r.   I  
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became aware  o f  th is ,  I  th ink ,  no t  the  exact  de ta i l  dur ing  

the  query  bu t  the  exact  de ta i l  l i ke  became aware  o f  i t  a f te r  

Mr  Khona ’s  ev idence befo re  the  Commiss ion  tha t  he  had  

been o f fe red ,  amounts  to  the  tune o f  R500,000.  

 I  cannot  conf i rm  tha t  i t  happened,  bu t  i t  i s  what  

was p resented before  the  Commiss ion .  Now,  I  wou ld  no t  

know where  th is  money was taken out  o f  and i t  cer ta in l y  

cou ld  never  have  been t rue  tha t  he  had not  been pa id  as  a  

Cha i rperson,  an  ac t ing  CE because in  a l l  hones ty  SAA 

wou ld  have had money to  pay the i r  Ac t ing  CE and the i r  10 

Board  members .   So tha t  wou ld  no t  have been t rue ,  I  do  

no t  know what  i t  meant .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  imag ine  tha t  one poss ib i l i t y  m ight  

have been admin i s t ra t i ve  fea tures  because i t  does happen,  

does i t  no t ,  we l l ,  maybe not  jus t  in  government ,  bu t  maybe 

in  the  pr iva te  sec tor,  tha t  someth ing  goes wrong and when  

peop le  are  expect ing  to  be  pa id  on  a  par t i cu la r  day,  the  

money does not  come in .   

And i t  i s  no t  necessar i l y  because there  is  no  money,  

i t  m igh t  be  maybe deta i l s  were  fu rn ished la te  or  whatever.  20 

That  k ind  o f  th ing  does happen tha t  comes to  my  mind as  

hav ing ,  as  a  poss ib i l i t y  i f  one l i s tens to  th is  s to ry.   

I  know tha t  the  s ta f f  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  I  am aware 

tha t  in  recent  months ,  some have been get t ing  the i r  

sa la r ies ,  a f te r  the  da tes  when they are  supposed to  ge t  i t  
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some t ime they do  not  ge t  i t  a t  a l l .   So  I  am s imply  say ing  

i t  m igh t  no t  be  tha t  when he says he  had not  been pa id ,  he  

means SAA d id  no t  have the  money to  pay.   One does not  

know or  I  do  no t  know how soon the  meet ing  was a f te r  he  

became Act ing  CE and then there  wou ld  have been  

admin is t ra t i ve  de lays.   I  am not  sure ;  I  am jus t  ment ion ing  

someth ing  tha t  comes to  my mind.  

MR GIGABA:    I t  i s  cer ta in ly  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  in  th is  

case the  d i f f i cu l t y  wou ld  be  tha t  Mr  Khona was the  Act ing  

CE and there fore  he  wou ld  have had author i t y  and as  –  i f  10 

my reco l lec t ion  serves me we l l  SAA had been g iven a  

government  guarantee ear l ie r  in  2012,  and so  they d id 

have some l iqu id i t y  to  be  ab le  to  pay sa la r i es .  

I  do  no t  reca l l  in  2012 there  had been p rob lems a t  

SAA wi th  regard  to  pay ing  sa la r ies  t imeous ly.   So -  and I  

do  no t  reca l l  be ing  to ld  o f  admin  g l i t ches w i th  regard  to  the 

payment  o f  sa la r i es .   So I  wou ld  no t  know what  th is  meant .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR GIGABA:    So  -  and then w i th  regards to  the  consu l t ing  

cont rac t  fo r  the  tu rna round s t ra tegy,  I  un for tunate ly,  was 20 

not  invo l ved in  the  award ing  o f  th is  cont rac t  and  a l l  the  

n i t t y  g r i t t y  tha t  were  invo lved in  i t .   I  had -  as  I  exp la ined  

on severa l  occas ions,  I  have -  I  had kept  myse l f  as  fa r  

away f rom cont rac t  i ssues and tenders  as  poss ib le .   

And prec i se l y  so  tha t  I  do  no t  ge t  imp l ica ted  in  any 



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 125 of 190 
 

poss ib le  way even before  I  knew tha t  there  wou ld  be  th is  

Commiss ion .   I  had kept  myse l f  as  fa r  away f rom tenders  

and cont rac t  i ssues as  I  sa id  ear l ie r,  inc lud ing  where  I  was  

be ing  canvassed to  in f luence the  depar tment  in  one way or  

the  o the r.   

I  wou ld  remember  Cha i rperson in  2014,  when I  

re tu rned to  Home Affa i rs ,  when I  was asked tha t  by  – ja  

2014,  when I  was  be ing  asked to  ass i s t  in  the  reso lu t ion  o f  

the  lega l  d ispute  be tween Home Affa i rs  and one IT 

company,  my response to  the  then  Treasurer  Genera l  o f  the 10 

ANC was tha t  the  mat te r  i s  in  Cour t ,  as  a  Min is te r,  I  shou ld  

no t  ge t  invo lved because I  wou ld  be  undermin ing  the  Cour t  

case o f  the  depar tment .   

And the re fo re ,  I  suggest  tha t  we le t  the  mat te r  be  

reso lved a t  tha t  leve l .   I  have taken the  same approach  

even w i th  regard  to  th is ,  I  know tha t  the  quest ion  does not  

-  i s  no t  ask ing  whether  I  was invo lved.    

I  th ink  the  quest ion  seeks to  know i f  I  was aware  o f  

th is  and what  my comment  wou ld  be ,  cer ta in ly  the  

depar tment  wou ld  no t  -  the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l i c  20 

Enterp r ises  wou ld  no t  be  invo l ved  and i f  i t  was and I  have 

never  been a le r ted  to  th is ,  i t  wou ld  have been wrong fo r  i t  

to  invo l ve  i t se l f  in  dec id ing  issues  o f  cont rac t  and tenders  

w i th in  a  par t i cu la r  en t i t y  because in  the  end,  i t  i s  tha t  

en t i t y  wh ich  must  account  fo r  whatever  dec is ions they have  
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taken th rough i t s  account ing  o f f i ce r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps i f  I  cou ld  jus t  p ick  up  on the  

las t  po in t  and then go back.  Mr  Khona cont inued h is  

ev idence to  say tha t  a  few days a f te r  th is  he  go t  a  le t te r  

f rom Pub l ic  En terpr i ses  say ing  tha t  they wanted to  

invest iga te  the  award  o f  the  cont rac t  to  Lu f thansa.   He  

says:  

“There  was an invest iga t ion  conducted and no fau l t  

was found but  he  says tha t  they s t i l l  wou ld  no t  a l low  

me to  s ta r t  to  appo in t  Lu f thansa Consu l t ing  to  s ta r t  10 

the  work . ”  

Do you know anyth ing  about  tha t?   

MR GIGABA:    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  i t ,  I  was not  aware  o f  

a  le t te r  f rom the  Depar tment  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises ,  

Cha i rperson and the  invest iga t ions  wh ich  took p lace  in  tha t  

regard .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then in  re la t ion  to  the  sa la ry  

i ssue,  Mr  Khona was asked,  we l l :  

“How d id  Tony Gupta  know about  th is?    

And he sa id :  20 

“Wel l ,  I  assumed tha t  the  adv i so r  knows because  

our  pay is  approved by  the  Min is t ry. ”  

And then he was asked:  

“D id  you f ind  i t  s t range a t  the  t ime  tha t  he  knew the  

s ta tus  o f  payment  o f  your  sa la ry?”  
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Mr  Khona sa id :  

“Abso lu te ly,  no ,  h is  knowledge was I  mean,  i t  jus t  

ba f f led  me because I  was to ld  by  the  Min is te r  

adv isor  tha t  he  is  an  impor tan t  s takeho lde r.   So h i s  

leve l  o f  knowledge seemed ext raord ina ry  when I  go t  

the i r  thoughts  o f  the  events  tha t  a re  happen ing . ”  

MR GIGABA:    Cha i rperson to  my reco l lec t ion  the  Min is te r  

d id  no t  approve the  sa la ry  o f  an  Act ing  CE,  i f  I  am not  

m is taken,  and I  am sub jec t  to  co r rec t ion ,  and Act ing  CE 

wou ld  ea rn  the  sa la ry  o f  the  res igned CE,  and tha t  d id  no t  10 

need min is te r ia l  approva l .  I  th ink  there fore ,  th is  mat te r  

wou ld  no t  have come to  my o f f i ce  a t  a l l  and even then,  you  

know,  sa la r ies  a re  no t  I  th ink  on  a  much broader  sca le ,  

sa la r ies  o f  CE ’s  o f  SOE’s  are  no t  approved by  the  M in is te r.   

 The Board  se ts  the  sa la ry  o f  the  CE.   What  d id  

happen,  I  th ink ,  be tween 2013 and 14 and I  do  no t  know 

when i t  was reso lved,  because by  the  t ime I  le f t  Pub l i c  

Enterp r ises ,  th is  had not  ye t  been reso lved.  What  d id  

happen is  tha t  we began an independent  invest iga t ion  in to  

the  sa la ry  sca les  o f  the  CE ’s  o f  the  SOE’s  in  our  por t fo l io ,  20 

inc lud ing  the i r  long and shor t  te rm  incent ives .   

Th is  had been prompted by  concerns among o thers ,  

tha t  the  CE ’s  o f  SOE’s  were  earn ing  la rge  sa la r ies  much 

la rger  than tha t  than tha t  o f  the  Pres ident  and second ly,  

tha t  in  many ins tances,  fo r  some but  in  many the  award ing 
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o f  incent ives  by  Boards to  execut ive  d i rec to rs  was  tak ing  

p lace regard less  o f  the  fac t  tha t  the  execut ive  d i rec to rs  

had pe r fo rmed we l l  and met  the  KPI ’s .   The quest ion  then 

tha t  was be ing  asked was,  how do we se t  th is?   

So when we under took th is  invest iga t ion  the  cab ine t  

fe l t  tha t  we needed to  expand i t  to  a l l  SOE’s  and the  

depar tment  engaged the  serv ices  o f  a  cer ta in  company,  

un for tunate ly,  I  cannot  remember  the  name o f  the  company 

now,  tha t  d id  tha t  -  in  tha t  was do ing  tha t  invest iga t ion  or  

d id  tha t  invest iga t ion  and SAA among o the rs  was ident i f ied  10 

as  a  m id- leve l  SOE and the  argument  was tha t  the  sa lary  

sca le  o f  the  SAA,  CEO was above  the  sca le  in  wh ich  they  

were  supposed to  be  earn ing ,  

But  i t  i s  a  mat ter  tha t  go t  reso lved a f te r  I  had le f t  

the  depar tment .   So a t  the  t ime o f  Mr  Khona ac t ing  and i f  I  

am not  m is taken ,  i t  d id  no t  ac t  fo r  ve ry  l ong because I  

th ink ,  subsequen t  a round 2013,  a  new CE Mr  Ka lawe was 

appo in ted .   So when Mr  Khona was ac t ing  as  CE the  sa la ry  

had a l ready been  determined a t  the  leve l  and sca le  o f  the  

prev ious res igned  CEO tha t  had no t  needed my approva l .   20 

So i f  anybody knew about  i t ,  i t  wou ld  probab ly  -  

because e i ther  the  mat te r  i s  pub l i c  o r  somebody has 

leaked or  d i sc losed tha t  in fo rmat ion .   I t  cer ta in ly  d id  no t  

come f rom me or  f rom the  processes tha t  o f f i c ia l l y  i nvo lved  

my o f f i ce .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  Mr  Mah langu te l l  you  about  th is?  

MR GIGABA:    No.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wou ld  you have expected h im to?  

MR GIGABA:    Wel l ,  I  wou ld  have expected h im  to  bu t  I  

guess,  see ing  tha t  –  ja ,  I  wou ld  have expected h im to ,  

espec ia l l y  the  o f fe r  o f  a  cash benef i t  bu t  pe rhaps he  

dec ided not  to  d isc lose  i t ,  because i t  eventua l l y  d id  no t  

happen,  Mr  Khona re fused to  take  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So as  you  s i t  now,  assuming tha t  

th is  i s  cor rec t ,  what  i s  your  comment  o f  th is  behav iour  on  10 

the  par t  o f  the  Gupta ’s?  

MR GIGABA:    I  th ink  I  have ind ica ted ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i t  

was such type o f  behav iour  tha t  began to  concern  us  and 

me par t i cu la r l y  because o f  my f r iendsh ip  w i th  Mr  A jay  and I  

began to  v iew th i s  conduct  in  name dropp ing  and a  number  

o f  o ther  th ings as  qu i te  d isconcer t i ng  and I  th ink  tha t  i t  led 

eventua l l y  to  me coo l ing  and subsequent ly  cu t t ing  o f f  my  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then what  o the r  –  we l l  you say  

you were  no t  aware  o f  th is ,  so  what  concerns were  ra ised 20 

w i th  you or  came onto  your  radar  tha t  caused you to  make  

tha t  dec i s ion?  

MR GIGABA:    As  I  have jus t  sa id  Cha i rpe rson,  among 

o thers ,  the  pub l i c  –  the  issues wh ich  were  emanat ing  f rom 

the  med ia ,  concerns about  the ,  you know,  pe rvas i ve  
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in f luence o f  th is  fami ly,  the  name dropp ing ,  par t i cu la r ly  o f  

the  Pres ident ,  I  th ink  i t  became -  i t  was our  respons ib i l i t y  

to  p ro tec t  the  name o f  the  Pres ident  f rom anybody c la im ing 

tha t  -  c la im ing anyth ing  about  the  Pres ident  and the  name 

dropp ing  o f  o ther  Min is te rs  and the  issues tha t  were  be ing  

ra ised,  so  i t  rea l l y  d id  concern .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Was any invest iga t ion ,  was there  

ever  any cons ide ra t ion  g iven to  an  invest iga t ion  in to  the  

Gupta ’s?  MR GIGABA:    By  whom?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    By  government .  10 

MR GIGABA:    No,  to  my reco l lec t ion ,  no .  I  th ink  tha t  

happened,  I  suppose,  a f te r  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tors  Repor t  in  

2016,  as  the  Cha i rpe rson po in ted  out .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  I  jus t  wanted to  t r y  and  f ind  the  

da te  in  your  a f f idav i t  when you say you coo led  down your  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  the  Gupta ’s .   Was tha t  -  to  the  best  o f  

your  reco l lec t ion ,  was tha t  in  2013  or  2014?  

MR GIGABA:    I t  began in  2013,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe,  Mr  Myburgh was s t i l l  go ing  to  

ment ion  th is  maybe you shou ld  be  to ld  tha t  in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  20 

wh ich  I  -  wh ich  may be another  a f f idav i t  no t  th is  one.   Mr  

Mah langu den ies  Mr  Khona ’s  vers ion  tha t  Mr  Tony Gupta  

o f fe red  h im money.   So I  jus t  men t ioned tha t  he  obv ious l y  

admi ts  the  meet ing ,  as  he  does but  he  den ies  tha t  par ts .   

So I  thought  I  wou ld  jus t  ment ion  tha t .   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   

MR GIGABA:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  me ask th is  quest ion  about  Mr  

Mah langu hav ing  organ ised or  fac i l i ta ted  tha t  meet ing ,  do  

you know any reason why he wou ld  no t  say  to  somebody,  

whethe r  tha t  was  Tony Gupta  or  whoever,  who wanted to  

meet  w i th  a  CEO or  any o f f i c ia l  o f  an  SOE,  do  you know o f  

any reason why he wou ld  no t  say  contac t  them d i rec t l y  and  

ra the r  than h im fac i l i ta t ing  these  meet ings than go ing  to  10 

the  ex ten t  o f  a t tend ing  the  meet ing?  

I  mean,  I  asked myse l f  the  quest ion ,  why must  he  

a t tend tha t  meet ing?  Maybe there  is  a  reason but  I  am jus t  

inqu i r i ng  f rom you,  why he wou ld  no t  say we l l ,  Mr  Tony 

Gupta  maybe th is  i s  the  number  fo r  Mr  Khona i f  you w ish  to  

see h im –  meet  w i th  h im ar range w i th  h is  o f f i ce .  

MR GIGABA:    I  wou ld  no t  know the  reason Cha i rperson.  

My presumpt ion  wou ld  be  tha t  he  probab ly  wanted  to  hear  

what  was be ing  d iscussed so  tha t  i f  i t  had anyth ing  tha t  he  

wou ld  need to  in te rvene in  o r,  you know,  a le r t  me  about ,  20 

then he wou ld  do  so .   

I  do  no t  necessar i l y  th ink  tha t  the re  was any mot ive  

fo r  h im be ing  there  tha t  was in  favour  o f  the  peop le  tha t  

the  sa id  CEO was meet ing  w i th ,  bu t  cer ta in l y  Cha i rperson  

w i th  regards to  fac i l i ta t ing  the  meet ings he  d id  fac i l i ta te  
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qu i te  a  number  o f  meet ings.  I  th ink ,  as  he  admi t ted  in  h is  

own a f f idav i t  tha t  he  d id  fac i l i ta te  a  number  o f  meet ings,  

he  d id  s i t  and l i s ten  to  peop le  and he wou ld  do  so  on ly  

p ro fess iona l l y  and I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  he  expected  out  o f  

those meet ings to  be  any ou tcomes tha t  were  ou ts ide  the  

lega l  o r  p rocurement  f ramework ,  e i ther  o f  government  o r  

the  ex i s t ing  SOE.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  my concern  about  i t  i s  th is  tha t  h im 

be ing  your  lega l  adv iser,  spec ia l  adv isor  h i s  fac i l i ta t ion  o f  

the  meet ings,  and h is  p resence in  some o f  those meet ings 10 

cou ld  lend a  ce r ta in  c redence o f  c red ib i l i t y  as  i f  tha t  

in te rac t ion  is  approved by  yourse l f .   

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  what  is  be ing  sa id ,  o r  whatever  

i s  be ing  in i t ia ted  has go t  your  b less ing  even i f  i t  m igh t  no t  

have but  the  peop le  who say,  cou ld  you p lease fac i l i ta te  

th is  meet ing  probab ly  they know why they are  no t  phon ing  

those peop le  d i rec t l y.  Maybe they th ink ,  we l l ,  i f  I  phoned  

the  CEO d i rec t l y,  he  m ight  re fuse but  i f  he  ge ts  a  ca l l  f rom 

the  Min is te r ' s  adv isor,  h is  un l i ke l y  to  re fuse even to  come 20 

to  meet  in  my house,  ra ther  than us  meet ing  a t  SAA.  

So tha t  tha t  i s  the  concern  tha t  a r ises f rom me to  

say,  why shou ld  t h is  peop le  no t  a r range d i rec t l y?   Why do 

they need the  Min is te rs  adv isor?   Why does the  Min is te r 's  

adv isor  ge t  invo lved?  You unders tand?  
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MR GIGABA:    I  unders tand you per fec t l y  Cha i rperson,  and 

I  unders tand the  imp l ica t ions o f  the i r  invo lvement .   I  

guess,  jus t  to  make two qu ick  po in ts  in  tha t  regard .   One is  

tha t  I  th ink  there  are  impor tan t  lessons because a t  the  t ime 

there  was -   you  know,  when you  become appo in ted  as  a  

Min is te r,  there  is  no  induct ion  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you need  

to  watch  ou t  fo r  the  fo l low ing th ings.   

I  th ink  jus t  bas ic  induct ion ,  you know,  tha t  ass i s ts  

you because you  are  new to  the  o f f i ce ,  espec ia l l y  i f  you  

are  coming in to  o f f i ce  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime and so  there  is  no t  10 

tha t  t ype o f  induct ion  tha t  says look watch  ou t  fo r  these 

th ings,  i f  th is  happens,  the  imp l ica t ions cou ld  be  th is ,  i f  

tha t  happens,  the  imp l ica t ions cou ld  be  th is  and i t  wou ld  

compromise  the  in tegr i t y  o f  the  ins t i tu t ion .   

But  second ly,  I  th ink  i t  became impor tan t  and was a  

t ime ly  in te rvent ion  to  adopt  th is  leg is la t ion  wh ich  in  te rms  

o f  wh ich  -  i f  somebody says,  I  have a  donat ion  to  make,  

can you meet  w i th  me,  you say to  them,  the  par ty  i s  funded  

th rough the  Democracy Fund in  Par l iament  and there fo re ,  

anyth ing  e lse  -  your  donat ion  does not  necessar i l y  have to  20 

be  t ied  to  you be ing  ass i s ted  w i th  meet ings o r  whatever  

and i t  has  to  be  d isc losed and i t  w i l l  be  d isc losed,  go  to  

the  Treasurer  Genera l ,  and tha t  is  how i t  i s  go ing  to  be  

hand led .   

So I  th ink  tha t  has ass is ted  a  grea t  dea l  because a t  
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the  t ime,  i t  d id  no t  ex is t ,  and we were  bas i ca l l y,  you know,  

funct ion ing  w i thout  tha t  t ype o f  gu idance and f ramework ,  

we jus t  made l i fe  ra ther  d i f f i cu l t  when you look a t  i t  f rom 

h inds igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  know tha t  you den ied  Mr  

Sa lugee ’s  vers ion  tha t  he  met  w i th  you a t  the  Gupta  

res idence and Tony Gupta  in t roduced h im to  you.  

MR GIGABA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  i f  i t  i s  t rue  do  that  –  that  meet ing  

took p lace.   I t  may wel l  be that  even in  that  context  Tony 10 

Gupta was t ry ing to  send a message to Mr Saloojee to  say,  

you see we are c lose to  the Min is ter  –  to  your  Min is te r  you 

know he is  here at  our  house.   As  I  say I  know tha t  you –  

you have sa id tha t  meet ing d id not  take p lace but  I  am just  

saying i f  that  vers ion is  t rue of  Mr  Saloojee i t  may wel l  be  

that  is  that  k ind o f  s i tuat ion and i t  may be someth ing that  is  

consistent  wi th  name dropping that  you say you became 

concerned about .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes – wi th  the  except ion Chai rperson as you 

correct ly  say that  I  was not  a t  that  meet ing.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no,  no I  understand ja .   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  was going to  just  po int  out  the  

s imi lar i t ies between the two meet ings but  I  th ink that  has 

been deal t  wi th .   I  just  wanted to  add to what  the 

Chai rperson asked you about  and that  is  that  Mr Kona’s  
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ev idence was that  when Mr Mahlangu approached h im to 

have th is  meet ing he to ld  h im he is  very busy.   He wanted 

know why these people could not  come to h is  off ice and Mr 

Mahlangu said  no,  no th is  i s  now urgent  we have to go  

there.   Do you have any comment  on that?  

MR GIGABA:   No Chai rperson I  would not  know what  was 

the urgency of  –  of  go ing there because my expectat ion  

would be that  the meet ing would take p lace at  SAA off i ce  

where Mr Kona was in  h is  envi ronment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then perhaps just  one last  th ing  10 

Mr Gigaba i f  we can get  your  comment  on th is .   Leaving  

aside the – the quest ion of  the money and the br ibe  I  mean 

would i t  be appropr ia te for  somebody l ike to  Mr Gupta to  get  

ho ld of  Mr Mahlangu and say,  I  want  you to  ar range a 

meet ing for  me wi th  Kona to d iscuss the award  of  the 

consul t ing cont ract .   Would that  fa l l  w i th in  the bounds of  a  – 

of  h im managing the re la t ionship fo r  you? 

MR GIGABA:   Of  course not  –  of  course not  and I  do  not  

th ink Mr Mahlangu h imsel f  would have approached that  

mat te r  wi th  an ex – wi th  an expectat ion unless Mr Kona 20 

says Mr Mahlangu contacted h im af terwards to  say actual l y  

rev iew th is  as  – as  i t  has been suggested.   I  th ink he then 

says the – the le t ter  came and the processes came f rom the 

department  af terwards.   But  o f  course Mr Mahlangu would  

have been wrong to – to  have sought  to  inst ruct  a  CEO of  a  
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SOE wi th regard to  a cont ract .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do not  know whether  Mr Myburgh you 

have any recol lec t ion whether  Mr –  what  Mr Mahlangu says 

was d iscussed at  that  meet ing whether  he admi ts that  what  

was d iscussed is  what  Mr Kona said was d iscussed because 

I  –  I  –  I  would imagine Mr Gigaba that  Mr Mahlangu would  

have wanted to  know what  the meet ing was about  before he 

could go there.   So i f  he at tended the meet ing and i f  he  

fac i l i ta ted the meet ing one expects that  he would have 

known what  i t  was about .   Of  course we do not  have Tony 10 

Gupta ’s  vers ion o f  what  the meet ing – what  was d iscussed.   

We do have Mr Kona’s vers ion.   I  th ink Mr Myburgh does not  

th ink that  Mr Mahlangu has to ld  us what  was d iscussed at  

the meet ing or  he might  not  recal l   But  Mr Kona is  qu i te  

c lear  what  was d iscussed.   So – so – and i f  i t  is  t rue that  

what  was d iscussed was what  Mr Kona says was d iscussed 

i t  seems that  i t  would be inappropr ia te fo r  h im to fac i l i ta te  

such a meet ing or  –  and even at tend.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes I  th ink Chai rperson i t  would be fa i r  to  ask 

Mr Mahlangu to – to  comment .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:   On that  –  on that  meet ing in  par t i cu la r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:   And i ts  contents thereof .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  
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MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  he has f i led an aff idavi t  i t  is  just  that  I  

do not  know where to  f ind i t  immediate ly.   He has g iven a  

vers ion but  I  do not  – I  do not  seem to recal l  –  I  seem to 

th ink he denies even the d iscussion of  the Luf thansa ent i ty  

that  cont ract  – I  am not  –  I  may be wrong about  that  but  he 

cer ta in ly  denies the issues of  the money.  But  Mr  Kona has 

been c lear  as to  what  was d iscussed.   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  w i l l  ask my col league to t ry  and f ind  

that  as we go a long.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No that  i s  f ine.   We do not  have to  

resolve i t  now.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can we then – wel l  le t  me – le t  us 

move to another  top ic  and that  i s  the – my t r ip  to  Ind ia in  

January 2011 at  page 909.    

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We have deal t  wi th  – wi th  th is  before I  

just  want  to  take you through what  Mr Mahlangu has to  say.   20 

At  paragraph 93.  

“ In  January 2011 at  the inv i ta t ion o f  Ranesh 

Gupta a I  t ravel led to  Ind ia to  at tend a  

wedding of  one of  h is  fami ly  members.   A t  

the t ime I  had on ly met  Ranesh Gupta twice  
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f i rs t  in  December 2011 af ter  the  Min is te r  

br ie fed me about  the Gupta fami ly  and 

tasked me to manage them and the second 

t ime in  January 2011”  

Presumably that  should be 2012 or  the December 

should 10 I  suspect .  Is  that  r ight .  

MR GIGABA:   Probably.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink December should be 10 ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   10 yes.    10 

“On both occasions I  met  wi th  h im in  the  

course of  my dut ies.  I  d id  not  have any 

personal  re la t ionship wi th  h im when he 

inv i ted me to the wedding. ”  

 94.  

“To the best  o f  my recol lect ion Rajesh Gupta 

covered the expenses for  the t r ip .   Because 

I  d id  not  consider  th is  a socia l  excurs ion and 

was not  f r iends wi th  Ranesh Gupta I  would  

not  have undertaken the t r ip  at  my own 20 

expense. ”  

 Then at  95.  

“ I  d isc losed th is  inv i ta t ion to  the Min is te r  I  

annex a copy of  my emai l  to  the Min is te r  

dated 18 January 2011. ”  
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 Which we went  th rough last  t ime.  

“ In  which I  in formed the Min is ter  o f  the t r ip  

and sought  h is  approval  to  undertake i t . ”  

 Perhaps I  could just  ask you to  tu rn to  that  emai l  –  

there is  just  one quest ion I  want  to  ra ise wi th  you.   A t  page 

210 – page 920 the f i rs t  bu l le t  po int .  

“A l though th is  i s  a  pr ivate excurs ion i t  p romises to  g ive 

great  po l i t i ca l  va lue.   I  therefore suggest  that  we take fu l l  

advantage of  i t . ”  

 You want  to  comment  on that?  10 

MR GIGABA:   As I  sa id in  my previous response to th is  

paragraph Chai rperson the t r ip  was a pr ivate excurs ion – i t  

has no pol i t i ca l  va lue great  o r  less .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  Mr Mahlangu you accept  had a 

d i f ferent  v iew.   He says:  

“ I t  promises to  be  of  great  po l i t ica l  va lue. ”  

MR GIGABA:   I t  has no pol i t ica l  va lue Chai rperson.   So i t  

was an opin ion here in  January 2011 and as he says in  h is  

aff idavi t  i t  was just  a  huge wedding.   He spent  very l i t t le  

t ime wi th  Mr Rajesh Gupta and only saw h im at  the 20 

organised events which were la rge and not  conducive to  any 

socia l  or  o ther  ser ious d iscussion.   So at  the t ime he 

received the inv i ta t ion he thought  i t  was of  g reat  po l i t ica l  

va lue.   A t  the inv i ta t ion – at  the wedding i tse l f  he real i sed 

that  i t  was just  s imply a wedding wi th  – wi th  – he says 
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which was not  conducive to  any socia l  or  o ther  ser ious 

d iscussions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes but  a t  the t ime that  he received 

the inv i ta t ion d id  you th ink i t  would be of  g reat  po l i t i ca l  

va lue for  h im to a t tend? 

MR GIGABA:   No.   The inv i ta t ion was c lear  that  i t  is  a  

wedding.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you were happy fo r  h im to go to  

the wedding? 

MR GIGABA:   I  th ink as I  have ind icated Chai rperson I  d id  10 

not  respond to th is  emai l .   I  d id  not  respond to h im and I  

sa id that  i t  was in  h indsight  i t  was an overs ight  on my par t  

to  not  have sa id to  h im there is  no great  po l i t i ca l  va lue do 

not  go to  i t .   But  the emai l  which he sent  me and perhaps 

that  is  where I  –  I  should have you know exerc ised greater  

caut ion conta ined a whole lo t  o f  th ings and I  just  d id  not  

th ink i t  was worth  responding to .   I t  conta ined a whole lo t  o f  

th ings not  on ly about  the wedding  i t  was about  the  GCE of  

Transnet ,  the Gama issue,  meet ing senior  ed i to rs and so  

on.   So my response to the quest ion Chai rperson is  that  I  20 

d id not  th ink i t  conta ined any va lue.   Perhaps the only 

mistake I  made was not  in  respond ing to  i t  to  say to  h im do 

not  go.   But  I  would have had to  respond to a l l  the other  

issues which he had ra ised in  the –  in  the memo – I  mean in  

the emai l  which he had sent  me.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gigaba i f  you had been inv i ted to  

th is  wedding would you have gone? 

MR GIGABA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So then on what  basis d id  you a l low 

Mr Mahlangu to go or  put  d i f fe rent ly  why d id you not  s top  

h im f rom going? 

MR GIGABA:   As  you say I  d id  not  a l low h im to go.   I  say I  

d id  not  respond to the emai l  which  he probably presumed to 

be permiss ion fo r  h im to t ravel .   I  d id  not  respond to the 

emai l .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then he says at  96 at  page 909.  

“ I  considered the  t r ip  of  s t ra tegic  pol i t ica l  

importance to  the Min is te r  as  d id he 

because i t  was important  to  understand the 

Gupta fami ly  as  par t  o f  the responsib i l i t y  

that  the Min is ter  had tasked me wi th . ”  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson I  d id  not  consider  th is  to  be of  

s t ra tegic pol i t i ca l  importance – not  a t  a l l .   I t  was a wedding 

– i t  was a wedding inv i ta t ion.   He thought  tha t  i t  was 

important  to  understand the fami ly.   They were important  20 

stakeholders in  the ANC.   He – i t  was h is  in i t ia l  –  because 

as he says he d id not  know them pr io r  to  2010 – pr ior  to  

December 2010.    

 Now tak ing f rom the br ie f ing I  had g iven h im where I  

had sa id they are  one of  the impor tant  s takeholders  of  the 
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ANC he presumed them to be – I  mean he presumed th is  

inv i ta t ion to  be o f  s t ra tegic pol i t ica l  importance to  me.   I t  

actual ly  was not  and I  d id  not  respond because i f  I  thought  

i t  was I  would have responded to h im to say oh yes indeed 

i t  is  a  g reat  –  a great  opportuni ty  p lease do t ravel .   But  I  d id  

not  respond.   I  say the overs ight  on my par t  was on not  

responding to  that  par t icu lar  aspect  o f  the emai l  which 

resul ted in  h im t ravel l ing and f ind ing out  when he was far  

away that  in  actual  fact  th is  i s  just  a  b ig  wedding.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now at  page 933 you respond at  10 

paragraph 8.4 by saying:  

“Mr Mahlangu d isc losed the inv i ta t ion to  

at tend the  wedding and I  d id  not  have an 

object ion to  i t . ”  

MR GIGABA:   By  saying I  d id  not  have an object ion  to  i t  I  

meant  I  d id  not  respond.   I  d id  not  respond to say to  h im do 

not  go  and that  is  why I  cont inue in  the next  sentence to  

say:  

“ In  h indsight  I  do not  see any purpose which  

was to  be served by h im at tending  a pr ivate  20 

wedding. ”  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page is  that  Mr Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  page 933 Chai rperson paragraph 

8.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Yes You may cont inue.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  wanted to  ask you in  re la t ion to  

th is  I  understood your  ev idence and you must  cor rec t  me i f  I  

am wrong at  the previous s i t t ing  to  in i t ia l ly  have been that  

you d id not  know what  Mr Mahlangu was going to  do in  

Ind ia.  

MR GIGABA:   He had d isc losed the inv i ta t ion  to  the 

wedding.   I  understood i t  to  be a  wedding – ce lebrat ion – 

music – dance –  food – whatever  e lse but  what  po l i t i ca l  

purpose would be served in  at tending a wedding –  I  have 

at tended many weddings I  have not  been at  a  wedding  10 

where pol i t i cs was d iscussed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  want  to  read to  you a passage of  

your  previous ev idence where I  asked you.  

“So d id you enqui re what  he was doing in  

Ind ia?  So as I  have ind icated I  d id  not  ask  

h im.”  

 Again the impression is  correct  me i f  I  am wrong 

your  test imony before was that  you d id not  know what  he  

went  to  do in  Ind ia.  

MR GIGABA:   No.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   D id you a lways know that  he was 

going to  at tend a wedding? 

MR GIGABA:   He had sent  me –  Chai rperson may I  re fe r  

you to  SM17? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  
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MR GIGABA:   F i rs t  paragraph i f  I  may read – i f  I  may 

quote? 

CHAIRPERSON:   The emai l?  

MR GIGABA:   The emai l  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:    

“ I  have been inv i ted on a t r ip  to  Ind ia. ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    

“A l though th is  is  a  pr ivate excurs ion i t  10 

promises to  be of  great  po l i t i ca l  va lue. ”  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   Now some – so I  understood i t  be just  that .   

No pol i t i ca l  purpose.   I t  is  a  pr ivate  excurs ion.   I  th ink I  had 

heard that  i t  was going to  be – i t  was going to  be a wedding 

so I  –  I  le f t  i t  a t  that  because I  d id  not  – you know I  d id  not  

respond to i t .   I  d id  not  th ink that  a  wedding is  o f  any 

s ign i f i cances of  any pol i t ica l  s ign i f i cance.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And perhaps we move off  was Mr 

Mahlangu then paid by the state whi ls t  he went  on th is  as 20 

he ca l ls  i t  00:17:41 to  Ind ia?  

MR GIGABA:   As I  th ink at  –  as I  sa id in  my previous 

response Chai rperson that  no – no  other  than me ta lk ing to  

h im af terwards and saying you should not  have gone there  

is  no other  penal ty  that  was imposed on h im.   I  just  
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ind icated to  h im that  you should not  have gone on th is  t r ip  

and in  fu tu re we should be carefu l  not  to  undertake t r ips of  

th is  nature and that  was i t .   I t  ended up there wi th  an  

apology on h is  par t .   I  d id  not  even put  i t  in  wr i t ing I  had an 

ora l  d iscussion wi th  h im.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  take i t  then he was paid?  

MR GIGABA:   He was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Was i t  appropr ia te that  your  advisor  

should go on a t r ip  wi th  a fami ly  – pr ivate fami ly  and be 10 

away f rom work I  th ink fo r  about  a week i f  I  am not  mistaken 

and be paid  by the state  for  a  t ime that  he  was not  work ing  

– he was maybe having a good t ime in  Ind ia?  

MR GIGABA:   Chai rperson I  th ink I  have sa id in  h indsight  I  

should have sa id  no  to  the t r ip  and I  d id  repr imand h im 

af terwards.   I  th ink i f  there was a need for  an addi t ional  

penal ty  you know the benef i t  o f  h indsight  i s  that  i t  a l lows 

you to  v iew th ings f rom a d i f ferent  perspect ive f rom the t ime 

when they happened.   Maybe we would have sa id to  h im fo r  

th is  week that  you were away we shal l  deduct  f rom your  20 

sa lary but  a t  the t ime we d id not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you see i t  is  not  a  penal ty.   I f  

you had not  pa id  h im – i f  the department  had not  pa id h im 

for  that  week that  he was away I  do  not  know i f  i t  was seven 

days or  f ive days or  even ten but  I  th ink i t  was less than ten 
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you are ent i t led to  be paid i f  you have worked.   That  is  the 

pr inc ip le .   That  is  why the – the other  s ide of  the co in is  i f  

you have not  worked you wi l l  not  be paid.  That  is  obviously 

subject  to  a leave s i tuat ion i f  you have appl ied fo r  leave or  

you on leave that  is  d i f ferent .   There is  a  statutory  reg ime 

for  that  but  i f  you do not  work you do not  get  pa id.  So what  

we have here is  a  s i tuat ion where  your  advisor  goes away 

to Ind ia and to the extent  that  he was not  work ing or  he was 

not  there to  per form any of  o ff ic ia l  dut ies he should not  

have been paid for  the days that  he was there.   Would you 10 

agree? 

MR GIGABA:   Wel l  perhaps Chai rperson that  should have 

happened.   I t  just  d id  not  happen a t  the t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no I  understand when you say i t  d id  

not  happen but  I  am just  ask ing whether  you go a long wi th  

the idea that  i t  should have happened.  

MR GIGABA:   I t  should have happened Chai rperson but  I  

guess above i t  the t r ip  should not  have been undertaken.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   I  know that  … 

MR GIGABA:   And i f  I  do not  d isrupt  the Chai r  I  th ink  both  

Mr Mahlangu and I  both agree because he a lso h is  own 

assessment  i s  that  the t r ip  was of  no va lue and I  say in  my 

response that  in  h indsight  there  was no purpose to be 
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served by th is  t r ip  and I  have sa id  that  i t  was an overs ight  

on my par t  not  to  have sa id to  h im,  no do not  go.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And would you accept  as we l l  that  i t  

was inappropr ia te  for  Mr Mahlangu’s t r ip  to  have been paid 

for  by the Gupta ’s?  

MR GIGABA:   I t  was inappropr ia te  Chai rperson but  i t  was 

them who had inv i ted h im to the wedding.   There have been 

many instances where  people have been inv i ted to  soccer,  

in ternat ional  spor t  tournaments and so on by the pr ivate  10 

business people or  companies and the t r ips were paid  for  by 

those companies.   I  th ink our  response in  an organised 

fashion should cover  a l l  such ins tances so that  we – we 

prevent  the possib i l i t y  o f  people  undertak ing t r ips even 

when they have appl ied fo r  leave being paid for  because i t  

i f  somebody says to  you there is  a  – the Euros – the Euros 

2020 we have got  t ickets for  you fo r  the semi- f ina ls  and the  

f ina ls .   The semi - f ina ls  wi l l  be  in  that  count ry –  the f ina ls  

wi l l  be in  another  count ry – we wi l l  pay for  your  t r ip  – we 

wi l l  pay for  the f l ights and accommodat ion.   There have 20 

been many instances where government  off i c ia ls  previously 

have accepted those – have accepted those inv i ta t ions and 

gone on those t r ips.   I  th ink our  response should be  

organised to  be able to  deal  wi th  a l l  such instances not  on ly  

th is  one.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.   Can I  ask you then p lease 

to  turn to  page 915.   I  want  to  deal  wi th  the  appointment  of  

Mr Nai thani  as a d i rector.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry Mr? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Nai thani  –  Nai thani .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   You moving away f rom th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  am moving to  page 915.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay before you move away.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  me ask th is  quest ion Mr Gigaba.   You 

said that  when Mr Myburgh drew your  at tent ion to  a  

paragraph in  your  aff idavi t  where you deal t  wi th  th is  t r ip .  

MR GIGABA:   Yes 8.4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  a t  page 933.  

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja paragraph 8.4.   You said – you say in  

that  paragraph.  

“Mr Mahlangu d isc losed the inv i ta t ion to  

at tend a wedding and I  d id  not  have an 20 

object ion to  i t .   In  h indsight  I  do no t  see any 

purpose which was to  be served by h im 

at tending a pr ivate wedding. ”  

 You said that  when you sa id  you had no object ion to  

i t  you meant  that  you – le t  me not  t ry  and put  words in  your  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 149 of 190 
 

mouth.   P lease remind me what  you sa id that  mean – that  

meant?  

MR GIGABA:   That  I  had not  f i rmly  sa id to  h im do not  go.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:   I  mean I  d id  not  respond to the – to  the emai l  

which he had sent  me which I  guess he presumed to be an 

approval  on my par t  for  h im to go to  t ravel .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Now when you gave evidence last  

t ime about  th is  t r ip  and I  th ink you have h inted at  i t  again 

you sa id when he came back you repr imanded h im.  10 

MR GIGABA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now my d i f f icu l ty  wi th  having sa id you had 

no object ion to  i t  and having sa id  you repr imanded h im is  

that  my understanding would be tha t  i f  you had no ob ject ion 

to  i t  you would otherwise meaning that  you saw noth ing  

wrong wi th  i t  and then i f  he went  on the basis that  you had 

no object ion to  i t  why would you repr imand h im when he 

came back? 

MR GIGABA:   As I  have sa id Chai rperson repeatedly  that  by 

saying I  had no object ion to  i t  I  meant  I  d id  not  respond to 20 

h is  emai l  to  put  i t  f i rmly to  h im that  he  should no t  t ravel  

which he then would have read to mean that  I  approve of  

the t r ip .   Having  t ravel led I  –  and on h is  return  I  then 

repr imanded h im because the Chie f  o f  Staff  was not  aware  

that  he had under taken such a t r ip .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So you – were you the only one who was 

aware that  he had undertaken the t r ip?  

MR GIGABA:   He had sent  the emai l  to  me.   I  do not  know i f  

he had spoken to anybody e lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Who e lse ja .   Okay.   Now I  would have 

thought  that  i f  you had seen someth ing wrong you cer ta in ly  

would have spoken to h im at  the t ime and that  the fact  that  

you d id not  react  to  h is  le t te r  must  mean that  a t  that  s tage 

you d id not  see anyth ing wrong.   So –  which might  co inc ide  

wi th  my understanding of  no  object ion when I  read your  10 

aff idavi t .   I  understood i t  in  that  sense to say you saw i t  – 

you d id not  see any reason – anyth ing wrong wi th  – wi th  i t  

and therefore you d id not  say,  do not  go.   Is  that  

in terpretat ion – does i t  not  re f lect  what  your  th ink ing was at  

the t ime? 

MR GIGABA:   No i t  does not  Chai rperson i t  does ref lect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GIGABA:   My in terpretat ion  is  the one that  I  have 

presented before the commission  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes  20 

MR GIGABA:   Yes on severa l  occasions now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  a t  that  t ime d id you see anyth ing  

wrong wi th  the t r ip?  At  the t ime when you read h is  emai l  to  

you.  

MR GIGABA:   I  d id  not  –  I  d id  not  apply my mind to  the t r ip  
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Chai rperson 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

MR GIGABA:   I  mean to the – to  the emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GIGABA:    I  d id  not  apply my mind to  the emai l  i t  just  

was an emai l  which came.   Usual ly  a round the  18 t h  o f  

January we would  have – you know i t  is  qu i te  a busy per iod 

for  us pol i t i ca l l y  –  the beginning o f  January because on the  

one hand you prepar ing for  the – the anniversary  

ce lebrat ions of  the Af r ican Nat ional  Congress as  soon as 10 

you come back f rom there you are prepar ing  for  the 

00:29:47 Lekgot la  of  the ANC.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Lekgot la  

MR GIGABA:   A week f rom there i t  is  the cabinet  Lekgot la  

of  the – of  the – I  mean i t  i s  the cabinet  Lekgot la  and 

thereaf ter  you are prepar ing fo r  the opening of  Par l iament ,  

a  busy per iod .   A who le  can jus t  –  a  who le  lo t  o f  th ings can  

jus t  consume your  a t ten t ion .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Which  says to  me i t  i s  a l l  the  more  

reason why you  shou ld  have been re luc tan t  to  le t  you r  20 

adv isor  be  away fo r  f i ve  days on  someth ing  tha t  you might  

no t  have regarded as  impor tan t .    

MR GIGABA :    As  I  say,  Cha i rperson,  the  m is take  I  made 

was not  in  respond ing  to  the  emai l .    

CHAIRPERSON :    ja .  
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MR GIGABA :    I  shou ld  have responded to  the  ema i l .   I  d id  

no t  respond to  i t .   I  go t  car r i ed  away by  the  many  th ings  

tha t  I  was do ing  a t  the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GIGABA :    Bu t  rea l i s i ng  tha t  he  had t rave l led ,  I  had a 

d iscuss ion  w i th  h im and repr imanded h im a f te rwards.   And 

so ,  I  took  the  mat te r  to  have been dea l t  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   When you repr imanded h im,  what  

i s  i t  tha t  in  your  v iew he had done  wrong or  –  ja ,  what  was 

i t  tha t  in  your  v iew you were  rep r imand ing  h im fo r  do ing  or  10 

no t  do ing?  

MR GIGABA :    I t  was,  Cha i rpe rson,  go ing  on  the  t r ip .   I t  

was,  you know,  no t  communica t ing  we l l  w i th  me and w i th  

the  Ch ie f  o f  S ta f f ,  and as  I  have  sa id ,  go ing  on  the  t r ip  

i t se l f ,  because my v iew was tha t ,  you know,  the re  was no  

purpose to  be  se rved in  h im – there  was no,  wha t ,  g rea t  

po l i t i ca l  s ign i f i cance or  va lue  f rom a t tend ing  a  wedd ing  

and he shou ld  have communica ted  bet te r  so  tha t  –  because 

a t  the  t ime,  I  wou ld  be  busy w i th  a  lo t  o f  th ings .   A lo t  

cou ld  jus t  escape my a t ten t ion .   I t  i s  be t te r  tha t  you  20 

fami l ia r i se  you bet te r.   We s i t  down.   We ta lk  w i th  you 

every th ing  and dec ide  tha t  yes  or  no  you can do th is ,  o r  

you shou ld  no t  do  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR GIGABA :    Because I  even –  usua l ly,  a t  the  t ime,  you 
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spend most  o f  the  t ime away f rom the  o f f i ce  because there  

is  jus t  so  much happen ing  w i th  the  Magud la(? )  and January  

8 t h (? )  p repara t ions wh ich  are  somet imes a f te r  January  8 t h  

i t se l f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i s  my unders tand ing  cor rec t?   From 

your  p rev ious ev idence tha t  you a re  no t  say ing  you were  

no t  aware  be fo re  he  le f t  tha t  he  was go ing  to  leave.   I t  i s  

jus t  tha t  you d id  no t  respond to  the  emai l ,  bu t  you were  

aware .   And when  he was not  a round,  you knew tha t  he  had  

asked to  go  and  tha t  i s  why he was not  a round,  bu t  you 10 

dea l t  w i th  the  issue when he came back.  

MR GIGABA :    I  was aware ,  Cha i rperson,  on  the  bas is  o f  

the  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :    When he was not  a round,  i t  dawned  on me 

tha t :   Oh,  by  the  way.   There  had been th is  emai l  and I  had  

not  responded to  i t .   He presumed tha t  a  non-response to  

be  approva l  and then he t rave l led .   So,  I  had a  d i scuss ion  

w i th  h im upon h i s  re tu rn  and we have d i scussed a l l  o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   I  want  to  then,  as  I  

have ment ioned,  dea l  w i th  the  appo in tment  o f  Mr  Na i than i  

as  a  d i rec tor  o f  SAA.   Th is  i s  someth ing  dea l t  w i th  –  can I  

ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 915?  

MR GIGABA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  paragraph 178:  

“Ra jesh Gupta  c la imed tha t  Dr  Na i than i  had  

s t rong l inks  w i th  the  Congress Par ty  and the  

government  o f  Ind ia .  

Accord ing  to  h im,  Na i than i  had the  po tent ia l  o r  

capac i ty  to  improve SAA’s  re la t i ons  w i th  the  

government  and the  peop le  w i th  Ind ia .  

SAA ran  a  rou te  f rom São Pau lo  to  Duba i  v ia  

Johannesburg .  

The Johannesburg /Mumbai  leg  o f  the  rou te  had 10 

caused SAA ser ious losses.  

Th is  was a t t r ibu ted  par t l y  to  cha l lenges w i th  

i t s  land ing  and t imes lo ts  in  Ind ia .  

So much so ,  tha t  i t s  passengers  had d i f f i cu l t y  

connect ing  to  the i r  las t  dest ina t ions when they 

landed in  Mumbai .  

SAA,  a t  the  t ime,  a lso  needed to  a t t rac t  more  

customers  f rom Ind ia  to  render  the  Mumbai  

rou te  p ro f i tab le .  

I  rece ived Dr  Na i than i ’s  CV on these bases 20 

and depos i ted  i t  w i th  the  depar tment . . . ”  

Do you know anyth ing  about  tha t?   

MR GIGABA :    I  was not  aware .   Cha i rperson,  I  have 

exp la ined,  I  th ink ,  in  paragraph 103 the  processes o f  the  

appo in tments  o f  the  boards,  because I  d id  no t  ge t  invo l ved.   
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I  th ink  there  wou ld  be  one ins tance where  I  asked fo r  

cer ta in  cand ida tes  to  be  cons ide red.   I  th ink  i t  was Ms  

T j i t j i (? )  Maponya(?) ,  P ro fessor  Zane le(? )  Mugath i (? )  and  

two o the r  peop le .   I  th ink  –  I  cannot  remember.   I  th ink  i t  

was fo r  the  Board  o f  SAA or  so .   I  cannot  remember.   But  

genera l l y,  I  was not  invo lved in  the  appo in tments  o f  the  

boards.   I  wou ld  be  in fo rmed when the  dec is ion  memos –  

somet imes i t  wou ld  be  th rough the  dec i s ion  memo tha t  

wou ld  come to  th rough to  me f rom the  depar tment  o r  i t  

wou ld  be  th rough  the  depar tment  when we prepare  fo r  an  10 

ATM when we are  s i t t ing  now look ing  a t  the  ATM,  the  

proceed ings o f  the  ATM and the  –  i f  there  has to  be  board  

changes,  then the  depar tment  wou ld  say:   Min is te r,  we are  

propos ing .   E i ther  i t  i s  t ime fo r  a  new board  because the  

te rm o f  o f f i ce  o f  the  cur ren t  board  is  laps ing  by  the  t ime o f  

the  ATM.   Or,  they wou ld  say to  me tha t  we are  propos ing  

tha t  we add cer ta in  sk i l l s  tha t  a re  requ i red  on  the  board  in  

o rder  to  l i f t  the  board  up  or  we must  re t i re  ce r ta in  peop le  

because the  board  eva lua t ion  repor t  i s  suggest ing  

someth ing  e lse  tha t  cer ta in  peop le  must  be  removed  20 

because they a re  no t  g iv ing  a t ten t ion  to  the  board ,  o r  they  

have a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t .   So,  the 

issue o f  Na i than i  a rose in  the  con tex t  o f  the  presenta t ions 

to  me and the  peop le  to  be  cons idered.   The a rgument  in  

178 is  known to  me on ly  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  i t  dea ls  w i th  the  
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cha l lenges tha t  SAA was fac ing  on  i t s  São 

Pau lo /Johannesburg /Mumbai  rou te .   The cha l lenges w i th  

the  land ing  s lo t s  and the  need fo r  us  –  because  a t  the  

t ime,  what  the  depar tment  sa id ,  was tha t ,  recommended 

was,  tha t  we need to  f ind  somebody on the  board  who 

wou ld  ass is t  us  to  in f luence the  Ind ian  Government  to  ge t  

be t te r  land ing  s lo ts  in  Ind ian  so  tha t  we can ass is t  SAA to 

make the  rou te  pro f i tab le .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I  unders tand you to  then be 

say ing  tha t  you d id  no t  know anyth ing  about  Mr  Mah langu ’s  10 

in te rac t ion  w i th  Ra jesh Gupta  in  re la t ion  to  Dr  Na i than i .  

MR GIGABA :    I  th ink  –  I  am t ry ing  to  now – no ,  I  d id  no t  

know o f  h i s  in te rac t ion  w i th  Ra jesh  in  tha t  regard .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Then a t  179:  

“Dr  Na i than i  i s  a  sc ien t is t .    

The cha l lenge I  had w i th  tha t  was tha t  h is  CV  

d id  no t  make i t  read i l y  apparent  tha t  he  had  

l inks  w i th  the  Ind ian  Government  wh ich  cou ld  

be  o f  use  to  SAA and address  the  issue I  

re fe r red  to  above  fac ing  SAA in  Ind ia .  20 

I t  bo thered me tha t  h is  va lue  to  SAA was not  

read i l y  apparent . . . ”  

Then a t  paragraph 180”  

“Shor t l y  be fore  Dr  Na i than i ’s  CV  came before  

Cab ine t ,  I  ra ised  these misg iv ings separa te l y  
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w i th  the  Min is te r  and Ra jesh Gupta .  

I  asked fo r  p roo f  f rom Rajesh Gupta  to  suppor t  

the  c la im tha t  Dr  Na i than i  cou ld  de l i ver  

favourab le  te rms fo r  SAA in  Ind ia .  

That  i s  how I  rece ived the  emai ls  f rom 

Mr  Chau la  wh ich  e labora ted  on Dr  Na i than i ’s  

ab i l i t y  to  serve  SAA in  Ind ia . . . ”  

Do you know anyth ing  about  th is?  

MR GIGABA :    I  do  no t  know anyth ing ,  Cha i rperson,  

about . . .  I  on ly  became aware  o f  the  emai ls  f rom Mr  Chawla  10 

when –  f rom the  processes o f  the  Commiss ion  and the  

concerns about  Dr  Na i than i ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  i f  Mr  Mah langu  

d id  ra ise  h is  m isg iv ings to  me about  Na i than i .   I  do  no t  

reca l l  i f  he  had ra ised those misg iv ings to  me.   No,  I  do  

no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  wou ld  you have any reason to  th ink  

he  wou ld  say he  d id  ra i se  them wi th  you i f  he  d id  no t?  

MR GIGABA :    No,  I  do  no t  have any reason to  make any  

presumpt ions in  th is  regard .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  20 

MR GIGABA :    I t  may tha t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  shou ld  i t  be  –  

shou ld  any in fe rences be made on my non- reco l lec t ion  o f  

h im ra is ing  m isg i v ings about  Na i than i  because the  peop le  

who had been recommended fo r  boards wou ld  have  had to  

be  ve t ted .   I  th ink  fo r  a  long t ime there  were  severa l  
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cha l lenges w i th  regard  to  the  Board  o f  SAA.   One,  must  ge t  

in  somebody who wou ld  ass i s t  to  in f luence Ind ia .   The  

second was reso lv ing  the  Johannesburg  rou te  and 

in f luenc ing  the  Ch inese Government  to  g ive  us  be t te r  s lo ts .   

The th i rd  wou ld  have been get t ing  on  the  board  somebody  

w i th  av ia t ion  exper t i se .   And i t  p roved to  be  rea l l y  d i f f i cu l t  

to  f ind  peop le  who wou ld  f i l l  i n  those gaps.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  see you ta lk  about  th is  fac to r  o f  

somebody who wou ld  in f luence,  fo r  example ,  the  Ind ian  

Government  to  ass i s t  SAA as i f  i t  i s  a  leg i t imate  and va l id  10 

fac tor  to  take  in to  account  in  dec id ing  whether  somebody 

shou ld  be  appo in ted  as  a  member  o f  the  SAA Board .   I  am 

not  su re  tha t  I  unders tand why i t  shou ld  be  because the  

impress ion  i t  g i ves  to  me and  maybe i t  i s  a  wrong  

impress ion .   The  impress ion  i t  g ives  me to  i s  tha t  you are  

look ing  fo r  somebody who wou ld  pr iva te l y  in f luence the  

Ind ian  Government  because i f  tha t  was not  the  th ink ing ,  i f  

the  normal  channe ls  wou ld  be  used and the  normal  fo rms  

o f  communica t ion  wou ld  be  used ,  then one wou ld  expect  

tha t  you shou ld  no t  necessar i l y  be  look ing  fo r  tha t  t ype o f  20 

person.   You shou ld  be  look ing  fo r  peop le  who can put  a  

sound argument  why SAA shou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  in  a  cer ta in  

way.   I s  there  anyth ing  you can say to  he lp  me unders tand 

why . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MR GIGABA :    Unfor tunate ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    . . . you  say:   You  know,  now we have got  

a  CA in  the  Board  o f  SAA,  we  have got  a  sen ior  counse l ,  

we have got  an  eng ineer.   Now we  need somebody who is  

go ing  to  in f luence the  Ind ian  Government .   I  have some 

d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  unders tand ing  whether  tha t  i s  a  leg i t imate 

fac to r.  

MR GIGABA :    Unfo r tunate ly,  Cha i rperson,  i t  becomes a  

leg i t imate  fac tor,  you know.   One  o f  the  reasons why the  

SAA Route  to  Be i j ing  had to  be  f lagged down was because  

we jus t  s imp ly  cou ld  no t  f ind  a  way to  in f luence the  10 

Ch inese Government  to  g ive  us  be t te r  land ing  s lo ts .   So,  

SAA passengers  in  Be i j ing  wou ld  ar r i ve  a t  an  inconven ien t  

t ime fo r  them to  be  ab le  to  connect  to  o ther  par t s  o f  

Southeast  As ia  o r  o ther  pa r ts  o f  Ch ina  wh ich  meant  peop le  

pre fe r red  no t  to  use SAA and ra ther  use o ther  a i r l ines .   

And there fore ,  because SAA cou ld  no t  op t im ise  on  the  

rou te ,  they have dec ided to  shut  i t  down.   Wi th  regard  to  

Ind ia .   There  had been a  long engagement  be tween Ind ia  

and South  A f r i ca  on  how to  op t im ise  the  

Mumbai /Johannesburg  rou te  because what  SAA o f fe red  20 

was an add i t iona l  advantage o f  connect ing  to  São Pau lo .   

So,  when i t  comes to  –  o r  when i t  came to  t ry ing  to  

negot ia te  be t te r  l and ing  s lo ts ,  you  do not  on ly  re l y  on  the  

sk i l l s  o f  your  negot ia to rs .   You a lso  re l y  on  your  ab i l i t y  to  

in f luence over  and above the  nego t ia t ions .   I t  seems to  be  
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the  prac t ise  tha t  you needed peop le  o f  tha t  in f luence,  

e i ther  se rv ing  on  your  board  or  be ing  your  in te rna t iona l  

adv isors  in  re la t ion  to  spec i f i c  o r  t o  cer ta in  rou tes  and tha t  

was the  case.   I f  we had found somebody w i th  the  requ is i te  

sk i l l s ,  we wou ld  have made great  p rogress in  regard  to  

th is ,  bu t  i t  tu rned out  tha t  Dr  Na i than i  was not  what  had 

been so ld  to  us .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  want  to  go 

back to  Mr  Kona.   I  do  no t  know i f  there  i s  a  need fo r  me to  10 

dea l  w i th  th is  w i th  Mr  G igaba.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  f ine ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you ra i sed the  quest ion  o f  what  

Mr  Mah langu ’s  vers ion  was.   I  had found the  re ferences.   

Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we have  put  up 

the  who le  o f  Mr  Mah langu ’s  a f f idav i t  in  advance o f  the  las t  

s i t t ing .   That  you  w i l l  f ind  in  Bund le  7(a) .   Whereas,  what  

we are  dea l ing  w i th  now are  those por t ions  tha t  we were  20 

g iven to  Mr  G igaba in  the  3 .3 .  p rocess.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Kona a t  page 916.161 dea ls  w i th  

the  meet ing  a t  the  Gupta  res idence and he dea ls  w i th  that  

f rom 916.161 th rough to  916.165.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Do we need to  go  there ,  o r  i t  wou ld  be  

enough i f  you read i t  to  us? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I  jus t  rea l l y  want  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .p lace  those re ferences on record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then to  conf i rm . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . tha t  your  reco l lec t ion  was  cor rec t .   10 

He d id  deny tha t  there  was an o f fe r  to  pay h im a  hundred  

thousand or  f i ve  hundred thousand.   And in  answer  to  your  

quest ion  about  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    He sa id  was d i scussed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .he  sa id  was the  sub jec t  o f  the  

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    He says a t  parag raph 234 tha t :  

“The  meet ing  a t  the  Gupta  res idence d id  no t  

invo l ve  the  Lu f thansa Consu l t ing  Cont rac t  as  20 

suggested by  Kona. . . ”  

A t  235:  

“Mr  Gupta  was preoccup ied  by  the  des i re  to  

increase TNA’s  subscr ip t ion . . . ”  

So,  tha t  i s  h is  vers ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  h is  vers ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The bus iness was o f  the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   Wel l ,  i t  –  there  m ight  be  

in  p r inc ip le  a  s l igh t  d i f fe rence or  there  m ight  no t  be  – there  

m ight  no t  be  any  s l igh t  d i f fe rence.   He wanted to ,  even on 

Mr  Mah langu ’s  ve rs ion ,  Tony Gupta  d iscussed h i s  p roposa l  

o r  request  o r  suggest ion  tha t  SAA shou ld  increase the  

bus iness tha t  they were  do ing  w i th  them in  te rms o f  TNA,  a  

new age.   Okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So,  Mr  G igaba,  can I  then car ry  10 

on  w i th  paragraph 181 a t  page 915? 

MR GIGABA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Mah langu says:  

“ I  do  no t  remember  whether  I  ra ised th is  

concern  w i th  Ra jesh Gupta  te lephon ica l l y  o r  in  

person.  

Inso fa r  as  the  Min is te r  i s  concerned,  i t  i s  l i ke ly  

tha t  I  ra ised the  concern  w i th  h im in  person.  

Accord ing ly,  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  there  are  

documents  or  o ther  suppor t i ve  means wh ich  I  20 

can p lace befo re  the  Commiss ion  as  proof  o f  

the  concerns I  he ld  a t  the  t ime re la t ing  to  

Dr  Na i than i ’s  nominat ion  to  serve  on  SAA 

Board .  

I  do  no t  have any  in  my possess ion . . . ”  
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Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :    I  a lso  doubt  i f  he  ra ised th is ,  Cha i rperson,  

w i th  me in  person.   The issue o f  the  appo in tments  o f  the  

boards,  as  I  have exp la ined,  wou ld  be  dea l t  w i th  th rough  

the  depar tmenta l  p rocess.   I  expected tha t  the  

depar tmenta l  p rocess wou ld  be  robust  enough to  es tab l i sh  

the  su i tab i l i t y,  the  e l ig ib i l i t y  o f  peop le  to  serve  on  the  

board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  Mr  G igaba.   I t  i s  the  second t ime 

tha t  there  is  someth ing  tha t  mak ing  tha t  sound and 10 

d is tu rb ing  us .   Wi l l  somebody make su re  i t  does not  

happen aga in?   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Cont inue,  Mr  G igaba.  

MR GIGABA :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   So,  I  am say ing .   I  

expected the  depar tmenta l  p rocesses to  be  robust  enough 

fo r  them to  be  ab le  to  es tab l i sh  the  su i tab i l i t y  o r  e l ig ib i l i t y  

o f  peop le  to  serve  on  the  boards because even i f  i t  was a  

recommendat ion  tha t  came f rom outs ide  the  ex is t ing  

da tabase,  tha t  recommendat ion  s t i l l  had to  be  sub jec ted  to  

the  same process  o f  tes t ing ,  o f  ve t t ing  and es tab l i sh ing  the  

su i tab i l i t y  be fore  a  person is  then taken fo rward .    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t ,  as  you can see,  Mr  Mah langu 

sa id  tha t  he  ra ised misg i v ings w i th  you.  

MR GIGABA :    No,  he  says he  –  he  says i t  i s  l i ke ly  wh ich  

then prov ides the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  he  a lso  d id  no t  ra ise  i t  

w i th  me.   He is  no t  sure .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  what  he  is  say ing .   I t  i s  l i ke ly  –  i s  

the  fo r  in  wh ich  he  ra ised i t .   Ear l ie r  on  he  sa id  he  ra ised i t  

w i th  you.   Now he is  ta lk ing  about  whethe r  he  ra ised i t  

te lephon ica l l y  o r  in  person.   What  he  is  say ing  is ,  he  is  no t  

sure  wh ich  one,  whethe r  i t  was te lephon ica l l y  o r  in  person,  

bu t  i f  you  read i t  together  w i th  wha t  he  sa id  ea r l ie r  on ,  tha t  

he  ra i sed w i th  you,  he  does not  seem to  doubt .   He jus t  

doubts  wh ich  –  in  wh ich  fo rm he ra ised i t  w i th  you.  

MR GIGABA :    I f  he  d id  ra ise  i t  w i th  me,  Cha i rperson,  I  had 10 

not  capab i l i t y  to  dec ide  on  anybody ’s  su i tab i l i t y.   There  

was an es tab l i shed process in  the  depar tment  th rough  

wh ich  appo in tments  to  boards were  be ing  dea l t  w i t h .   I  was 

on ly  the  las t  reso r t  when i t  came to  th is  p rocess.   I  was not  

the  person to  whom peop le  came in  the  f i rs t  resor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But ,  o f  course ,  he  was your  

adv isor.   Would  he  not  be  en t i t led  to  adv i se  you whether  a  

par t i cu la r  person was su i tab le?  

MR GIGABA :    We –  you know,  the  adv i ce ,  as  he  says in  a 

prev ious paragraph,  i f  you  look a t  paragraph,  I  th ink  i t  is  20 

110 and 111.   He says tha t  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  i n  re la t ion  to  a  

concern  wh ich  had been ra i sed by  Ms Mngoma.   And he  

says tha t  the  emai ls  re f lec ted  –  i n  pa ragraph 110,  the  las t  

sentence:  

“The emai l s  re f lec t  the  na tu re  o f  the  Min i s te r ’s  
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in te rac t ion  w i th  h is  spec ia l  adv isors  on  mat te rs  

o f  board  appo in tments . . . ”  

And he goes fu r ther  to  say:  

“The means to  accepted or  re jec ted  adv i ce  as  

i t  deemed appropr ia te .    

For  ins tance,  the  Min is te r  re jec ted  my adv ice  

about  the  remova l  o f  Mr  Andrew Mthembu as 

the  Cha i rperson o f  In f raco.  

The Min is te r  fo l lowed the  cont ra ry  adv ice  o f  

the  DDG and tha t  the  s ta f f  members  in  the  10 

min is te r i a l  o f f i ce . . .  

S im i la r ly,  in  2013,  the  Min is te r  accepted the  

adv ice  o f  o the r  co l leagues to  make an 

appo in tment  to  the  SAA Board  over  my adv ice  

to  the  cont rary. . . ”  

Now,  Cha i rperson,  the  adv ices tha t  I  wou ld  rece ive  –  i f  

there  i s  a  p rocess tak ing  p lace in  the  depar tment ,  you  

wou ld  no t  come to  me and say ou ts ide  those processes,  

then I  need to  make a  d i f fe ren t  de terminat ion  because i f  

tha t  i s  the  case I  m ight  jus t  as  we l l  appo in ted  ent i re  boards  20 

w i thout  the  depar tment  be ing  invo l ved and on ly  jus t  in fo rm 

them tha t  a t  th is  s tage I  have appo in ted  the  fo l low ing 

peop le  in to  the  board  o f  so  and so  or  o f  th is  en t i t y  o r  tha t  

one.   That  d id  no t  happen.   And i t  does not  happen in  my 

unders tand ing  even unt i l  now.   The –  even i f  you come to  
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me and say:   I  th ink  th is  person is  su i tab le .   I  w i l l  l i s ten  to  

you.   I  may agree  or  no t  agree but  the  process has to  go  to  

the  depar tment .   The name has to  go  to  the  depar tment  so  

tha t  i t  i s  ve t ted  proper ly,  i t  i s  eva lua ted proper ly,  i t s  sk i l l  

se t  i s  cons idered  in  con junct ion  w i th  the  sk i l l s  mat r i x  tha t  

has been es tab l i shed by  the  depar tment  fo r  a  board  o f  a  

par t i cu la r  en t i t y  and then a  recommendat ion  is  made.   In  

the  ins tance tha t ,  fo r  example ,  a  recommendat ion  comes to  

me wh ich  conta ins  the  name o f  a  person tha t  i s  unsu i tab le ,  

the  d iscre t ion  is  u l t imate ly  the  Min i s te r ’s  to  say:   I  10 

approved th is  co l lec t i ve  as  be ing  recommended,  o r  I  

suggest  tha t  th is  person be recons ide red and tha t  one be  

added,  tha t  one  be removed,  bu t  tha t  too  is  sub jec t  to  

Cab ine t  approva l  because Cab ine t  rese rves the  r igh t  to  

accept  o r  re jec t  the  recommendat ions in  to ta l i t y  o r  in  par t .   

And Cab ine t  can very  we l l  say  to  you remove these peop le ,  

rep lace them wi th  the  fo l low ing peop le  and th is  becomes 

the  dec is ion  o f  the  Cab ine t .   Un less  Cab ine t  says tha t :   

No,  rep lace the  fo l low ing peop le .   F ind  o the r  peop le  and 

check them out  i f  they  are  su i tab le  and br ing  the  mat te r  20 

back to  Cab ine t .   So,  even i f  th is  regard  –  even i f  

somebody comes  to  me pr i va te l y  in  person,  the  process 

s t i l l  i s  sub jec t  to  –  tha t  recommendat ion  s t i l l  i s  sub jec t  to  

the  depar tmenta l  p rocesses wh ich  are  some more  robust  

than re l y ing  on  my persona l  op in ion  o f  a  person whom I  do  
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no t  know,  even i f  I  knew the  pe rson .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t ,  o f  course ,  i f  th is  –  these 

misg i v ings had been ra ised w i th  you,  there  wou ld  have  

been noth ing  s topp ing  you f rom hav ing  a  fu r the r  look  a t  

Dr  Na i than i .  

MR GIGABA :    I f  I  d id  tha t ,  I  wou ld  have to  do  i t  w i th  every  

o ther  recommendat ion  tha t  was b rought  to  me wi th  regard  

to  board  appo in tments .   My procedura l  response wou ld  be :   

Ra ise  i t  in  the  depar tment  w i th  the  peop le  who dea l  w i th  

these processes because they are  be t te r  capab le  to  take  a  10 

dec is ion  on  the  mat te r  and make a  recommendat ion  to  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t ,  Mr  G igaba,  was th is  no t  a  b i t  o f  

a  un ique s i tua t i on?  Because Mr  Na i than i  had been 

nominated by  Ra jesh Gupta .  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  bear  w i th  me fo r  a  moment .  

MR GIGABA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    On the  face  o f  these documents .   

Mr  Mah langu then rece ives the  CV and tha t  i s  g iven to  the 

depar tment .   You  are  r igh t ,  the  process,  no  doubt ,  un fo lds  20 

but  there  is  –  becomes a  po in t  where  he ,  ac tua l l y,  h imse l f  

has m isg iv ings about  th i s .   He has m isg i v ings about  the  

nominat ion ,  the  p rov i s ion  o f  the  CV,  and he comes  to  you  

and he ra ises  i t  as  in  h is  capac i ty  as  your  spec ia l  adv iso r.   

Sure ly,  i f  he  had  ra ised those misg i v ings in  tha t  contex t ,  
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you  wou ld  have looked to  rev i s i t  the  issue.  

MR GIGABA :    Cha i rperson,  s ince  the  name had  not  bee 

recommended by  me,  then Mr  Mah langu shou ld  have 

removed the  name f rom cons idera t ion  because i t  was not  

my respons ib i l i t y  to  then go to  say remove the  name o f  th is  

person f rom cons idera t ion  g iven the  fac t  tha t  the  process 

was tak ing  p lace  away f rom me.   And he was b r ie f ing  me 

about  one ind iv idua l  tha t  he  had the  power  to  have  

removed f rom cons idera t ion  in  h is  engagements  w i th  the 

depar tment .   I t  i s  no t  uncommon tha t  bus iness and 10 

bus iness organ isa t ions wou ld  make –  the  bus inesspeop le  

and bus iness organ isa t ions wou ld  make recommendat ions.   

Peop le  nominate  peop le  to  se rve  on  boards.   They 

nominate  them.   There  have been many ins tances inc lud ing 

in  the  appo in tment  o f  the  Board  o f  SAA in  2017,  the  

appo in tment  o f  the  Board  o f  Eskom in  2018,  where  

bus iness ind iv idua ls  and bus iness organ isa t ions  ac tua l l y  

made recommendat ions as  to  who  shou ld  be  appo in ted .   I  

th ink  then the  su i tab i l i t y  o f  those peop le  is  cons idered and  

then the  dec i s ion  is  made in  tha t  regard .   So,  i f  20 

Mr  Mah langu g rave concerns about  Dr  Na i than i ,  I  th ink  he  

shou ld  have removed h im f rom cons ide ra t ion  a l l  togethe r.   

He d id  no t  need me because h is  nominat ion  had not  

emanated f rom me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  i f  I  unders tand the  ch rono logy,  
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and you must  co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  as  I  unders tand  

180,  he  says:  

“Shor t l y  be fore  Dr  Na i than i ’s  CV  came before  

Par l iament (s ic )  –  o r  came before  Cab ine t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cab ine t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  was i t  no t  a t  tha t  la te  s tage,  in  

o ther  words,  the  process had un fo lded,  the  ve t t ing  had 

been done,  he  then had h is  -  .  when he ra i sed them wi th  

you then,  wou ld  he  have been ab le  to  w i thdraw Dr  10 

Na i than i ’ s  name h imse l f  a t  tha t  s tage?  

MR GIGABA :   Cha i rperson,  the  depar tment ,  he  shou ld  

have gone back to  the  depar tmen t  to  say the  memo you  

have –  I  do  no t  know a t  what  po in t  th is  p rocess  was in  

te rms o f  submiss ion  o f  the  memo,  whether  the  memo had 

a l ready gone fo rward  to  cab ine t  because i f  I  must  w i thdraw 

a  memo to  cab ine t ,  i f  the  recommendat ion  was Min is te r ,  

e i ther  w i thdraw the  memo to  cab ine t  o r  w i thdraw the  

fo l low ing name then I  wou ld  have  done so  bu t  the  process  

had been taken fo rward  and the  peop le  who dea l t  w i th  th is  20 

f rom the  outse t  a re  no t  say ing  to  me tha t  th rough the  DG 

tha t  Min is te r ,  we recommend tha t  th is  –  tha t  can you 

p lease ind i ca te  t o  cab ine t  on  th is  par t i cu la r  memo tha t  th is  

spec i f i c  name must  be  expunged fo r  the  fo l low ing reasons 

and then we w i l l  come back to  cab ine t  w i th  a  new name.    
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 Had the  DG come to  me to  say tha t  then tha t  most  

p robab ly  wou ld  have happened but  the  issue o f  the  

memoranda to  cab ine t  in  the  ch rono logy o f  the  process and 

the  h ie rarchy o f  the  peop le  who are  invo lved in  d ra f t ing  

cab ine t  memos,  the  spec ia l  adv i sers  a re  no t  the re ,  they  

on ly  fea ture  inso far  as  rece iv ing  f rom the  depar tment ,  

read ing  them and prov id ing  adv i ce  bu t  i f  a  s ign i f i can t  

dec is ion  –  because,  you know,  once a  memorandum is  

submi t ted  to  cab ine t ,  to  w i thdraw i t ,  you  have to  p rov ide  

reasons and those reasons must  no t  be  there  are  10 

misg i v ings.   The  depar tmenta l ,  the  peop le  invo lved w i th  

th is  in  the  depar tment  shou ld  have come to  me to  say  

Min is te r ,  can you p lease expunge th is  name and  

recommend to  cab ine t  tha t  w i l l  g ive  you anothe r  name.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  paragraph 182:  

“ I  had no and have no knowledge tha t  Mr  Chawla  

mod i f ied  the  document  e labora t ing  on  Mr  Na i than i ’ s  

qua l i f i ca t ions and i f  so ,  how many t imes,  to  wha t  

ex ten t  he  d id  and why.   I  fu r thermore ,  never  had  

any d iscuss ions w i th  Mr  Chawla  about  Dr  Na i than i .   20 

I  d iscussed my concerns d i rec t l y  w i th  each o f  the  

m in is te r  and Ra jesh Gupta .   My  in te rac t ion  w i th  

Chawla  were  l im i ted  to  rece iv ing  an  emai l  he  sent  

to  me on beha l f  o f  h is  p r i nc ipa l  wh ich  conta ined 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  was dest ined to  my pr inc ipa l .   I  
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have no knowledge o f  the  de ta i l  o f  Chawla ’s  

invo l vement  in  the  mod i f i ca t ion  o f  the  document  o r  

communica t ion  w i th  Na i than i .   I  d id  no t  d iscuss my  

query  w i th  h im,  I  dea l t  d i rec t l y  w i th  Ra jesh Gupta .   I  

wou ld  presume tha t  Chawla  was tasked by  Gupta  to  

send me the  in fo rmat ion . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?   Aga in  the re  is  re fe rence  

here  to  a  d iscuss ion  be ing  he ld  w i th  you.  

MR GIGABA :   I  th ink  I  have responded to  the  issue  o f  the 

d iscuss ion .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   A t  183:  

“One o f  the  reasons fo r  my concern  about  the  

absence o f  the  proof  o f  Dr  Na i than i ’ s  ab i l i t y  to  

de l i ver  fo r  SAA Ind ia  i s  tha t  the  l is t  o f  the  proposed  

SAA board  was about  to  serve  be fore  cab ine t .   I  

was worr ied  tha t  i f  qu izzed on Dr  Na i than i ’ s  

c redent ia ls  the  m in is te r  m ight  have been ab le  to  

substant ia te  h i s  ra t iona le  fo r  appo in t ing  Na i than i .   I  

a lso  needed the  comfor t  tha t  Dr  Na i than i  in  fac t  had  

the  po l i t i ca l  l i nks  in  Ind ia  tha t  he  c la imed to  have  20 

had. ”  

What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  re i te ra te ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  the re  i s  a  

process tha t  shou ld  have been fo l lowed and tha t  had tha t  

p rocess th rough the  DG come back to  me to  say M in is te r ,  
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p lease expunge  th is  name,  then I  wou ld  have ac ted  

accord ing ly  on  the  gu idance o f  the  peop le  invo l ved in  th is  

p rocess because  inasmuch as  spec ia l  adv isers  do  prov ide  

adv ice  on  a  w ide  var ie ty  o f  th ings bu t  I  a lso  had to  respect  

the  in te rna l  p rocesses in  the  depar tment .  

 The DG and the  peop le  in  the  depar tment  wou ld  

have been su rp r ised to  know tha t  I  have gone ahead to  

w i thdraw a  name f rom a  memorandum tha t  had come 

th rough the  process w i thout  ge t t ing  a  recommendat ion  f rom 

them and so  tha t  i s  how th is  mat te r  cont inued to  serve  10 

before  cab ine t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So ,  I  mean ,  what  can you remember  

about  Dr  Na i than i ,  what  caused you to  dec ide  to  appo in t  

h im as a  d i rec tor?  

MR GIGABA :   I t  was the  recommendat ion  wh ich  had been  

brought  to  me about  h im as enunc ia ted  in  Mah langu ’s  

parag raph 178 w i th  regard  to  the  sk i l l s  tha t  he  was 

presumed to  br ing .   The sk i l l s  in  th is  case,  no t  h is  

academic  sk i l l s  bu t  h is  ab i l i t y  to  in f luence the  Ind ian  

government  to  ass is t  us  in  ach iev ing  the  ob jec t i ve  o f  20 

ge t t ing  be t te r  land ing  s lo t s  and deve lop ing  good re la t ions  

w i th  the  Ind ian  government .   That  was the  argument  tha t  

was brought  fo rward  and tha t  was  taken to  cab ine t  as  the 

reason.   I t  d id  tu rn  ou t  la te r ,  I  th ink  I  m ight  be  say ing  th is  

in  my memorandum,  in  my a f f idav i t ,  i t  d id  tu rn  ou t  –  yes,  I  
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ac tua l l y  do  say i t  in  my a f f idav i t  tha t  i t  d id  tu rn  ou t  la te r  

tha t  Dr  Na i than i  was not  what  he  had been pro jec ted  to  be  

and tha t  we then began the  p rocesses o f  hav ing  h im  

removed.   Yes,  I  th ink  i f  you  look a t  my a f f idav i t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    8 .7 ,  ja . .  

MR GIGABA :   8 .7  page 940.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you say there :  

“ I  do  no t  reca l l  Mr  Mah langu  d iscuss ing  h is  

concerns about  Dr  Na i than i  o r  h i s  résumé wi th  me. ”  10 

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     

“What  I  do  reca l l  i s  tha t  I  was br ie fed  by  the  

depar tment  o f  the  board  o f  SAA to  a board  

assessment  repor t  tha t  Dr  Na i than i  was not  fu l f i l l i ng  

h is  du t ies  as  a  d i rec tor  SAA inc lud ing  bu t  no t  

l im i ted  to  no t  a t tend ing  board  meet ings. ”  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     

“ I  in i t ia ted  a  process o f  h i s  remova l  f rom the  board  20 

o f  SAA a lbe i t  tha t  the  ac tua l  remova l  occu r red  a f te r  

I  had been appo in ted  as  the  Min is te r  o f  Home 

Af fa i rs . ”  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  you  cou ld  go  p lease to  page  
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917.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  I  am s t i l l  on  917.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The las t  pa rag raph dea l ing  w i th  th is .  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    184:  

“ In  the  l igh t  o f  these exp lanat ions I  deny tha t  I  

worked c lose ly  w i th  Mr  Chawla…”  

Says Mr  Mah langu.  

“…to  ensure  tha t  Na i than i  was appo in ted  to  the  SAA 

board .   I  had no persona l  in te res t  in  the  ou tcome o f  10 

Dr  Na i than i ’ s  nominat ion  o r  app l i ca t ion  and s imp ly  

p rocessed h i s  nominat ion  and  app l i ca t ion  i n  a 

manner  typ i ca l  o f  board  appo in tments .   As  a lways ,  

h is  appo in tment  was cons idered by  o the rs  and was  

de l ibe ra ted  over  fu r ther  and as  a  mat te r  o f  cou rse  

the  au tho r i t y  and dec is ion-mak ing  powers  to  appo in t  

Dr  Na i than i  so  the  SAA board  lay  in  the  hands o f  

the  m in is te r .   He  dec ided to  appo in t  Dr  Na i than i  to  

the  SAA board  w i th  fu l l  knowledge o f  who had 

nominated h im. ”  20 

You conf i rm tha t?  

MR GIGABA :   I  deny,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  I  had fu l l  

knowledge o f  who had nominated Dr  Na i than i .   The  

nominat ions to  the  board  were  done th rough a  process 

exc lud ing  me and i t  wou ld  be  b rought  to  me f rom the  
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depar tmenta l  p rocess and so  I  d id  no t  have fu l l  knowledge 

o f  who had nominated Dr  Na i than i .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  suppose –  pe rhaps I  can ask  

you the  quest ion  d i rec t l y .   D id  you know tha t  Ranesh  Gupta  

had nominated h im? 

MR GIGABA :   No ,  I  was not  aware .  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  you say ea r l ie r  on ,  Mr  G igaba,  you 

or  the  depar tmen t  –  bo th  o f  you and the  depar tmen t  found  

out  la te r  tha t  Dr  Na i than i  ac tua l l y  d id  no t  have what  you 

had been made to  be l ieve  he had tha t  was go ing  to  be  10 

benef ic ia l  to  SAA? 

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  Cha i r ,  th rough the  résumé tha t  was 

presented to  us  and the  argument  tha t  he  wou ld  be  ab le  to  

p rov ide  th is  ass is tance tha t  w i l l  be  requ i red  bu t  when the  

board  assessment  was done,  i t  tu rned out  tha t  he  d id  no t  

have th is  in f luence.   Not  on ly  d id  he  no t  have the  

in f luence,  he  was a lso  no t  a t tend ing  board  meet ings,  no t  

par t i c i pa t ing  in  board  subcommi t tees and then i t  meant  

tha t  he  was unsu i tab le  fo r  the  board  and tha t  i s  why we  

in i t ia ted  the  process o f  h is  remova l .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    You know,  I  want  to  ask  you a  quest ion  

tha t  has ar isen in  my mind over  the  months ,  over  the  years  

tha t  the  Commiss ion  has been  l i s ten ing  to  ev idence 

re la t ing  to  the  SOEs.  

MR GIGABA :   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    When one looks a t  the  ev idence tha t  has 

been ment ioned  in  the  Commiss ioner  o f  what  rea l l y  

happened to  a  number  o f  SOEs espec ia l l y  Transnet ,  

Eskom,  Dene l ,  SAA dur ing  cer ta in  per iods because I  do  no t  

want  to  pa in t  everybody w i th  the  same brush,  dur ing  

cer ta in  per iods,  when you look a t  the  damage tha t  was  

done to  those SOEs because o f  i r regu la r i t ies  in  cont rac ts ,  

because o f  cor rup t ion  and so  on ,  you ask  the  quest ion  

whethe r  the  boards o f  those SOEs dur ing  tha t  re levant  t ime 

were  do ing  the i r  j ob  proper ly .    10 

 But  a lso  you ask  yourse l f  the  quest ion  whethe r  

those boards were  popu la ted  by  the  r igh ts  types o f  peop le  

and tha t  ra ises  the  quest ion  in  the  contex t  o f  Dr  Na i than i  

whethe r  the  ve t t ing  wh ich  you say  the  depar tment  wou ld  do  

before  peop le  were  appo in ted  to  the  boards was done  

proper ly ,  was done by  peop le  who knew what  they were  

look ing  fo r  o r  what  was go ing  on because in  the  contex t  o f  

Dr  Na i than i ,  the  impress ion  I  am get t ing  is  tha t  h is  name 

may have been  sent  to  the  cab ine t  even before  the  

depar tment  and yourse l f  sa t i s f ied  themse lves tha t  there  20 

was proper  p roof  fo r  what  was c la imed about  h im,  namely  

th is  ab i l i t y  tha t  he  was sa id  to  have,  tha t  he  wou ld  

in f luence the  Ind ian  government  to  t rea t  SAA in  a  cer ta in  

way.    

I f  tha t  was d i scovered a f te r ,  one asks the  quest ion  
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why was i t  no t  es tab l i shed before  he  was appo in ted?  Why 

d id  no t  –  i f  somebody asked fo r  p roo f  o r  was the  say-so  o f  

somebody in  the  résumé or  in  the  CV tha t  was sent  to  the 

depar tment  seen  as  enough or  maybe Mr  Tony Gupta ’s  

say-so  to  Mr  Mah langu,  whethe r  these th ings were  be ing  

checked proper ly?   A re  you ab le  t o  say anyth ing?  

MR GIGABA :   Yes,  Cha i rpe rson and pe rhaps see ing  as  I  

m ight  no t  f in ish  my ev idence today… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   …I  wou ld  l i ke  to  comment  a  l i t t le  b i t  more  10 

ex tens i ve l y  on  th i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  tha t  i s  fa i r  enough,  ja .  

MR GIGABA :   When the re  wou ld  be  su f f i c ien t  t ime and to 

a l low me to  do  broader  re f lec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR GIGABA :   Because i t  covered a  per iod  where  I  

g rapp led  a  g reat  dea l  w i th  these issues f rom a  po l i cy  po in t  

o f  v iew,  execut ion  po in t  o f  v iew,  what  gaps I  observed in  

the  sys tem some o f  wh ich  we had inher i ted  f rom a  per iod  in  

t ime when there  was great  confus ion  about  the  ro les ,  the  20 

mandates  o f  SOEs,  the  ownersh ip  mode l  o f  SOEs,  whethe r  

they wou ld  be  pr iva t i sed or  no t  because a l l  o f  tha t  

cons idered and the  cap i ta l i sa t ion  o f  the  SOEs,  a l l  o f  i t  

cons idered,  had a  mass ive  impact  on  how they per fo rmed  

a t  a  la te r  s tage mov ing  on and then i f  you look a t  them 
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today,  you know,  the  cha l lenges a t  Eskom,  the  cha l lenges  

a t  SAA …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And Dene l .  

MR GIGABA :   Dene l .   A l l  o f  these are  no t  jus t  new 

prob lems,  they have accumula ted  ove r  t ime and I  th ink  i t  

wou ld  behove tha t  those o f  us  who  were  be ing  prac t i t ioners  

in  the  sa id (?)  shou ld  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  in  te rms o f  

some o f  the  s t ra teg ic  v iew tha t  m ight  need  to  be  

cons idered.   You do not  have to  accept  what  we  

recommend.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   Bu t  i t  i s  on ly  a id  to  ass is t  the  Cha i rperson to  

make some –  to  cons ide r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   Some recommenda t ions wh ich  cou ld  ass i s t  

the  process mov ing  fo rward .   But  i t  does seem comment ing  

w i thout  Cha i rperson tak ing  away  my r igh t  wh ich  I  have  

requested to  comment  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  am grant ing  the  r igh t  to  

la te r  on ,  when you come back,  to  dea l  w i th  i t  p roper l y .  20 

MR GIGABA :   I t  does seem,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  the  ve t t ing  

was not  as  robus t  and i t  was not  on ly  in  re la t ion  to  SAA,  i t  

i s  in  re la t ion  to  a  number  o f  SOEs …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  i s ,  I  can  jus t  te l l  you  because I  

was go ing  to  ment ion  –  maybe I  shou ld  ment ion  now,  tha t  
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your  successor  i n  the  por t fo l io  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises,  she 

was g iv ing  ev idence here ,  maybe las t  month ,  I  cannot  

remember ,  and one o f  the  issues  tha t  we ra ised w i th  her  

was tha t  the  person tha t  was appo in ted  as  Cha i rperson o f  

Dene l ,  o f  the  Dene l  board ,  a f te r  you had le f t  dur ing  he r  

t ime tha t  she appo in ted  was an a t to rney who had been 

re ins ta ted  as  an  a t to rney about  th ree  years ,  two ,  th ree  

years  be fo re  tha t  bu t  somebody who had been s t ruck  o f f  

the  ro l l  o f  a t to rneys a  few years  ear l ie r  and he was not  

be ing  re ins ta ted  as  an  a t to rney,  he  had not  been re ins ta ted  10 

as  an  a t to rney because he won h i s  case on appea l  and the  

ev idence tha t  emerged f rom your  successor  was indeed 

tha t ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y ,  she may have become aware  o f  

tha t  fac t  a f te r  the  par t i cu la r  person had been appo in ted  as  

Cha i rperson o f  the  board  and the  quest ion  tha t  a rose is  

how cou ld  the  depar tment ,  i f  i t  was do ing  proper  ve t t ing ,  

have fa i led  to  es tab l i sh  tha t  th is  person had been  s t ruck  

o f f  as  an  a t to rney  even though the re  had been re ins ta ted?   

 There  must  have  been so  many o ther  peop le  i f  you  

wanted an a t to rney o r  advocate  who had never  been s t ruck  20 

o f f  fo r  the  reasons tha t  had been  g iven,  so  –  and then,  o f  

course ,  I  had member  o f  –  a  fo rmer  member  o f  the  board  o f  

SAA who gave ev idence here  las t  year  and – you smi le ,  so 

I  am not  go ing  to  ment ion  her  name,  bu t  i t  i s  known,  some 

o f  the  quest ions I  pu t  to  her  a re  known.    
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O f  course  you a lso  –  we a l l  know a t  SAA Ms Myen i  

was there  fo r  a  very  long desp i te  the  fac t  tha t  there  were  

lo ts  o f  concerns  and compla in ts  about  her  leadersh ip  or  

her  ro le  and ac tua l l y ,  I  recent ly  re f reshed my memory  

read ing  some document  wh ich  re la tes  to  the  ev idence o f  

the  Commiss ion ,  wh ich  suggested tha t  ac tua l l y  dur ing  your  

t ime as  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  cer ta in  d i rec tors  o f  

the  SAA board  even wro te  to  you o r  cop ied  you on a  le t te r  

tha t  they had wr i t ten  to  her  compla in ing  about  he r  and on  

what  I  was read ing ,  i t  does not  appear  tha t  you d id  10 

anyth ing .   But  a f te r  you had le f t ,  your  successor  seems to  

have –  o r  ra ther  le t  me not  say  your  successor  bu t  what  

seems to  have happened is  tha t  those who had compla ined 

aga ins t  –  about  her ,  Ms Myen i ,  e i ther  res igned or  were  

removed and she remained.  

So I  ment ion  a l l  o f  these th ings to  suppor t  the  po in t  

you were  mak ing  tha t  i t  was not  jus t  one SOE where  there  

may have been p rob lems,  i t  was a  number  o f  them,  so  tha t  

i s  what  I  was ment ion ing .  

So one looks a t  a l l  o f  these th ings and says the  20 

appo in tment  p rocesses,  were  they  what  they shou ld  have 

been?  The cr i te r ia  o f  peop le  who were  be ing  appo in ted ,  

what  were  they –  were  they rea l l y  the  r igh t  c r i te r ia?    

Obv ious l y  one must  a lways,  as  one speaks,  

remember  tha t  i t  may not  be  tha t  everybody d id  no t  do  we l l  
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bu t  ce r ta in ly  the  ev idence tha t  the  Commiss ion  has had 

suggested a  number  o f  boards o r  peop le  in  boards m ight  

no t  have done the i r  job  proper l y .   But  you –  I  w i l l  g ran t  you 

the  r igh t ,  you w i l l  dea l  w i th  i t  comprehens ive ly  when you 

come back.  

MR GIGABA :   Thank you,  Cha i rperson,  can I  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    bu t  I  know I  in te r rup ted  you,  you  want  to  

f in ish .  

MR GIGABA :   Thank you very  much,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MR GIGABA :   I  am aware  tha t… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh yes,  in  te rms  o f  t ime.  

MR GIGABA :   I  wou ld  l i ke ,  Cha i rperson,  w i th  your  

permiss ion  perhaps when we come back aga in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GIGABA :   That  I  p ick  up  on th i s  one.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sure .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

MR GIGABA :   Jus t  the  –  Cha i r ,  w i th  your  permiss ion ,  I  20 

th ink  we shou ld  no t  c lose  today on  the  no te  tha t  the  boards 

were  predominant ly  –  o r  were  predominant ly  no t  do ing  the i r  

work  because the re  was many ve ry  good p ro fess iona ls  who  

d id  the  best .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  
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MR GIGABA :   Because I  th ink  we shou ld  no t  cas t  

aspers ions on  peop le ,  i t  a f fec ts  the i r  ca ree rs  and the i r  

p ro fess ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  why I  sa id  I  do  no t  want  

to  pa in t  everybody w i th  the  same brush because there  may  

have been peop le  who d id  good jobs bu t  in  the  boards o f  

the  SOEs tha t  we have ta l ked about ,  no t  ta lk ing  about  

o thers ,  these ones,  dur ing  the  t imes tha t  we are  ta lk ing  

about ,  i t  may be tha t  i t  i s  the  majo r i t y  wh ich  had a  prob lem 

because i f  the  major i t y  were  do ing  the  r igh t  job  then – 10 

because the  majo r i t y  –  dec i s ions a re  made by  the  major i t y  

then tha t  wou ld  have happened.   Cer ta in  th ings wou ld  have  

happened.    

I t  may we l l  be  tha t  i t  i s  m inor i t y  o f  peop le  tha t  were  

up  to  the  job .   I t  may be,  I  am not  say ing  i t  i s ,  I  am say ing  

i t  may be but  when you come back fee l  f ree  to  dea l  w i th  

i ssue comprehens ive ly  and i f  you have ideas or  i f  you  are  

ab le  to  say there  were  w i tnesses and are  you ab le  to  say 

here  are  the  areas where  there  were  w i tnesses and you  

have suggest ions  o f  what  shou ld  be  done,  fee l  f ree  to  do 20 

tha t  because i t  i s  qu i te  impor tan t .  

 Okay,  a l r igh t ,  I  th ink  because o f  the  t ime we have  

to  s top  he re ,  Mr  Myburgh,  i s  tha t  so?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because Mr  So lomon is  no t  ab le  to  be  
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w i th  us  beyond th is  t ime.   Mr  So lomon,  a re  you s t i l l  there?  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    I  am indeed ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We have to  s top  now because  o f  your  

s i tua t ion .   When I  say  tha t ,  I  do  no t  want  to  fee l  gu i l t y .   Do 

not  fee l  gu i l t y  because I  say  tha t  bu t  we need to  ta lk  about  

when we are  go ing  to  cont inue and  f in ish .   We were  hop ing  

to  f in ish  today,  i t  has  no t  happened .   How much t ime  do we  

need?  What  i s  your  assessment ,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  we are  go ing  to  need qu i te  a  

lo t  o f  t ime s t i l l ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Qu i te  a  lo t  o f  t ime s t i l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  tha t  inso far  as  the  cross -

cu t t ing  examinat ion  is  concerned,  there  are  15  w i tnesses.   

We have dea l t  w i th  one,  Mr  Matangu(?) .   Of  course  he was  

a  longer  and perhaps more  mater ia l  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  ce r ta in l y  i f  we are  go ing  to  need  

to  dea l  w i th  the  res t  o f  them and Mr  G igaba must  obv ious ly  

be  a f fo rded the  oppor tun i ty  to  p resent  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h is  s ide .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Whatever  he  wants .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  wou ld  th ink  we wou ld  need a t  leas t  

a  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  leas t  a  day.   We might  have  to  no t  
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look  fo r  a  day when we w i l l  s ta r t  in  the  morn ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We might  have to  take  even ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cer ta in ly .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe two even ings.   I  suspect  tha t  i f  

we ta lk  about  t ime next  week or  even ings f rom your  s ide  

there  is  no  prob lem? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cer ta in ly  no t  f rom mine.   I  do  have  

occas ion  to  look  a t  you r  ca lendar .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  we l l  I  am happy you d id  because I  10 

do  not  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    From what  I  can see,  Cha i rperson i s  

booked up fo r  the  who le  o f  the  week.   I  mean the  one th ing  

tha t  we do have i s  on  Monday morn ing… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    What  i s  schedu led  is  Ms Mngoma’s  

c ross-examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So I  suppose one cou ld  cons ide r  

car ry ing  on  w i th  Mr  G igaba ins tead o f  dea l ing  w i th  her .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  I  th ink  i t  i s  s ix  o f  one and ha l f  a  

dozen o f  the  o ther  because we wou ld  no t  f in ish  h im in  the  

morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  suppose one can dea l  now 

wi th  Ms Mngoma because we have comple ted  our  

examinat ion  o f  Mr  G igaba on tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  So lomon,  how is  your  s i tua t ion  

next  week genera l l y  speak ing?  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    Cha i r ,  we had se t  as ide  Monday fo r  

the  cross-examinat ion  o f  Ms Mngoma.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    I t  may be bet te r  to  t ry  and f in ish  w i th  

…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  G igaba.  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    Mr  G igaba on Monday and use tha t  

t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    And then I  had made  myse l f  

ava i lab le  on  Wednesday to  c ross-examine essent ia l l y  two  

w i tnesses,  Ms Coetzee and Ms Mzimela .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mz imela ,  ja .   A re  you go ing  to  need to  

c ross-examine them? 

ADV SOLOMON SC :    Yes,  I  th ink  ce r ta in ly  Ms Mzimela .   20 

Ms Coetzee i t  seems is  a  very  nar row issue and tha t  i s  

p robab ly  no t  necessary  bu t  we cou ld  keep in  touch  w i th  Mr  

Myburgh and le t  h im …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    And le t  h im know.  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    And le t  the  Commiss ion  know 
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th rough h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  on  Monday,  on  my  

schedu le ,  Mr  Myburgh,  fo r  the  day sess ion ,  apar t  f rom Ms 

Mngoma who d id  you have?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  the  who le  –  we l l… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Who le  day?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  the  morn ing  sess ion  un t i l  lunch  

is  Ms Mngoma.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then I  see tha t  you f i l l ed  –  i f  my 10 

memory  se rves me co r rec t ly ,  I  th ink  Mr  Se leka and Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  may I  jus t  ment ion  tha t  Ms  

Coetzee and Mzimela ,  Ms Mzimela  has apparent ly  

cont rac ted  Cov id ,  un for tunate ly .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  un l i ke l y  tha t  

she wou ld  be  ab le  to  be  cross-examined on Wednesday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So may be  –  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  we  20 

cou ld  work  ou t  someth ing  because i f  we cou ld  use the  

Wednesday s lo t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   To  cont inue w i th  Mr  G igaba ’s  

ev idence tha t  wou ld  probab ly  make sense.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And I  do  no t  know i f  you wan t  h im to 

cont inue a lso  on  Monday morn ing  ins tead o f  Ms Mngoma 

because then we cou ld  have two b i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  bet te r  to  

cont inue w i th  Mr  G igaba on Monday.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And t ry  and f in ish  w i th  h im.   Mr  

So lomon,  a re  Sa turdays ou t  o f  the  quest ion  fo r  you fo r  

re l ig ious reasons? 10 

ADV SOLOMON SC :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .    

ADV SOLOMON SC :    Monday does commend i t se l f  to  me 

to  cont inue w i th  Mr  G igaba.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink  i f  you  cou ld  hand le  th is  w i th  

Ms Mngoma,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  cont inue w i th  Mr  G igaba on 

Monday.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Unt i l  luncht ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  leas t  un t i l  luncht ime.   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  I  

do  no t  remember  who is  supposed to  come up on  Monday  

a f te rnoon and even ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i t  i s  –  we are  in  the  morn ing  and  

then a t  two o ’ c lock  i t  i s  Masango w i th  Mr  Se leka  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 188 of 190 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a t  th ree  o ’c lock  i t  i s  

Govender ,  a lso  Mr  Se leka and then  the  even ing  is  fu l l  too .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  Govender?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Govender  i s  the  th ree  o ’c lock  

w i tness,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Masango w i l l  be  ve ry  shor t .   

And in  the  even ing?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The even ing  you have a  who le  lo t  o f  

w i tnesses w i th  the  ev idence leader  be ing  Mr  Hu l ley .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i s  tha t  Mr  Mabuyakhu lu?   Ms  

Ngubane?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mz i la ,  Ngubane.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I  th ink  le t  us  s ta r t  –  le t  us  do  

Monday.   You know,  i f  everybody  agrees,  in  o rder  to  t ry  

and max im ise  the  chance o f  e i ther  f in ish ing  w i th  Mr  

G igaba,  I  am jus t  th ink ing  whether  we cou ld  s ta r t  qu i te  

ear l y  on  Monday .   I  am even th ink ing  now o f  ha l f  past  

e igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  wou ld  be  f ine ,  cer ta in ly  f rom 20 

our  s ide .   Perhaps one o ther  suggest ion .   I  th ink  what  Mr  

G igaba has to  say about  the  board  nominat ions and the  

l i ke  i s  impor tan t ,  I  do  no t  know i f  you wou ld  have a  – 

maybe another  op t ion  is  fo r  h im to  pu t  someth ing  in  

wr i t ing ,  I  mean c lear l y  tha t  i s  va luab le  ins igh t .  



18 JUNE 2021 – DAY 412 
 

Page 189 of 190 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  tha t  takes an  hour  o r  two then we  

are  never  go ing  to  ge t  anywhere  near  be ing  ab le  to  f in ish .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  cou ld  work .   So  

maybe what  we –  and i t  wou ld  g ive  h im more  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes and he cou ld  de l i ver  i t  la te r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe the  answer  tha t  you wanted to  do  

comprehens ive ly ,  maybe you cou ld  pu t  tha t  in  wr i t ing  so  

tha t  we then cont inue and i f  we do not  f in ish  on  

Wednesday w i th  you desp i te  s ta r t ing  ear ly ,  then we cou ld  10 

look a t  the  poss ib i l i t y  o f  us ing  Wednesday.   Obv ious l y  we  

w i l l  have to  t ry  and f ind  t ime somewhere  fo r  Ms Mngoma.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And a lso  we have Mr  Ben jamin ,  you 

w i l l  remember .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  he  can be a  f loa t ing  w i tness,  I  

th ink .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   No,  he  w i l l  be  easy.   Okay ,  le t  us  

leave i t  l i ke  –  le t  us  cont inue.   I s  ha l f  past  e igh t  f ine  w i th  

you in  the  morn ing?  I t  wou ld  be  f ine  w i th  you.   Mr  20 

So lomon,  i s  ha l f  past  e igh t  on  Monday f ine?  

ADV SOLOMON SC :    That  i s  in  o rde r ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    tha t  i s  in  o rde r .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  le t  us  

cont inue on Monday,  le t  us  s ta r t  a t  ha l f  past  e igh t  in  the  

morn ing .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then we cont inue,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

Thank you ve ry  much to  everybody,  we w i l l  ad journ  then fo r  

today.   There  is  no  even ing  sess ion .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 21 JUNE 2021  


